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our stand

In our world and in our busy lives, with so
much to see and so much to focus on, our stand
is simply this: We stand for waking up and seeing
the alarm clock—for going to bed and seeing the
television. We stand for playing sports without
the hindrance of eyeglasses—and for driving
without becoming a hindrance. We stand for
reading—billboards, the blackboard and the
message boards. In short, we stand for vision—
crisp, clear vision and the improved quality
of life that AMO, as the Complete Refractive
Solution, provides for people of all ages.




FINANCIAL RIGHLIGHTS

it of December 31, 2006 2005
in thourards)

3ales by Product Line:

Sataract/Implant § 519,025 § 497,191 § 413,42
Laser Vision Correction 216,876 122,615
Eye Care 261,595 300,867 328,67
[otal Product Sales $ 997,496 § 920,673 § 742,099

3ales Mix by Region:

Americas 47% 38%
Europe/Africa/Middle East 29% 3%
Japan 14% 19%
Asia Pacifie 1055 1%
A\t of December 31, 2006 2005

in thouzands)

Additional Highlights:
bash and equivalents $ 34,522 § 40,826 § 49,459
Lurrent assete 478,143 479,005 376,824

[otal assets 2,013,897 1,980,722 1,076,534
Garrent liabilities 217,453 260,116 193,92
Long-term debt, net of current portion and shori-term borrowings 851,105 500,000 550,64
Net cash from operating activities 224,794 20,836 29,668

or additional financial information, see the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, as filed with the Securities and
xthange Commission, included herein.
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~that it was right for me—that it would work—that it was safe. Untit my
>ye doctor told me about AMO’s state-of-the-art laser vision correction technolog

that consistently deliver superior
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ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.

v
L As the world's leading laser vision correction company, AMO is defining a new standard of LASIK care. y
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WAS CORRECT
standard industry technology

ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.
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NOW CORRECT

AMOQO’s teading technology
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At AMO, we stand for advancing the science of vision care through continuous delivery
of innovative technologies. We've more than doubled our R&D investment over the last four years,
with 2007 promising to be our most prolific year yet in terms of new product introductions.

Now, that's correct!




_that | wouldn’t still be dependent on my eyeglasses—that | could get guickly back to work
at I'd actually be able to see better than | had in years. Until | researched AMO's multifocal 1O
innovative intraocular lenses that provide excellent near, intermediate and
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With 79 million baby boomers fully in midlife, the demand for vision correction Is increasing substantially,

ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.
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OUR
CORRECTION OFFICERS

can't stop smiling

At AMO, we stand as the Complete Refractive Solution, and recently strengthened
our position with the acquisitions of IntraLase Corp. and WaveFront Sciences, Inc., establishing
a powerful and unparalleled combination of technologies designed specifically
to serve the comprehensive refractive practice.

Now, that's correct!
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at | wouldn't be able to drive at night—that it was part of growing older—that it
just something I'd have to live with. Until my doctor told me about AMO's
2cnis” 0L, the only lens with claims approved by the FDA for improved function
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Cataracts are the leading cause of vislon loss among adults 55 and older.
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THE OLD COURSE OF ACTION

our competition’s strategy
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THE CORRECT COURSE OF ACTION

AMO’s strategy for success
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At AMO, we stand for the premium ophthalmic markets where procedures are elective
and offerings are priced at their market value. From LASIK to multifocal IOLs, we offer freedom
from eyeglasses for those who are willing to pay for this lifestyle-enhancing benefit.

Now, that's correct!
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AMO’s eye care products serve the needs of teens and young adults as they are introduced to contact lens wear,
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TO AMO
STOCKHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS
AND FRIENDS

Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. (AMQ) is inspired by the millions of people enjoying
the fullness of life because our technologies help them see better. This drives us

to work even harder to meet the refractive vision care needs of millions more and

confirms to us that our strategy is correct.

AMO delivers life-improving vision technologies
for people of all ages. We do this by providing eye
care profassionals and their patients a Complete
Refractive Solution that includes a differentiated
suite of advanced products and services designed
to address vision disorders at all stages of life.
We offer market-leading technologies for myopia,
hyperopia, astigmatism, presbyopia, cataract,
spherical aberration, contact lens care and corneal
health, as well as proven educational and support
programs that help eye care professionals master
refractive technologies and grow their practices.
We've moved aggressively to implement this
strategy since our 2002 spin-off. We completed
major acquisitions, restructured our organization,
repricritized our research and development
(R&D) pipeline, recapitalized our balance sheet
and distilled our preduct offering to a powerful
brand portfolio. During this time, we've also nearly
doubled our annual sales, expanded margins,
improved cash flow and enhanced our future
earnings potential. We believe that our competi-
tive position has never been stronger and that our
progress is apparent in recent trends that show:

« Qur sales mix is shifting to higher-margin products.
For example, our proprietary Tecnis® intraocular
lens (JOL) comprised 34 percent of our total
monofocal I0OL sales in 2006, compared to just 11
percent in 2005.

- QOur share of the refractive ICL market is growing.
QOur ReZoom®, Tecnis® Multifocal and Verisyse®
IOLs drove global refractive 10L sales of $49.2
million in 2006, mere than double 2005 refractive
IOL totals.

+Qur laser vision correction expansion plan is working.

Demonstrating the power of our CustomVue®
technology to drive overseas adoption of a
per-procedure model, we grew 2006 international
laser vision correction sales by more than 30
percent versus 2005

«Qur eye care business is back on track. After
managing challenges associated with regional
market changes, planned product discontinuations
and a multinational recall, we are positioned for
renewed growth in 2007 with our flagship brands
- Complete® and blink?® - leading the way.

!Comparison is pro forma and assumes a full year
of ViSX-related sales in 2005.

Early in 2007, we fortified our strategy with
acquisitions of IntraLase Corp., the glocbal leader
in ophthalmic femtosecond laser technology, and
WaveFront Sciences, Inc., a provider of proprietary
wavefront diagnostic systems. Consequently, we
now offer refractive surgeons an unrivaled, state-
of-the-art LASIK system that should help us grow
the refractive market by defining a new standard
of care. These actions make clear that AMO is
forging a new path for vision care. | am confident
in the strength of our strategy and our ability to
capitalize on our leadership positions to achieve
sustained growth.

FOCUSING ON THE
CORRECT MARKETS

Everyone needs vision care. The needs evalve
with age and are usually related to a refractive
disorder. As children or young adults, about 40
percent of us discover that the particular shape of
our eye causes us to be myopic, hyperopic or
astigmatic. Then, in our 40s, we begin to experience
presbyopia, which occurs because our eye’s
natural lens is losing its ability to change focus
from far to near objects. By the time we reach our
60s and 70s, cataracts typically start to cloud
vision because our eye’s natural lens is becoming
less transparent. With the aging of our natural
lens, most of us also experience increased spherical
aberration, which diminishes the crispness of
our vision.

Global population growth and demographic shifts
mean increasing demand for our technologies as
people of alt ages require excellent vision. Teens
and young adults - who comprise the majority of
the contact lens wearing public - are the world's
second fastest-growing demographic behind the
massive baby boom generation, which is now
between the ages of 43 and 61 and beginning to
face the challenges of preshyopia and cataracts.
Moreover, people arcund the world are living
longer and looking to improve visual performance
well into their 80s and 90s. Industry sources peg
the 2006 global market for AMO products at
about $5. billion, growing to approximately $6.6
billion by 2011, which represents an approximate 5
percent compounded annual growth rate.

We expect AMO's growth to eclipse the overall
market growth rate because we are concentrating
on premium market segments and innovations
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with the greatest potential to drive meaningful
expansion. This goal is evident in our focus on
serving the needs of comprehensive refractive
practices, where procedures are elective and
offerings are priced at their market value, rather
than being dictated by government or insurance
reimbursement rates. The IrntraLase and Wave-
Front Sciences acquisitions are evidence of
our commitment. It is also demonstrated in the
significant resources we are marshaling behind
technologies that address the needs of the
millions of presbyopes who want greater freedom
from eyeglasses and are willing to pay for this
lifestyle-enhancing benefit,

DISCOVERING NEW WAYS
TO CORRECT VISION

Innovation is our lifeblood as it continually renews
our relevance and differentiation in the market. To
that end, we have consistently increased our R&D
investment to proaden our core competencies
and fill cur preduct pipeline. Over the last four
years, we've expanded ocur R&D teams and more
than doubled cur annual R&D spend. As a result,
2007 is shaping up to be our most prolific year yet
in terms of new product introductions. Our 2007
planned launches extend across all our major
product lines and include a unique over-the-
counter dry eye product, a new Complete® multi-
purpeose solution suitable for silicone hydrogel
contact lens wearers, a Customvue® treatment for
presbyopia, a new lens removal system that builds
on our proprietary WhiteStar® phacoemulsifica-
tion technology and a new dispersive viscoelastic
that expands our Healon® viscoelastic franchise.
We expect all of these to contribute to sales
growth, market share expansion and improved
profitability through continued migration to
premium, higher-margin products.

PROVIDING A CORRECT |
SOLUTION TO CUSTOMERS '

We deliver our technologies through three com-
plementary product lines, each providing specific
solutions to address patients’ refractive needs at
certain stages of life.

» Qur eye care products serve refractive patients
as they are introduced to contact lens wear. We
work with their eye care professionals to offer
contact lens disinfection, cleaning and wetting
formulations that protect and lubricate ocular
surfaces, relieve dryness and irritation and increase
overall contact lens comfort.

» Qur laser vision correction product line focuses
on refractive patients seeking freedom from
eyeglasses or contact lenses. As the world’s
No. 1 laser vision correction company, we offer
refractive practices the industry's most advanced
technologies, which are designed to achieve
superior visual outcomes with fewer complications,
enhance surgeon productivity and break down
consumer fears regarding LASIK treatments.

« Qur cataract/implant products address needs of
patients suffering from cataracts and presbyopia.
We provide ultrasonic tens removal systems, vis-
coelastics, aspheric I10Ls that deliver improved
functional vision by reducing spherical aberration
and multifocal OLs that achieve excellent near,
intermediate and far vision without eyeglasses.
With our innovations, ophthalmic surgeons can
optimize visual function based on each patient's
individual need.

Qur ability to link our product lines together te form
a potent technological offering is our differentiation
in the market and the cornerstone of our
Complete Refractive Solution approach. We use
this linkage to our advantage. For example, we
are leveraging our strong relationships with
refractive surgeons - formed through our laser vision
correction market leadership - to drive adoption
of multifocal 10Ls. Moreover, our extensive
infrastructure outside the U.S. - developed over
the years by our eye care and cataract/implant
growth - facilitates efficient international expan-
sion of our laser vision correction platform.
Furthermore, in 2007, we will enter the dry eve
market with an artificial tear product that will utilize
the sales forces of all three of our businesses and
treat patients of all ages. We expect these and
other initiatives to continue to solidify AMO's
position as the industry's global refractive company.

O WEEDER
ALHANKS]

After four vears as AMQ's chairman, William
R. Grant stepped down from this position in mid
2006. On behalf of the board and AMO team,
I want to thank Bill for his steadfast leadership
during our first ¢ritical years as an independent
company. We benefited greatly from his experi-
ence, professionalism, wisdom and constant
attention to stockholders’ interests.

As always, we thank our stockholders for their
support and enthusiasm for our strategy. To
customers, we express our gratitude for their
trust and confidence and our appreciation for
their continual input and feedback. Finally, we
acknowledge the AMO employees around the
world who dedicate themselves every day to
improving the quality of visien - and life - for others.

Sincerely,

JAMES V. MAZZO
CHAIRMAN, PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

"5
Z
&
3
=
o

.0

Ld
-«

.2

]
w
X
=]
w
o
z
-
>
[+]
<




»
9
<
»
z
a
m
-]
X
m
=}
o
»
-
Q
]
b=
o
n
z
"

LEADERSHIP

Board of Directors

James V. Mazzo, Chairman of the Beard
Committee: Science & Technology

Mr. Mazzo is also president and

chief executive officer of AMO,

James O. Rollans, Presiding Director
Committees: Audit & Finance; Organization,
Compensation & Corporate Governance

Before his retirement in 2003, Mr. Rollans served
as a director and executive of Fluor Corporation.

Christopher G. Chavez

Committees: Organization, Compensation,

& Corporate Governance; Science & Technology

Mr. Chavez is president of Advanced Neuromodulation
Systems, a division of St. Jude Medical, Inc.

Elizabeth H. Déavila

Committee: Science & Technology

Before her retirement, Ms, Davila was chairman
and chief executive officer of VISX, Incorporated,
which AMO acquired in May 2005,

William R. Grant
Committees: Audit & Finance; Organization,

Compensation & Corporate Governance (through May 2006)
Mr. Grant is co-founder of Galen Associates, In¢., a venture

capital firm in the health care industry,

William J. Link, Ph.D.

Committees: Audit & Finance; Science & Technology
Dr. Link is managing director and ce-founder of
Versant Ventures, a venture capital firm focused on
early-stage health care companies.

Michael A. Mussallern

Commitiees: Organization, Compensation

& Corporate Governance; Science & Technology

Mr. Mussallern is chairman and chief executive officer
of Edwards Lifesciences Corporation.

Deborah J. Neff

Committees; Audit & Finance; Science & Technology
Ms, Neff is president and chief executive officer of
Pathwork Diagnostics, Inc.

Executive Officers

James V. Mazzo
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Sherea L. Aronson
Corporate Vice President, Corporate Communications,
Investor Relations and Market Research

Leonard R. Borrmann
Executive Vice President, Research and Development

Robert F. Gallagher
Senior Vice President,
Chief Accounting Officer and Controller

Holger Heidrich, Ph,D.
Corporate Vice President and President,
EAM and International Government Affairs

Richard A. Meier
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Francine D. Meza
Corporate Vice President, Human Resources

Douglas H. Post
Executive Vice President and President,
Corneal Refractive Group

Jane E. Rady
Executive Vice President, Strategy
and Corporate Develecpment

Angelo Rago
Senior Vice President, Global Customer Services

C. Russell Trenary Il
Executive Vice President and President,
Cataract Refractive Group

Aimee 5. Weisner
Executive Vice President, Administration,
General Counsel and Secretary
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PARTI1
Item 1. Business

AMO was incorporated in Delaware in October 2001 as a subsidiary of Allergan, Inc. (Allergan). Allergan spun-off
our company to its stockholders by way of a distribution of all of our shares of common stock on June 29, 2002, As a result
of our spin-off from Allergan, we are an independent public company, and Allergan has no continuing stock ownership in us.
Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “AMO,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” refer 10 Allergan’s optical
medical device business for the periods prior to June 29, 2002 and to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and its subsidiaries for
the periods on or after such date.

LI

Overview

We are a global leader in the development, manufacture and marketing of medical devices for the eye. We have
three major product lines: cataract / implant, laser vision correction, and eye care. In the cataract / implant market, we focus
on the four key products required for cataract surgery — foldable intraocular lenses, or IOLs, implantation systems,
phacoemulsification systems and viscoelastics. In the laser vision correction market, we market laser systems, diagnostic
devices, treatment cards and microkeratomes for use in laser eye surgery. Our eye care product line provides a full range of
contact lens care products for use with most types of contact lenses. These products include single-bottle, multi-purpose
cleaning and disinfecting solutions, hydrogen peroxide-based disinfecting solutions, daily cleaners, enzymatic cleaners and
contact lens rewetting drops. Our products are sold in approximately 60 countries and we have direct operations in over 20
countries,

In June 2004, we completed our acquisition of Pfizer Inc.’s surgical ophthalmic business, which expanded our
viscoelastic and IOL product offerings, allowing us to offer a more comprehensive portfolio of products required to perform
cataract surgery. We acquired the Healon family of viscoelastic products and the Tecnis 10L brand. The addition of the
Healon family, one of the leading viscoelastic brands, significantly expanded our viscoelastic product line. The Tecnis 0L
brand further strengthened our position in the ophthalmic surgery market with the Tecnis Multifocal IOL brand further
expanding our refractive IOQL portfolio. We also acquired the Baerveld: glaucoma shunt, or dratnage device, which provided
an entry for us into the glaucoma market.

In May 2005, we acquired VISX, Incorporated, the global leader in laser vision correction. As a result of the VISX
acquisition, we are a leader in the design and development of proprietary technologies and systems for laser vision correction
of refractive vision disorders. Our products include the VISX STAR Excimer Laser System, which is a fully integrated
ophthalmic medical device incorporating an excimer laser and a computer driven workstation; the VISX WaveScan System,
which is a diagnostic device that uses laser beam technology to measure comprehensive refractive errors of the eye and
derive comprehensive refractive information about a patient’s individuoal optical system; and VISX treatment cards, which
provide the user with specific access to proprietary software and are required 1o operate the VISX STAR Excimer Laser
System.

In January 2007, we entered into an agreement with IntraLase Corp., a leader in femtosecond lasers used in LASIK
surgery, to acquire all fully diluted shares of the company for approximately $808 million in cash. Under the terms of the
definitive merger agreement, Intral ase stockholders are expected to receive $25.00 in cash for every share of Intral.ase
common stock they own. We expect to complete the acquisition during the second quarter of 2007. For a description of the
risks related to this transaction, see “‘Risks Relating to the Pending Intral.ase Corp. Acquisition” beginning on page 24.

Industry
Vision and Vision Impairment,

* How Vision Works. Vision is enabled by the cornea and the lens, which work together to focus light, and the iris,
which regulates the amount of light that passes through the cornea onto the retina. The retina contains light-sensitive
receptors that transmit the image through the optic nerve to the brain.

* Cataracts. Cataracts are an irreversible progressive ophthalmic condition in which the eye’s natural lens loses its

usual transparency and becomes clouded and opaque. This clouding obstructs the passage of light to the retina and
can eventually lead to blindness.




* Refractive Disorders. Refractive disorders, such as myopia, hyperopia, astigmatism and presbyopia, occur when the
lens system is unable to properly focus images on the retina. For example, with myopia (nearsightedness), light rays
focus in front of the retina because the curvature of the cornea is too steep. With hyperopia (farsightedness), light
rays focus behind the retina because the curvature of the cornea is too flat. Astigmatism makes it difficult for a
person to focus on any object because the otherwise uniform curvature of the cornea or lens is somehow disrupted or
becomes uneven, Presbyopia is the progressive loss of flexibility of the lens and its ability to change shape to focus
on near or far objects, and is presumably caused by aging of the eye’s lens and the muscles that control the shape of
the lens.

Ophthalmic Surgical Products Market. Ophthalmic surgical products generally are designed to correct impaired
vision through minimally invasive surgical procedures. As the eye ages, the prevalence of cataracts and refractive disorders
generally increases. We believe that an aging population, introduction of new technologies and increasing market acceptance
present opportunities for growth in the ophthalmic surgical market.

Cataract Treatment. The largest segment of the ophthalmic surgical products market is the treatment of cataracts.
Cataract extraction followed by IOL implantation is one of the most common surgical procedures performed in the United
States and most other developed nations. As estimated by MarketScope, approximately 2.9 million cataract procedures were
performed in the United States and over 14.1 million cataract procedures were performed worldwide in 2006, MarketScope
estimates that the gtobal cataract surgery market, which includes sales of [OLs, phacoemulsification equipment, viscoelastics
and other related products, was approximately $3.4 billion in 2006 and is projected to grow at a compound annual growth
rate of approximately 10% from 2006 to 2031 1. The data in this report attributed to MarketScope is used with the permission
of MarketScope.

During cataract surgery, patients are often treated using phacoemulsification, a process that uses ultrasound waves to
break the natural lens into tiny fragments that can be removed from the eye. Viscoelastics are used during cataract surgery to
protect the inner layer of the cornea, provide lubrication and maintain space in the anterior chamber of the eye and the
capsular bag in the posterior chamber {which houses the lens), allowing the eye to maintain its shape.

The following table sets forth the estimated revenues for each component of the global cataract surgery market in its
various components for the year 2006 according to MarketScope (in millions):

FOLS ittt e e b b e b e b b aae e e e b aanbranneararans $1,439
VISCOIASIICS ©evuveeiiiieieee e e e e e e s e s s eme e e s saba s s s b aessarbe s s sbasasrmessssnrnea 515
Phacoemulsification machines and aCCESSOIES ......cccvrvvrrvrrierenreesrensiaesnns 604
L1011 1 = TP UTUPSUSTT 870
TOUAL. ..t e et e e e e ae s s st e e st e et s ee e et e e emneas $3,428

Refractive Vision Correction. Another segment of the ophthalmic surgical market is the surgical treatment of
refractive disorders.

LASIK. The most common refractive surgery procedure is laser surgery, and the most common surgical technique
for treating refractive disorders is laser assisted in-situ keratomileusis, or LASIK. LASIK involves the use of an automated
cutting device to cut a thin corneal flap, which is then pulled back to expose the underlying tissue, which is treated using an
excimer laser to achieve vision correction. The most common cutting device is called a microkeratome.

As a result of the VISX acquisition, we are a leader in the design and development of proprictary technologies and
systems for laser vision correction of refractive vision disorders. Laser vision correction (LVC) eliminates or reduces
rcliance on eyeglasses or contact lenses, It employs a computerized laser that ablates, or removes, sub-micron layers of tissue
from the comea, reshaping the eye and thereby improving vision.

Standard LASIK was introduced in the mid 1990°s. In performing Standard LASIK, an ophthalmologist conducts a
traditional eye examination to determine the prescription required to correct the patient’s vision. The prescription is then
programmed into the laser system, which calculates the ablation needed to make a precise corneal correction (o treat
nearsightedness, farsightedness, and astigmatism. Unlike Custom LASIK (see below), Standard LASIK cannot correct
higher order aberrations.

The most advanced method of performing laser vision correction is Custom LASIK. Custorn LASIK employs a
diagnostic evaluation of the eye that measures refractive errors in the patient’s vision more precisely than previously’
available technology. The diagnostic device obtains comprehensive information about the imperfections, or refractive errors,
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of each patient’s vision. Refractive errors are displayed by the diagnostic device in the form of an aberration map that offers
a unique pattern for each patient’s eye, similar to a fingerprint. The map displays information about refractive errors that
result in nearsightedness, farsightedness, and astigmatism, as well as information about higher order aberrations that were not
previously measurable by any other instrument. The information from the diagnostic device is used to generate a
personalized treatment plan that is digitally transferred to the laser system. The ablation derived from this information is
therefore customized to the individual’s eye.

Laser vision correction can also be performed by photorefractive keratectomy (“PRK”). PRK doecs not require the
use of a microkeratome, and the epithelial layer (or outer layer) of the cornea is removed before ablation. Patients may
experience discomfort for approximately 24 hours and blurred vision for approximately 48 to 72 hours after the procedure.
Drops to promote corneal healing and alleviate discomfort may be prescribed. Although most patients experience significant
improvement in uncorrected vision (vision without the aid of eyeglasses or contact lenses) within a few days of the
procedure, unlike LASIK it generally takes several months for the final correction to stabilize and for the full benefit of the
procedure to be realized.

10Ls. Surgical implantation of IOLs also may be used to treat patients with refractive disorders. Phakic IOLs can be
implanted in front or in back of the iris and work in conjunction with the patient’s natural lens to treat refractive disorders.
Multifocal IOLs address near, intermediate and distance vision and are approved for non-cataract procedures outside of the
United States. Other procedures, such as replacing the patient’s natural lens with an accommodating IOL for refractive
vision correction, are also being developed.

Eye Care Market. As the use of contact lenses has become increasingly popular, the demand for disinfecting
solutions, daily cleaners, enzymatic cleaners and contact lens rewetting drops has increased. We believe that the contact lens
market growth is driven by technological advancements in lens materials and designs and broader adoption among younger
wearers. In response to increasing popularity of more frequently replaceable lenses and consumer interest in more
convenient lens care regimens, we believe the contact lens care market continues to evolve towards greater use of single-
bottle, multi-purpose solutions and away from hydrogen peroxide-based solutions. This evolution has had an unfavorable
impact on the global hydrogen peroxide market, which is concentrated in Japan and parts of Europe.

Overall, we believe that strong demographic trends, new lens materials and specialty lenses are fueling global
increases in the number of contact lens wearers, especially in China and other Asia Pacific countries. We believe that this is
contributing to overall growth in multi-purpose solutions. The exception to this positive dynamic is in Japan, where a higher
than average percent of the market has moved to daily disposable contact lenses that use cleaning solutions only occasionally
or not at all.

Finally, the eye care market includes artificial tear and contact lens rewetter products designed to relieve dryness
associated with contact lens wear, environmental conditions and dry eye disease. We believe the global market for artificial
tear products exceeds $400 million per year.

Our Products
Cataract / Implant Business
Cataract Surgery
We focus on the four key devices for the cataract surgery market:

*  Foldable I0Ls — Foldable 10Ls are artificial lenses used to replace the human lens.

*  Implantation systems — Implantation systems are designed and used specifically to implant I0Ls during cataract
surgery.

*  Phacoemulsification systems — Phacoemulsification systems use ultrasound during small incision cataract surgery
to break apart and remove the cloudy human lens prior to its replacement with an IOL.

*  Viscoelastics — Viscoelastics provide a barrier of protection for the cornea during phacoemulsification and
maintain the shape of the eye during IOL insertion.




Intraocular Lenses. As a leading provider of 10Ls, we offer surgeons a choice of high quality, innovative foldable
IOLs in both acrylic and silicone, together with our proprietary implantation systems, for use in minimally invasive cataract
surgical procedures. We offer a selection of IOLs in both silicone and acrylic materials, and we offer both monofocal and
multifocal designs. Sales of our IOLs represented approximately 29%, 28% and 32% of our net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Our IOLs primarily include:

Monofocal Lenses

*  Tecnis — a foldable IOL. with an aspheric surface and the only IOL to receive FDA approval for claims of
improved functional vision, which results in quicker recognition of objects in lower-light conditions. The Tecnis
lens was the first aspheric lens designated as a “new technology intraocular lens” by the U.S. Center for Medicare
and Medicaid Services (CMS). With this designation, ambulatory surgery centers can receive $50 in additional
reimbursement when implanting the Tecnis I0L. The Tecnis lens is available in silicone and aerylic.

*  Sensar — an acrylic monofocal I0L, with the patented OptiEdge design, intended to reduce post-surgical
posterior capsular opacification, in order to lessen the need for subsequent corrective laser procedures, and to
reduce the potential for unwanted glare and reflections following implantation.

*  ClariFiex — a silicone monofocal 10L, also with the OptiEdge design.
Multifocal and Refractive Lenses

*  ReZoom — an acrylic multifocal TOL. with optical zones that provide near, intermediate and distance vision,
reducing that patient’s dependence on eyeglasses. This lens received approval from CMS to allow patients in the
U.S. to pay the difference between the $150 reimbursement rate for IOLs and the amount that is charged. The
ReZoom I0L is also approved in Europe for the treatment of presbyopia.

*  Tecnis Multifocal — a silicone multifocal IOL with a diffractive, aspheric lens surface is approved in Europe for
treatment of presbyopia.

*  Verisyse — a phakic IOL that works in conjunction with the human lens to treat high myopia.

Implantation Systems. As a companion to our foldable 10Ls, we market insertion systems for each of our foldable
IOL models. The Unfoider, our proprietary series of implantation systems, which includes the Emerald, SifverT and Silver
implantation systems, is used for insertion of our foldable IOLs. These systems assist the surgeon in achieving controlled
release of the intraocular lens into the capsular bag through a small incision in the eye.

Phacoemulsification Systems. We are a leading provider of phacoemulsification systems, and have a range of
systems to meet market needs. Phacoemulsification systems use disposable or reusable packs that are necessary to operate the
equipment. The majority of our phacoemulsification product sales are from sales of these packs and related accessories. Sales
of our phacoemulsification products represented approximately 9% of our net sales in 2006 and 2005 and 10% of our net
sales in 2004.

We currently market the following phacoemulsification systems:

*  Sovereign — our premier phacoemulsification system is designed to reduce procedure times and provide the
surgeon with increased conirol. The Sovereign system is available with our proprietary Occlusion Mode and
WhiteStar technology, which creates less heat and turbulence in the ocular environment, giving rise to the term
“cold phaco™ and enabling better patient outcomes. Qur WhiteStar technology also permits the system to offer
bimanual, micro-incision phaco, a procedure which gives surgeons more operating flexibility over traditional
techniques.

*  Sovereign Compact -is a mid-sized phacoemulsification system designed to meet surgeons’ needs for an advanced
phacoemulsification system, with the similar functionality of the Sovereign system, in a smaller, more portable
size. The Sovereign Compact system is also available with Occlusion Mode and WhiteStar technology.




*  Diplomax I — is a small-sized phacoemulsification system designed for surgeons who need a less expensive and
more portable machine. These systems do not include WhireStar technology, but do employ Occlusion Mode
technology.

Viscoelastics. We are a leading provider of viscoelastic products with the Healon family of viscoelastics. The
different characteristics associated with each Healon product, Healon, Healon GV and Healon5, provide surgeons with a
range of viscoelastic choices that combine the familiarity of the Healon line with advanced technologies to satisfy different
surgical needs. Healon was the first viscoelastic introduced into the ophthalmic surgical product market and is known for its
purity and ease of use. Healon GV is of a greater viscosity than the original Healon solution. Healon3 is the first
viscoadaptive agent to exhibit properties of both cohesive and dispersive viscoelastics and has the highest viscosity. Sales of
our viscoelastic products represented approximately 12%, 14% and 10% of our net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Other Cataract Surgical Related Products. In addition to our 10Ls, phacoemulsification equipment and
viscoelastics, we also provide several ancillary products related to the cataract surgery market, including:

*  Irrigating Solutions. We offer irrigating solutions for use in cataract surgery to help maintain space in the eye and
to aid in removing residual tissue during phacoemulsification. [rrigating solutions are balanced saline solutions
that are compatible with the natural fluid of the anterior segment of the eye.

e Custom Eye Trays. We work with partners in our local markets to offer custom eye trays to our customers. These
custom eye trays typically consist of all of the ancillary items that a surgeon needs to use in a single cataract
surgery, such as surgical knives, drapes, gloves and gowns. Qur partners typically handle assembly, distribution
and billing for the product and in most cases we receive a fee per tray from our partners.

*  Capsular Tension Rings. In the United States, we sell the StabilEyes capsular tension ring, which is inserted into
the capsular bag during cataract surgery and functions to stabilize the capsular bag during placement of an 10L.
We also market and distribute the Inject-o-Ring capsular tension ring in Europe. We distribute these products
under arrangements with Ophtec B.V. in the United States and Corneal in Europe, respectively.

Other Surgical Products

Glaucoma Implant. The Baerveldr glaucoma implant is indicated for use in patients with medically uncontroliable
glaucoma and a poor surgical prognosis due to severe preexisting conditions. This can include: neovascular glaucoma,
aphakic/pseudophakic glaucoma, failed conventional surgery, congenital glaucoma, and secondary glaucoma due to uveitis or
epithelial down growth. Baerveldt glaucoma implants are available in three models, all of which feature a larger surface area
plate than competing single-quadrant devices.

Laser Vision Correction Business
Qur laser vision correction products include the following:

*  VISX STAR Excimer Laser System — The VISX STAR System is a fully integrated ophthalmic medical device
incorporating an excimer laser and a compulter-driven workstation.

*  VISX WaveScan Svstem — The WaveScan System is a diagnostic device that uses laser beam technology to
measure comprehensive refractive errors of the eye and complex mathematical algorithms to derive
comprehensive refractive information about the patient’s individual optical system.

*  VISX Treatment Cards — Our proprietary treatment cards control the use of the VISX STAR System.

*  Microkeratomes — Surgeons use microkerutomes in LASIK procedures to cut a flap of comeal tissue before
treatment with an excimer laser.

VISX STAR Excimer Laser System. The laser ablations produced by the VISX STAR System are the product of a
variable diameter excimer laser beam scanning system. Seven beams that range in size from 0.65 to 6.5 millimeters are
homogenized as they converge, scan, and rotate to produce a smooth ablation area on the eye. The VISX STAR System
centers on the eye and tracks eye movements in three dimensions during the procedure. Qur Iris Registration technology is
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the first fully automated method of aligning and registering wavefront corrections for CustomVue treatment. Iris Registration
is designed to replace the current means of registration, which involves manual marking of the eye to assess rotational
moverment.

The VISX STAR System performs Standard LASIK, CustomVue laser vision correction, and PRK. It also performs
speciatized procedures known as Custom-CAP, which treats patients who previously had LVC surgery resulting in
symptomatic decentered ablations (a condition that affects fewer than 4,000 patients per year) and PhotoTherapeutic
Keratectomy, or PTK, which treats corneas that are scarred or have irregularities from prior infection, trauma or underlying
corneal disease.

VISX WaveScan System. The WaveScan system displays refractive information about the patient’s individual optical
system in the form of an aberration map. This unique map, similar to a fingerprint for each patient’s eye, offers objective
information about refractive errors associated with nearsightedness, farsightedness and astigmatism, as well as information
about higher order aberrations that were previously unmeasurable by any other instrument.

VISX Treatment Cards. Each treatment card provides the user with specific access to proprietary software and is
required to operate the VISX STAR System. Because treatment cards are required to perform procedures, there is a strong
correlation between treatment card sales and the number of procedures performed on VISX STAR Systems. Types of VISX
treatment cards include: VisionKey Cards for performing standard LASIK procedures, which in the United States carries a
license fee for each procedure that is purchased; CustomVue Cards for performing Custom LASIK, which carry a worldwide
license fee for each procedure that is purchased; Custom-CAP Cards for performing laser vision correction with a previously
decentered ablation, which carry a worldwide license fee for each procedure that is purchased; and the PTK Card, which is
offered to physicians at a nominal charge to treat certain types of corneal pathologies. Sales of our treatment cards and
associated procedure fees represented approximately 15%, 8% and 0% of our net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Microkeratomes. In the refractive surgery market, we are a worldwide distributor of the Amadeus I microkeratome
system and SurePass microkeratome blades.

Eye Care Product Line

In the eye care market, we focus on creating products that make contact lenses more comfortable, simplify contact
lens care and promote ocular health. Qur eye care business develops, manufactures and markets a full range of contact lens
care products for use with most types of contact lenses. QOur comprehensive product offering includes single-bottle multi-
purpose cleaning and disinfecting solutions and hydregen peroxide-based disinfecting solutions to destroy harmful
microorganisms in and on the surface of contact lenses; daily cleaners to remove undesirable film and deposits from contact
lenses; enzymatic cleaners to remove protein deposits from contact lenses; and lens rewetting drops to provide added wearing
comfort.

Multi-Purpose Solurions. We market our Complete brand single-bottle multi-purpose solutions, a convenient, one
bottle chemical disinfecting system for soft contact lenses, on a worldwide basis. Complete MoisturePLUS is the first single-
bottle, multi-purpose solution with dual demulcents to help prevent contact lens dryness and discomfort and promote ocular
health. Sales of our multi-purpose solutions represented approximately 14.8%, 17% and 21% of our net sales in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. We also offer Complete Blink-N-Clean, a unique in-the-eye lens cleaning solution.

Hydrogen Peroxide-Based Solutions. We offer products that use hydrogen peroxide-based disinfection systems. Qur
leading hydrogen peroxide brands are the Oxysept I Step, Ultracare, Consept | Step and Consept F solutions. Sales of our
hydrogen peroxide-based solutions represented approximately 6%, 9%, and 14% of our net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Lens Rewetting Solutions. We believe that dryness and discomfort are the reasons most often cited for discontinuing
contact lens wear. We have introduced contact lens rewetting drops designed to provide prolonged lubrication and improved
protection against dryness. Our products in this category include Complete and blink rewetting solutions.

Research and Development
Our long-term success is dependent on the introduction of new and innovative products in both the ophthalmic

surgical and eye care businesses. Our research and development strategy is to develop proprietary products for vision
correction that are safe and effective and address unmet needs. As we implement this strategy, we will seek to develop new




products with measurable benefits such as increased practitioner productivity, better patient outcomes and reduced costs to
health care payors and providers.

Research and development activities for our cataract / implant business are focused on expanding our product
portfolio. We have focused on six areas of opportunity to provide superior outcomes:

*  Small incision surgery — work with a variety of advanced lens materials to enable small incision surgery which
results in less induced astigmatism, rapid stabilization of the wound and faster visval rehabilitation.

*  Advances in phacoemulsification — technology providing surgeons with high levels of cutting efficiency but with
less heat and turbulence directed into the ocular environment enabling potential for more effective and safer
cataract extraction procedures,

*  Restoring accommodation following cataract surgery — following cataract surgery, the eye loses its ability to
accommodate, or shift its field of focus. Through the development of multifocal and accommodating IOLs, we
can provide for the full range of vision following cataract surgery.

+  Improving quality of vision — advancements in optics and optical surface designs.

*  Reducing posterior capsular opacification, or PCO, following cataract surgery — PCQO is a clouding of the
posterior portion of the capsular bag that occurs in some patients following cataract surgery. Currently, treatment
of moderate to severe PCO typically requires a laser procedure.

*  Greater ease of use for practitioners — developmeant of intraocular lens designs and advanced insertion devices,
which allow for easier handling in the operating room and greater surgeon control.

In the area of laser vision correction, our research and development efforts are focused on advancements in LASIK
and adjunctive technologies. Current projects include expanded treatment applications for custom wavefront guided LASIK,
including wavefront guided treatment of presbyopia. Further new product development includes advances in ablation
technology, accuracy and reliability in wavefront capture and intraoperative monitoring.

Our research and development efforts in the eye care business are aimed at developing proprietary systems that are
effective and more convenient for customers to use, which we believe will result in longer, more comfortable lens wear and a
higher rate of compliance with recommended lens care procedures. Qur efforts include seeking formulations that provide
prolonged lubrication, improved ocular health and protection against dryness, and enhanced cleaning and disinfection without
irritation. Qur research and development efforts have resulted in the continued development of our flagship Complete brand
multi-purpose solution and blink rewetter solutions, with further advancements currently in development. We are also
working to develop over-the-counter artificial tear products.

We plan to supplement our research and development activities with a commitment to identifying and obtaining new
technologies through in-licensing, technological collaborations and joint ventures, including the establishment of research
relationships with academic institutions and individual researchers.

We spent approximately $66.1 million in 2006, $61.6 million in 2005 and $45.6 million in 2004 on research and
development. Total research and development expense in 2005 was $552.4 million, including a non-cash in-process research
and development charge of $490.8 million, and in 2004 was $73.7 million, including a non-cash in-process research and
development charge of $28.1 million. Research and development spending represented 6.6%, 6.7%, and 6.1% of total net
sales in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. We believe that the continuing introduction of new products supplied by our
research and development efforts and in-licensing opportunities are critical to our success. There are, however, inherent
uncertainties associated with the research and development efforts and the regulatory process and we cannot assure you that
any of our research projects will result in new products that we can commercialize,

Customers, Sales and Marketing

Customers. Qur primary customers for our cataract / implant and laser vision correction products include surgeons
who perform eye surgeries, hospitals and ambulatory surgical centers. The primary customers for our eye care products
include optometrists, opticians, ophthalmologists, retailers and clinics that sell directly to consumers. These retailers include
mass merchandisers such as Wal-Mart, drug store chains such as Walgreen, hospitals, commercial optical chains and food
stores. During 2006, 2005 and 2004, no customer accounted for over 10% of our net sales.
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Sales and Marketing. Our sales efforts and promotional activities with respect to our cataract / implant and laser
vision correction products are primarily aimed at eye care professionals such as ophthalmologists who use our produgcts.
Similarly, our sales and promotiona! efforts in contact lens care are primarily directed towards optometrists, opticians, optical
shops, ophthalmologists and consumers, We often provide samples of our eye care products to practitioners to distribute to
their patients to encourage trial use of our solutions. In addition, we advertise in professional journals and have a direct mail
program of descriptive product literature and scientific information that we provide to specialists in the eye care field. We
have also developed training modules and seminars to update physicians regarding evolving technology. A number of our
marketing programs include peer-to-peer marketing with practitioners educating other practitioners about the benefits of our
products.

Recognizing the importance of our sales force’s expertise, we invest significant time and expense to provide training
in such areas as product features and benefits. Training for our ophthalmic surgical products sales force focuses on providing
sales personnel with technical knowledge regarding the scope and characteristics of the products they are selling and
developing skills in presenting and demonstrating those products. In addition to providing product knowledge for
communication to eye care practitioners, our eye care products sales force focuses on developing the necessary skills to sell
to buyers for mass merchandisers and large drug store chains. This sales force also seeks to develop relationships with eye
care professionals who may purchase our products and recommend them to their patients.

Each of our products is marketed under its brand name and our corporate name. We have a worldwide marketing
organization which helps us to set overall marketing direction, promote consistent global brand positioning and allocate
marketing resources to products and regions offering the greatest return. In order to remain sensitive to cultural differences
and varying health care systems throughout the world, tactical execution of marketing programs and all sales activities are
carried out at the regional level.

We also use third-party distributors for the distribution of our products in smaller geographic markets. No individua)
agent or distributor accounted for more than 10% of our net sales for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Traditionally, we have realized a seasonal trend in our sales, with the smallest portion of our cataract / implant
business sales being realized in the first quarter and with sales gradually increasing from the second to fourth quarter. This
has been driven predominantly by seasonality in the sales of capital equipment when customers increase spending as they
reach their year end and are able to spend the remainder of their annual budgeted amounts. In the laser vision correction
business, the seasonal trend favors the highest portion of sales in the first quarter.

Manufacturing, Operations and Facilities

We manufacture eye care products at our facilities in Hangzhou, China, and Madrid, Spain, and we manufacture
surgical products at our facilities in Santa Clara, California, Afiasco, Puerto Rico, Groningen, Netherlands and Uppsala,
Sweden.

In November 2003, we entered into an agreement with Nicholas Piramal India Limited for the supply of neutralizing
tablets primarily used with our hydrogen-peroxide lens care products and unit dose solutions. Nicholas Piramal is a sole-
source supplier of these products. If supply of these products were interrupted, we cannot assure you that we would be able to
obtain replacement products, and our eye care product sales may be negatively impacted in a material manner.

We have historically outsourced the manufacture of our phacoemulsification equipment to third parties, and we
depend on single and limited sources for several key components. Our Sovereign system is manufactured by Carl Zeiss
Ophthalmic Systems, the manufacturing and supply arrangement for which will terminate at the end of May 2007. Our
Sovereign Compact system is manufactured by Sanmina-SCI under a manufacturing and supply agreement, which terminates
in December 2007. If Sanmina-SCI were to cease manufacturing for any reason, we cannot assure you that we would be able
to replace them on terms favorable to us, or at all.

The manufacture of VISX STAR Systems and WaveScan Systems is a complex operation involving numerous
procedures, and the completed systems must pass a series of quality control and reliability tests before shipment. We buy
from various independent suppliers many components that are either standard or built to our proprietary specifications, and
which are then assembled at our California facility. We also contract with third parties for the manufacture or assembly of
certain components, We depend on single and limited sources for several key components. Please see our risk factors for
discussion of the risks related to our reliance on single and limited source vendors.
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Governmental Regulation

United States. Our products and operations are subject to extensive and rigorous regulation by the FDA. The FDA
regulates the research. testing, manufacturing, safety, labeling, storage, recordkeeping, promotion, distribution and
production of medical devices in the United States to provide reasonable assurance that medical products distributed
domestically are safe and effective for their intended uses. The Federal Trade Commission also regulates the advertising of
our products.

Under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, medical devices are classified into one of three clagses — Class I,
Class II or Class IIl — depending on the degree of risk associated with each medical device and the extent of control needed
to provide reasonable assurances with respect to safety and effectiveness. Our current products are Class I, II and III medical
devices, with most being classified as Class I devices and our IOLs being classified as Class III devices in the United States,
subject to certain exceptions.

Class I devices are those for which safety and effectiveness can be reasonably assured by adherence to a set of
guidelines, which include compliance with the applicable portions of the FDA’s Quality System Regulation, facility
registration and product listing, reporting of adverse medical events, and appropriate, truthful and non-misteading labeling,
advertising, and promotional materials, referred to as the general controls. Some Class 1, also called Class I reserved, devices
also require premarket clearance by the FDA through the 510(k) premarket notification process described below. Many Class
I products are exempt from the premarket notification requirements.

Class I devices are those which are subject to the generat controls and may require adherence to certain
performance standards or other special controls (as specified by the FDA) and clearance by the FDA: Premarket review and
clearance by the FDA for these devices is accomplished through the 510(k) premarket notification procedure. For most Class
II devices, the manufacturer must submit to the FDA a premarket notification, demonstrating that the device is “substantially
equivalent” to a legally marketed device.

If the FDA agrees that the device is substantially equivalent, it will grant clearance to commercially market the
device. By regulation, the FDA is required to complete its review of a 510(k) within 90 days of submission of the
notification, As a practical matter, clearance often takes longer. The FDA may require further information, including clinical
data, 1o make a determination regarding substantial equivalence. If the FDA determines that the device, or its intended use, is
not “substantially equivalent,” the FDA will place the device, or the particular use of the device, into Class I11, and the device
sponsor must then fulfill much more rigorous premarketing requirements, known as premarket approval.

A Class ITI product is a product that has a new intended use or uses advanced technology that is not substantially
equivalent to a use or technology with respect to a legally marketed device, or for which there is not sufficient information to
establish performance standards or special controls to provide reasonable assurance of the device’s safety and effectiveness
and the product is represented to be for use in supporting or sustaining human life or for a use that is of substantial
importance in preventing impairment of human health or presents a potential unreasonable risk of illness or injury. The safety
and effectiveness of Class [1I devices cannot be reasonably assured solely by the general controls and the other requirements
described above. Therefore, these devices almost always require formal clinical studies to demonstrate safety and
effectiveness.

FDA approval of a premarket approval application is required before marketing a Class HI product. The premarket
approval application process is much more demanding than the 510(k) premarket notification process. A premarket approval
application, which is intended to provide reasonable assurance that the device is safe and effective, must be supported by
extensive data, inciuding data from preclinical studies and human clinical trials and existing research material, and must
contain a full description of the device and its components, a full description of the methods, facilities and controls used for
manufacturing, and proposed labeling, Following receipt of a premarket approval application, once the FDA determines that
the application is sufficiently complete to permit a substantive review, the FDA will accept the application for review. The
FDA, by statute and by regulation, has 180 days to review a filed premarket approval application. although the review of an
application more often occurs over a significantly longer period of time. A maximum time of 360 days is allowed to respond
to deficiencies.

In approving a premarket approval application or clearing a 510(k} notification, the FD)A may also require some
form of postmarket surveillance, whereby the manufacturer follows certain patient groups for a number of years and makes
pericdic reports to the FDA on the clinical status of those patients when necessary to protect the public health or to provide
additional safety and effectiveness data for the device. '




When FDA approval of a device requires human clinical trials, and if the clinical trial presents a “significant risk”
(as defined by the FDA) to human health, the device sponsor is required to file an investigational device exemption, or IDE,
application with the FDA and obtain investigational device exemption approval prior to commencing the human clinical trial.
If the clinical trial is considered a “nonsignificant risk,” investigational device exemption submission to the FDA is not
required. Instead, only approval from the Institutional Review Board overseeing the clinical trial is required, although the
study is still subject to FDA oversight under other provisions of the IDE regulation. Human clinical studies are generally
required in connection with approval of Class III devices and to a much lesser extent for Class I and I1 devices. Clinical trials
conducted abroad for FDA approval must comply with both local regulations and FDA guidance.

Continuing Food and Drug Administration Regulation. After the FDA permits a device to enter commercial
distribution, numerous regulatory requirements apply. These include:

* the registration and listing regulation, which requires manufacturers to register all manufacturing facilities and list
all medical devices placed into commercial distribution;

* the Quality System Regulation, which requires manufacturers to follow elaborate design, testing, control,
documentation and other quality assurance procedures during the manufacturing process;

*  labeling regulations;

* the FDA’s general prohibition against promoting products for unapproved or “off-label” uses; and the Medical
Device Reporting regulation, which requires that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may have caused
or contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a
death or serious injury if it were (o reoccur;

*  Medical Device Reporting and recall requirements;
*  Device tracking requirements; and
*  Post market surveillance requirements.

Failure to comply with the applicable U.S. medical device regulatory requirements could result in, among other
things, warning letters, fines, injunctions, civil penalties, repairs, replacements, refunds, recalls or seizures of products, total
or partial suspension of production, the FDA’s refusal to grant future premarket clearances or approvals, withdrawals or
suspensions of current product applications, and criminal prosecution.

Governmental Reimbursement. In the United States, a significant percentage of the patients who receive our IOLs
are covered by the federal Medicare program. When a cataract extraction with IOL implantation is performed in an
ambulatory surgical center, Medicare provides the ambulatory surgical center with a fixed facility fee that includes a
recommended $150 allowance to cover the cost of the IOL. After the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS)
(formerly the Health Care Financing Administration), awarded “new technology intraocular lens” status to our Tecnis FOL in
2006, the reimbursement rate for Tecnis 10Ls implanted in ambulatory surgical centers increased an additional $50 until
February 2011. When the procedure is performed in a hospital outpatient department, the hospital’s reimbursement is based
on a prospective payment that includes payment for the [OL. The allowance is the same for all IOLs.

At the end of 2003, Congress enacted the Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modemnization Act of 2003,
Among other things, this legislation requires CMS to establish a new Medicare payment system for services performed in
ambulatory surgical centers. This new payment system is expected to be effective January 1, 2008, At this time, it is not
possible to determine how this new payment system could affect our revenues or financial condition.

In addition, if implemented, price controls or other cost-containment measures could materially and adversely affect
our revenues and financial condition.

We cannot predict the likelihood or pace of any other significant legislative or regulatory action in these areas, nor
can we predict whether or in what form health care legislation being formulated by various governments will be passed.
Medicare reimbursement rates are subject to change at any time. We also cannot predict with precision what effect such
governmental measures would have if they were ultimately enacted into law. In general, however, we believe that legislative
and regulatory initiatives will likely continue, and the adoption of new payment or coverage policies can have some impact
on our business.

12




International Regulation. Internationally, the regulation of medical devices is also complex. In Europe, our products
are subject to extensive regulatory requirements. The regulatory regime in the European Union for medica! devices became
mandatory in June 1998. It requires that medical devices may only be placed on the market if they do not compromise safety
and health when properly installed, maintained and used in accordance with their intended purpose. National laws
conforming to the European Union’s legislation regulaie our IOLs and eye care products under the medical devices
regulatory system, rather than the more variable national requirements under which they were formerly regulated. The
European Union medical device laws require manufacturers to declare that their products conform to the essential regulatory
requirements after which the products may be placed on the market bearing the CE marking. The manufacturers’ quality
systems for products in all but the lowest risk classification are also subject to certification and audit by an independent
notified body. In Europe, particular emphasis is being placed on more sophisticated and faster procedures for the reporting of
adverse events to the competent authorities.

In Japan, premarket approval and clinical studies are required, as is governmental pricing approval for medical
devices. Clinical studies are subject to a stringent “Good Clinical Practices” standard. Approval time frames from the
Japanese Ministry, Health, Labor and Welfare (MHLW) vary from simple notifications to review periods of one or more
years, depending on the complexity and risk level of the device. In addition, importation into Japan of medical devices is
subject to “Good Import Practices” regulations. As with any highly regulated market, significant changes in the regulatory
environment could adversely affect future sales.

In many of the other foreign countries in which we market our products, we may be subject to regulations affecting,
among other things:

¢ product standards;

+ packaging requirements;

* labeling requirements;

» quality system requirements;
* import restrictions;

« tariff regulations;

* duties; and

*  tax requirements.

Many of the regulations applicable to our devices and products in these countries are similar to those of the FDA. In
many countries, the national health or social security organizations require our products to be qualified before they can be
marketed with the henefit of reimbursement eligibility.

Fraud and Abuse. We are subject to various federal and state Jaws pertaining to health care fraud and abuse,
including anti-kickback laws, physician self-referral laws, and false claims laws. Violations of these laws are punishable by
criminal and/or civil sanctions, including, in some instances, imprisonment and exclusion from participation in federal and
state health care programs, including Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans Administration (VA) health programs and TRICARE.
Although we believe that our operations are in material compliance with such laws, we can give no assurances as these laws
are far-reaching and their interpretation is subject to change. As a result, we could be required to alter one or more of our
practices to remain in compliance with these laws. The occurrence of one or more violations of these laws could result in a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Anti-Kickback Laws. Qur operationé are subject to federal and state anti-kickback laws. Provisions of the Social
Security Act, commonly known as the “Anti-Kickback Law,” prohibit entities, such as our company, from knowingly and

wilifully offering, paying, soliciting or receiving any form of remuneration in return for, or to induce:

*  the referral of persons eligible for benefits under a federal health care program, including Medicare, Medicaid, the
VA health programs and TRICARE, or a state health program; or
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» the recommendation, purchase, lease or order of items or services that are covered, in whole or in part, by a
federal health care program or state health programs.

The Anti-Kickback Law may be violated when even one purpose, as opposed to a primary or sole purpose, of a
payment is to induce referrals or other business. Federal regulations create a small number of “safe harbors.” Practices which
meet all the criteria of an applicable safe harbor will not be deemed to violate the statute; practices that do not satisfy all
elements of a safe harbor do not necessarily violate the statute, although such practices may be subject to scrutiny by
enforcement agencies.

Violation of the Anti-Kickback Law is a felony, punishable by substantial fines and (for individuals) imprisonment.
In addition, the Department of Health and Human Services may impose civil penalties and exctude violators from
participation in federal or state health care programs (including Medicare, Medicaid, VA health programs, and TRICARE); if
a manufacturer is excluded, its products are not eligible for reimbursement by these programs. Many states have adopted
similar anti-kickback laws, which vary in scope and may extend to payments intended to induce the recommendation,
purchase, or order of products reimbursed by private payors as well as federal or state health care programs.

Employee Relations

At December 31, 2006, we employed approximately 3,800 persens throughout the world, including approximately
1,000 in the United States. None of our U.S.-based employees are represented by unions. We consider our relations with our
employees to be, in general, very good.

Global Sales

Net sales in the United States were approximately $415.3 million, $302.5 million and $186.2 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our international sales represented approximately $582.2 million,
$618.2 million and $555.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, or 58%, 67%, and
75% of total sales, respectively. Sales in Japan were approximately $138.7 million, $174.3 million and $191.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Qur products are sold in over 60 countries. Sales are attributed
to the country where the customer resides. Marketing activities are coordinated on a worldwide basis, and resident
management teams provide leadership and infrastructure for introduction of new products in the local markets. For additional
information relating to our geographic operating segments, see Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Raw Materials

We use a diverse and broad range of raw materials in the design, development and manufacture of our products.
While we do fabricale or formulate some of our materials at our manufacturing facilities, we purchase most of the materials
and components used in manufacturing our preducts from external suppliers. In addition, we purchase some supplies from
single sources for reasons of quality assurance, sole source availability, cost effectiveness or constraints resulting from
regulatory requirements. Several of our materials are sole sourced, including the source of hyaluronic acid used in
manufacturing our Healon family of products. However, we work closely with our suppliers to assure continuity of supply
while maintaining high quality and reliability. Where we buy a material from one source and other sources are available,
alternative supplier options are generally considered and identified, although we do not typically pursue regulatory
qualification of alternative sources due to the strength of our existing supplier relationships and the time and expense
associated with the regulatory process. A change in suppliers could require significant effort or investment by us in
circumstances where the items supplied are integral to the performance of our products or incorporate unique technology.

Environmental Matters

Our facilities and operations are subject to federal, state and local environmental and occupational health and safety
requirements of the United States and foreign countries, including those relating to discharges of substances to the air, water
and land, the handling, storage and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes and the cleanup of properties affected by
pollutants. We believe we are currently in material comphance with such requirements and do not currently anticipate any
material adverse effect on our business or financial condition as a result of our efforts to comply with such requirements.

In the future, federal, state or local governments in the United States or foreign countries could enact new or more
stringent laws or issue new or more stringent regulations concerning environmental and worker health and safety matters that
could affect our operations. Also, in the future, contamination may be found to exist at our current or former facilities or off-
site locations where we have sent wastes. We could be held Jiable for such newly-discovered contamination which could have
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a material adverse effect on our business or financial condition. In addition, changes in environmental and worker health and
safety requirements could have a material effect on our business or financial condition.

Competition

The markets for our products are intensely competitive and are subject to significant technological change.
Companies within the cataract / implant and laser vision correction markets compete on technological teadership and
innovation, quality and efficacy of products, relationships with eye care professionals and health care providers, breadth and
depth of product offering and pricing. We believe we have the second largest cataract / implant business on a global basis
behind Alcon, Inc., a subsidiary of Nestle S.A. Other competitors in the cataract / implant business include Bausch & Lomb,
Staar Surgical, Eyeonics, Hoya, Santen, Zeiss-Meditec and Corneal. We believe we have the world’s largest laser vision
correction business. Other competitors include Alcon, Bausch & Lomb, Zeiss-Meditec, Moria and Nidek, We believe our
competitive position is enhanced by our global distribution network, our focus on technology and customer relationships and
product quality. Our ability to compete against larger companies may be impeded by having fewer resources to devote to
research and development, sales and marketing.

Companies within the eye care market compete primarily on recommendations from eye care professionals,
customer brand loyalty, product quality and pricing. We believe we have one of the top three largest contact lens care
businesses on a global basis along with Alcon and Bausch & Lomb. Other competitors include CIBA Vision Corporation, a
unit of Novartis, and, within the Japan region, Rohto and Menicon. Our competitive position in the eye care business is
enhanced by our strong presence outside the United States and our knowledge of these foreign markets, as well as
technological advancement. Our larger competitors have more resources to devote to advertising and promotion, and this may
negatively impact our competitive position.

Our competitors may develop technologies and products that are more effective or less costly than any of our current
or future products or that could render our products obsolete or noncompetitive. Some of these competitors have substantially
more resources and marketing capabilities than we do. Among other things, these consolidated companies can spread their
research and development costs over much broader revenue bases than we can and can influence customer and distnbutor
buying decisions. Our inability to produce and develop products that compete effectively against those of our competitors
could result in a material reduction in sales.

Patents, Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

Patents and other proprietary rights are important to the success of our business. We likewise utilize trade secrets,
know-how, continuing technological innovations and licensing opportunities to develop and maintain our competitive
position. We protect our proprietary rights through a variety of methods, including confidentiality agreements and proprietary
information agreements with vendors, employees, consultants and others who have access to our proprietary information.

We have rights to over 1,270 granted and issued patents and over 1,000 pending patent applications relating to
aspects of the technology incorporated in many of our products. The scope and duration of our proprietary protection varies
throughout the world by jurisdiction and by individual product. In particular, patents for individual products extend for
varying periods of time according to the date a patent application is filed, the date a patent is granted and the term of patent
protection available in the jurisdiction granting the patent. Our proprietary protection often affords us the opportunity to
enhance our position in the marketplace by precluding our competitors from using or otherwise exploiting our technology.

We believe trademark protection is particularly important to the maintenance of the recognized brand names under
which we market our products. The scope and duration of our trademark protection varies throughout the world, with some
countries protecting trademarks only as long as the mark is used, and others requiring registration of the mark and the
payment of registration fees. We own or have rights to material trademarks or trade names that we use in conjunction with
the sale of our products, which include, among others, Advanced Medical Optics®, Amadeus™, AMO®, Baervelds®, blink™,
Blink-n-Clean®, ClariFlex®, Complete® , Complete MoisturePLUS"™, Complete Revitalize® ,Consept®, Consept 1 Step”,
Custom Vue®, Healon®, Healon3®, Healon GV®, OptiEdge”, Oxysept®, Oxysept 1 Step, ReZoom® , Sensar®, Sovereign®,
Sovereign Compact” ", Stabileyes®, Star 54 IR™ Tecnis®, The Unfolder®, UltraCare®, Ulirazyme®, Verisyse' ", VISX®,
WaveScan®, and WhiteStar®. Generally, our products are marketed under one of these trademarks or brand names. Amadeus
is a trademark of SIS Ltd.

We are also a party to several license agreements relating to various aspects of our products; however, we do not
believe the loss of any one license would materially affect our business. :
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We believe that our patents, trademarks and other proprictary rights are important to the development and conduct
of our business and the marketing of our products. As a result, we aggressively protect our intellectual property. However, we
do not believe that any one of our patents or trademarks is currently of material importance in relation to our overall sales.

Information Available on our Website

Qur Internet address is www.amo-inc.com. We make available on our website, free of charge, our filings made with
the SEC electronically, including those on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q, and Form 8-K, and any amendments to those filings.
Copies are available as soon as reasonably practicable after we have filed or furnished these documents to the SEC
(www.sec.gov), Our Code of Ethics, which applies to all employees, is available on our website, Qur Code of Ethics is also
available in print to any stockholder who requests it from our Investor Relations department, (714) 247-8348. Any changes to
the Code of Ethics or waivers granted to our chief executive officer, chief financial officer or controller by our board of
directors will be publicized on our website.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following risks and other information. These risks and uncertainties are not the
only ones we face. Others that we do not know about now, or that we do not now think are important, may also impair our
business. The risks described in this section could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated.

Risks Relating to Qur Business
We may not successfully make or integrate acquisitions or enter into strategic alliances.

As part of our business strategy, we intend to pursue selected acquisitions and strategic alliances and partnerships.
We compete with other ophthalmic surgical products and eye care companies, among others, for these opportunities and we

cannot assure you that we will be able to effect strategic alliances, partnerships or acquisitions on commercially reasonable
terms or at all. Even if we do enter into these transactions, we may experience:

* delays in realizing the benefits we anticipate, or we may not realize the benefits we anticipate at all;
*  difficulties in integrating any acquired companies and products into our existing business;

» attrition of key personnel from acquired businesses;

*  costs or charges;

* difficulties or delays in obtaining regulatory approvals;

*  higher costs of integration than we anticipated; or

» unforeseen operating difficulties that require significant financial and managerial resources that would otherwise
be available for the ongoing development or expansion of our existing operations.

Consummating these transactions could also result in the incurrence of additional debt and related interest expense,
as well as unforeseen contingent liabilities, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. We may also issue additional equity in connection with these transactions, which would
dilute our existing stockholders.

We conduct a significant amount of our sales and operations outside of the United States, which subjects us to additional
business risks that may cause our profitabilily to decline.

Because we manufacture and sell a significant portion of our products in a number of foreign countries, our business
is subject to risks associated with doing business internationally. In particular, our products are sold in over 60 countries, and
most of our manufacturing facilities are located outside the continental United States, in Afiasco, Puerto Rico; Madrid, Spain;
Hangzhou, China, Uppsala, Sweden and Groningen, Netherlands. In 2006, on an historical basis, we derived approximately
$582.2 million, or 58%, of our net sales, from sales of our products outside of the United States, including 14% of our net
sales in Japan. We intend to continue to pursue growth opportunities in sales internationaily, which could expose us to greater
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risks associated with internationa! sales and operations. Our international operations are, and will continue 1o be, subject to a
number of risks and potential costs, including:

» unexpected changes in foreign regulatory requirements;

»  differing local product preferences and product requirements;

* fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates;

+ political and economic instability;

«  cultural differences;

+  changes in foreign medical reimbursement and coverage policies and programs;
«  diminished protection of intellectual property in some countries outside of the United States;
» trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;

» difficulty in staffing and managing foreign operations;

e differing labor regulations; and

« potentially negative consequences from changes in tax laws.

Any of these factors may, individually or as a group, have a material adverse effect on our business and results of
operations.

As we expand our existing international operations, we may encounter new risks. For example, as we focus on
building our international sales and distribution networks in new geographic regions, we must continue to develop
relationships with qualified local distributors and trading companies. If we are not successful in developing these
relationships, we may not be able to grow sales in these geographic regions. These or other similar risks could adversely
affect our revenue and profitability.

We are exposed to foreign currency risks from our international operations that could adversely affect our financial
resullts.

A significant portion of our sales and operating costs are, and from time to time, a portion of our indebtedness may
be, denominated in foreign currencies. We are therefore exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates between the U.S. dollar
and the currencies in which our foreign operations receive revenues and pay expenses, including debt service. Our
consolidated financial results are denominated in U.S. dollars and therefore, during times of a strengthening U.S. dollar, our
reported international sales and earnings will be reduced because the tocal currency will translate into fewer U.S. dollars. In
addition, the assets and liabilities of our non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at
the balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the
period. Translation adjustments arising from the use of differing exchange rates from period to period are included in
“Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” in “Stockholders’ equity.” Gains and losses resulting from foreign
currency fluctuations and remeasurements relating to foreign operations deemed to be operating in U.S. dollar functional
currency are included in “Other, net” in our consolidated statements of operations. Accordingly, changes in currency
exchange rates will cause our net earnings and stockholders’ equity to fluctuate. We use hedging methods on a regular basis
to manage the foreign exchange risk. This has historically been accomplished through the use of options and forward
contracts.

If we do not introduce new commercially successful products in a timely manner, our products may become obsolete over
time, customers may not buy our products and our revenue and profitability may decline.

Demand for our products may change in ways we may not anticipate because of:

*  evolving customer needs;




+ the introduction of new products and technologies;
* evolving surgical practices; and
* evolving industry standards.

Without the timely introduction of new commercially successful products and enhancements, our products may
become obsolete over time, in which case our sales and operating results would suffer. The success of our new product
offerings will depend on several factors, including our ability to:

= properly identify and anticipate customer needs;

* commercialize new products in a cost-effective and timely manner;

* manufacture and deliver products in sufficient volumes on time;

*  obtain regulatory approval for such new products;

» differentiate our offerings from competitors’ offerings;

» achieve positive clinical outcomes;

*  satisty the increased demands by health care payors, providers and patients for lower-cost procedures;
* innovate and develop new materials, product designs and surgical techntiques; and

e provide adequate medical and/or consumer education relating to new products and attract key surgeons 1o
advocate these new products,

Moreover, innovations generally will require a substantial investment in research and development before we can
determine the commercial viability of these innovations and we may not have the financial resources necessary to fund these
innovations. In addition, even if we are able to successfully develop enhancements or new generations of our products, these
enhancements or new generations of preducts may not produce revenue in excess of the costs of development and they may
be quickly rendered obsolete by changing customer preferences or the introduction by our competitors of products
embodying new technologies or features.

We rely on certain suppliers and manufacturers for raw materials and other products and are vulnerable to fluctuations
in the availability and price of such products and services.

We purchase certain raw materials and other products from third-party suppliers and vendors, sometimes from
limited sources. Qur suppliers and vendors may not provide the raw materials or other products needed by us in the quantities
requested, in a timely manner, or at a price we are willing to pay. In the event any of our third-party suppliers or vendors
were to become unable or unwilling to continue to provide important raw materials and third-party products in the required
volumes and quality levels or in a timely manner, or if regulations affecting raw materials such as animal-based products
were to change, we would be required to identify and obtain acceptable replacement supply sources. We may not be able to
obtain alternative suppliers and vendors on a timely basis, or at all, which could result in lost sales because of our inability to
manufacture products containing such raw materials or deliver products we sell from certain suppliers. In addition, we also
rely on certain manufacturers for some of our products. We have historically outsourced the manufacture of our
phacoemulsification equipment to third parties. If we were unable to renew our third-party manufacturing agreements. or if
the manufacturers were to cease manufacturing any of these products for us for any reason, we may not be able to find
aiternative manufacturers on terms favorable to us, in a timely manner, or at all. If any of these events should occur, our
business, financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

We face intense competition, and our failure to compete effectively could have a material adverse effect on our
profitability and results of eperations.

We face intense competition in the markets for our ophthalmic surgical and eye care products and these markets are
subject to rapid and significant technological change. We have numerous competitors in the United States and abroad,
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including, among others, large companies such as Alcon, Inc., a publicly traded subsidiary of Nestie S.A.; Bausch & Lomb;
CIBA Vision Corporation. a unit of Novartis, among others. Many of our competitors have substantially more resources and
a greater marketing scale than we do. We may not be able to sustain our current levels of profitability and growth as
competitive pressures, including pricing pressure from competitors, increase. In addition, if we are unable to develop and
produce or market our products to effectively compete against our competitors, our operating resulis will materially suffer.
We also compete against a large number of providers of alternative vision correction solutions, some of which may have
greater financial resources than us. New or different methods of vision correction are continually being introduced. Any of
these competitive pressures could result in decreased demand for our products.

Because of our leading market position in the laser vision correction business, all of our competitors target our
market share in order to grow their own revenues. We can give no assurance that we will be able to maintain or grow our
existing market share and it may, in fact, be required to incur considerable expenditures in order to maintain or increase that
market share. Should our procedure market share decline, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
position, and results of operations.

Trends in the contact lens care market may negatively impact our eye care business.

Our eye care business is impacted by trends in the contact lens care market such as more simplified disinfection
systems and technological and medical advances in surgical techniques for the correction of vision impairment. Less
expensive one-bottle chemical disinfection systems have gained popularity among soft contact lens wearers instead of
peroxide-based lens care products. Also, the growing use and acceptance of daily, frequent replacement and extended wear
contact lenses and laser correction procedures, along with the other factors above, could have the effect of continuing to
reduce demand for lens care products generally. Our marketing and sales plans may not be appropriate or sufficient to
mitigate the effect of these trends on our eye care business and, as a result, our eye care business may suffer.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights, our business and prospects may be harmed.

Our ability to compete effectively is dependent upon our ability to protect and preserve the proprietary aspects of the
designs, processes, technologies and materials owned by, used by or licensed to us. We have numerous U.S. patents and
corresponding foreign patents that are expected to expire by their own terms at various dates and have additional patent
applications pending that may not result in issued patents. Our failure to secure these patents may limit our ability to protect
the intellectual property rights that these applications were intended to cover. Although we have attempted to protect our
proprietary property, technologies and processes both in the United States and in foreign countries through a combination of
patent law, trade secrets and non-disclosure agreements, these may be insufficient. Competitors may be able to design around
our patents to compete effectively with our products. We also may not be able to prevent third parties from using our
technology without our authorization, breaching any non-disclosure agreements with us, or independently developing
technology that is similar to ours. The use of our technology or similar technology by others could reduce or eliminate any
competitive advantage we have developed, cause us to lose sales or otherwise harm our business. If it became necessary for
us to resort to litigation to protect these rights, any proceedings could be costly and we may not prevail. Further, we may not
be able to obtain patents or other protections on our future innovations. In addition, because of the differences in foreign
patent and other laws concerning proprietary rights, our products may not receive the same degree of protection in foreign
countries as they would in the United States. We cannot assure you that:

» pending patent applications will result in issued patents;
*  patents issued to or licensed by us will not be challenged by third parties; or

+  our patents will be found to be valid or sufficiently broad to protect our technology or provide us with a
competitive advantage.

We may be subject to intellectual property litigation and infringement claims, which could cause us to incur significant
expenses or prevent us from selling our products.

There is a substantial amount of litigation over patent and other intellectual property rights in the ophthalmic
industry. The fact that we have patents issued to us for our products does not mean that we will always be able to successfully
defend our patents and proprietary rights against challenges or claims of infringement by our competitors. A successful claim
of patent or other intellectual property infringement or misappropriation against us could adversely affect our growth and
profitability, in some cases materially. We cannot assure you that our products do not and will not infringe issued patents or
other intellectual property rights of third parties. From time to time. in the ordinary course of business, we receive notices
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from third parties alleging infringement or misappropriation of the patent, trademark and other intellectual property rights of
third parties by us or our consumers in connection with the use of our products. We may be unaware of intellectual property
rights of others that may cover some of our technology. If someone claims that our products infringe their intellectual
property rights, whether or not such claims are meritorious, any resulting litigation could be costly and time consuming and
would divert the attention of our management and personnel from other business issues. The complexity of the technology
involved and the uncertainty of intellectual property litigation increase these risks. Claims of intellectual property
infringement also might require us to enter into costly royalty or license agreements (if available on acceptable terms or at
all). We also may be subject to significant damages or an injunction preventing us from manufacturing, selling or using some
or some aspect of our products. We may also need to redesign some of our products or processes to avoid future infringement
liability, Any of these adverse consequences could have a material adverse effect on our business and profitability.

Our manufacturing capacity may not be adequate to meet the demands of our business.

If our sales increase substantially, we may need to increase our production capacity. Any prolonged disruption in
the operation of our manufacturing facilities or those of our third-party manufacturers could materially harm our business.
We cannot assure you that if we choose to scale-up our manufacturing operations, we will be able to obtain regulatory
approvals in a timely fashion, which could affect our ability to meet product demand or result in additional costs.

We could experience losses due to product liability claims, product recalls or corrections.

We have in the past been, and continue to be, subject to product liability claims. In connection with our spin-off
from Allergan, we assumed the defense of any litigation invelving claims related to our business and agreed to indemnify
Allergan for all related losses, costs and expenses. As part of our risk management policy, we have obtained third-party
product liability insurance coverage. Product liability claims against us may exceed the coverage limits of our insurance
policies or cause us to record a self-insured loss. A product liability claim in excess of applicable insurance could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Even if any product liability loss is
covered by an insurance policy, these policies have substantial retentions or deductibles that provide that we will not receive
insurance proceeds until the losses incurred exceed the amount of those retentions or deductibles. To the extent that any
losses are below these retentions or deductibles, we will be responsible for paying these tosses. The payment of retentions or
deductibles for a significant amount of claims could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

in addition, we are subject to medical device reporting regulations that require us to report to the FDXA or similar
governmental authorities in other countries if our products cause or contribute to a death or serious injury or malfunction in a
way that would be reasonably likely to contribute to death or serious injury if the malfunction were to recur. The FDA and
similar governmental authorities in other countries have the authority to require the recall of our products in the event of
material deficiencies or defects in design or manufacturing. A government mandated or voluntary recall by us could occur as
a result of manufacturing errors or design defects, including defects in labeling. We have undertaken voluntary recalls of our
products in the past.

Any product liability claim or recall would divert managerial and financial resources and could harm our reputation
with customers. We cannot assure you that we will not have product liability claims or recalls in the future or that such
claims or recalls would not have a material adverse effect on our business.

In November 2006, we commenced a voluntary recall of eye care solutions, which resulted in a material decrease in
eye care sales and increased costs associated with the recall and the necessary corrective measures, including temporary
shutdown of production lines in China. We cannot assure you that we have fully anticipated the impact of this recall on our
eye care business or that we will be able to regain our market position, particularly in Asia. We also cannot assure you that
we will be able to address all associated manufacturing issues on a timely basis.

If we fail to maintain our relationships with health care providers, customers may not buy our products and our revenue
and profitability may decline.

We market our products to numerous health care providers, including eye care professionals, hospitals, ambulatory
surgical centers, corporate optometry chains and group purchasing organizations. We have developed and strive to maintain
close relationships with members of each of these groups who assist in product research and development and advise us on
how to satisfy the full range of surgeon and patient needs. We rely on these groups to recommend our products to their
patients and o other members of their organizations, The failure of our existing products and any new products we may

20




introduce to retain the support of these various groups could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We generally do not have long-term contracts with our customers.

We generally do not enter into long-term contracts with our customers. As a result, we are exposed to volatility in
the market for our products and loss of our customers. As a result, we may not be able to maintain our level of profitability. If
we are unable to market our products on terms we find acceptable, our financial condition and results of operations could
suffer materially.

Our business is subject to extensive government regulation.

Our products and operations are subject to extensive regulation in the United States by the FDA and various other
federal and state regulatory agencies, including with respect to regulatory clearance or approval of our products, clinical and
pre-clinical testing, product marketing, sales and distributions, adverse event reporting, prohibitions on fraud and abuse,
submission of false claims, kickbacks and rebates, and relationships with physicians and other referral sources. Additionally,
in many foreign countries in which we market our products, we are subject to similar regulations.

Before a new medical device or new use of, or claim for, or modification to an existing product can be marketed in
the United States, a company may have to apply for and receive either 510(k) clearance or premarket approval. Either process
can be expensive, lengthy and unpredictable. Also, the identification or increased frequency of safety or efficacy concerns
could result in product recall or withdrawal or revocation of our FDA clearance or premarket approval, Compliance with
these regulations is expensive and time-consuming. We, our subcontractors, and third party manufacturers are subject to
periodic and unannounced inspections by FDA and governmental authorities to assess compliance. If we fail to comply, the
FDA and state or other regulatory agencies have broad enforcement powers, including any of the following sanctions:

*  warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees, civil penalties and exclusion from participation in federal and
state health care programs; ’

*  repair, replacement, recall or seizure of our products;
*  operating restrictions, partial suspension or total shutdown of production;

*  refusing our requests for 510(k) clearance or premarket approval of new products, new intended uses or
modifications to existing products;

¢ withdrawing 510(k) clearance or premarket approvals that have already been granted; and
¢ criminal prosecution and penalties.

Product sales, introductions or modifications may be delayed or canceled as a result of U.S. or foreign regulatory
processes, which could cause our sales to decline. Failure to obtain regulatory clearance or approvals of new products or
product modifications we develop, any limitations imposed by regulatory agencies on new product uses or the costs of
obtaining regulatory clearance or approvals could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

We, our subcontractors, and third-party manufacturers are also subject to similar state requirements and licenses.
We, our subcontractors, and third-party manufacturers must comply with extensive recordkeeping and reporting requirements
and must make available our manufacturing facilities and records for unannounced and periodic inspections by governmental
agencies, including FDXA, state authorities and comparable agencies in other countries.

Health care initiatives and other cost-containment pressures could cause us to sell our products at lower prices,
resulting in less revenue to us. In the United States, a significant percentage of the patients who receive our intraocular lenses
are covered by the federal Medicare program. Changes in coverage or coding policies or reductions in Medicare
reimbursement rates and the implementation of other price controls could adversely affect our revenues and financial
condition, In addition, changes in existing regulatory requirements or adoption of new requirements could hurt our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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The clinical trial process required to obtain regulatory approvals is costly and uncertain, and could result in delays in new
product introductions or even an inability fo release a product.

The clinical trials required to obtain regulatory approvais for our products are complex and expensive and their
outcomes are uncertain. We incur substantial expense for, and devote significant time to, clinical trials but cannot be certain
that the trials will ever result in the commercial sale of a product. We may suffer significant setbacks in clinical trials, even
after earlier clinical trials showed promising results. Any of our products may produce undesirable side effects that could
cause us or regulatory authorities to interrupt, delay or halt clinical trials of a product candidate. We, the FDA, or another
regulatory authority may suspend or terminate clinical trials at any time if they or we believe the trial participants face
unacceptable health risks.

Cur business is subject to environmental regulations.

QOur facilities and operations are subject 1o federal, state and local environmental and occupational health and safety
requirements of the United States and foreign countries, including those relating to discharges of substances to the air, water
and land, the handling, storage and disposal of hazardous materials and wastes and the cleanup of properties affected by
pollutants, Failure to maintain compliance with these regulations could have a material adverse effect on our business or
financial condition.

In the future, federal, state or local governments in the United States or foreign countries could enact new or more
stringent laws or issue new or more stringent regulations concerning environmental and worker health and safety matters that
could affect our operations. Also, in the future, contamination may be found to exist at our current or former facilities or off-
site locations where we have sent wastes. We could be held liable for such newly discovered contamination which could
have a material adverse effect on our business or financial condition. In addition, changes in environmental and worker health
and safety requirements could have a material adverse effect on our business or financial condition.

If we fail to attract, hire and retain qualified personnel, we may not be able to design, develop, market or sell our products
or successfully manage our business.

Qur ability to attract new customers, retain existing customers and pursue our strategic objectives depends on the
continued services of our current management, sales, product development and technical personnel and our ability to identify,
attract, train and retain similar personnel. Competition for top management personnel is intense and we may not be able to
recruit and retain the personnel we need. The loss of any one of our management personnel, or our inability to identify,
attract, retain and integrate additional qualified management personnel, could make it difficult for us to manage our business
successfully and pursue our strategic objectives. Similarly, competition for skilled sales, product development and technical
persennel is intense and we may not be able to recruit and retain the personnel we need. The loss of services of a number of
key sales, product development and technical personnel, or our inability to hire new personnel with the requisite skills, could
restrict our ability to develop new products or enhance existing products in a timely manner, sell products to our customers or
manage our business effectively.

We may not be able to hire or retain qualified personnel if we are unable to offer competitive salaries and benefits. If
our stock does not perform well, we may have to increase our salaries and benefits, which would increase our expenses and
reduce our profitability.

We may be required to satisfy certain indemnification obligations to Allergan, and we may not be able to collect on
indemnification rights from Allergan.

Under the terms of our contribution and distribution agreement with Allergan, we and Allergan have each agreed to
indemnify each other from and after our spin-off with respect to the debt, liabilities and obligations retained by our respective
companies. These indemnification obligations could be significant. The ability to satisfy these indemnities, if called upon to
do so, will depend upon the future financial strength of each of our respective companies. We cannot determine whether we
will have to indemnify Allergan for any substantial obligations, and we may not have control over the settlement of certain
claims and lawsuits that may require partial indemnification by us. We also cannot assure you that, if Allergan is required to
indemnify us for any substantial obligations, Allergan will have the ability to satisfy those obligations.

We may be responsible for federal income tax liabilities that relate to the distribution of our common stock by Allergan.

Allergan has received a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service to the effect that the spin-off qualified as a tax-free
transaction. If either us or Allergan breach representations to each other or to the Internal Revenue Service, or if we or
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Allergan take or fail to take, as the case may be, actions that result in the spin-off failing to meet the requirements of a tax-
free spin-off pursuant to Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code, the party in breach will indemnify the other party for any
and all resulting taxes. If we were required to pay any of the potential taxes described above, the payment would have a
material adverse effect on our financial position.

If laser vision correction is not broadly accepted by both doctors and patients, our business, financial position and resulfs
of operations would be materially and adversely impacted.

Our business depends upon broad market acceptance of laser vision correction by both doctors and patients in the
United States and key international markets. Our profitability and growth will be largely dependent on increasing levels of
market acceptance and procedure growth, especially with regard to our higher-priced CustomVue™ procedure. Potential
complications and side effects of laser vision correction include: post-operative discomfort, corneal haze (an increase in the
light scattering properties of the cornea) during healing, glare/halos (undesirable visual sensations produced by bright lights),
decreases in contrast sensitivity, temporary increases in intraocular pressure in reaction to procedure medication, modest
fluctuations in refractive capabilities during healing, modest decrease in best corrected vision (i.e., with corrective eyewear),
unintended over- or under-corrections, regression of effect, disorders of corneal healing, corneal scars, corneal ulcers, and
induced astigmatism (which may result in blurred or double vision and/or shadow images). Some consumers may choose not
to undergo laser vision correction because of these complications or more general concerns relating to its safety and efficacy
or a resistance to surgery in general. Alternatively, some consumers may elect to delay undergoing laser vision correction
surgery because they believe improved technology or methods of treatment will be available in the near future. Should either
the ophthalmic community or the general population turn away from laser vision correction as an alternative Lo existing
methods of treating refractive vision disorders, or if fuwre technologies replaced laser vision correction, these developments
could delay or prevent market acceptance of laser vision correction, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position and results of operations.

The possibility of long-term side effects and adverse publicity regarding laser correction surgery could seriously harm our
business.

Laser vision correction is a relatively new procedure. Consequently, there is no long-term follow-up data beyond ten
years that might reveal additional complications or unknown side effects. Any future reported side effects, other adverse
events or unfavorable publicity involving patient outcomes resulting from the use of laser yision correction systems
manufactured by us or any participant in the laser vision correction market, may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position, and results of operations.

General economic conditions could have a negative impact on our business, financial position, and results of operations.

Because laser vision correction is not subject to reimbursement from third-party payors such as insurance companies
or government programs, the cost of laser vision correction is typically borne by individuals directly. Accordingly, weak or
uncertain economic conditions may cause individuals to be less willing to incur the procedure cost associated with laser
vision correction as was evidenced by VISX’s decline in revenues from 2002 compared to 2001 and from 2001 compared to
2000. A decline in economic conditions, especially in the United States, could result in a decline in the number of laser vision
correction procedures performed and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, and results of
operations.

While we devote significant resources to research and development, our research and development may not lead to new
products that achieve commercial success,

Our research and development process is expensive, prolonged, and entails considerable uncertainty. Because of the
complexities and uncertainties associated with ophthalmic research and development, products we are currently developing
may not complete the development process or obtain the regulatory approvals required to market such products successfully.
The products currently in our development pipeline may not be approved by regulatory entities and may not be commercially
successful, and our current and planned products could be surpassed by more effective or advanced products.

Any failure by third party financing entities to satisfy their obligations to us would negatively impact our financial
condition.

We have relationships with third party financing entities that purchase our products directly and subsequently lease
and/or sell these products to end-user customers, or provide financing directly to customers who purchase products directly
from us. Should any third party financing entity or entities fail or refuse to pay us in a timely manner or at all, it could
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negatively affect our cash flows and could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position and results of
operations.

If any of our employees, consultants or others breach their proprietary information agreements, our compeltitive position
could be harmed.

We protect our proprietary technology, in part, through proprietary information and inventions agreements with
employees, consultants and other parties. These agreements with employees and consulitants generally contain standard
provisions requiring those individuals to assign to us, without additional consideration, inventions conceived or reduced to
practice by them while employed or retained by us, subject to customary exceptions. If any of our employees, consultants or
others breach these agreements our competitors may learn of our trade secrets.

Risks Relating to Qur Indebtedness and Our Common Stock

We have a significant amount of debt. Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations and our ability fo meet our payment obligations under our debt.

We have a significant amount of debt and substantial debt service requirements. As of December 31, 2006, we had
$851.1 million of outstanding debt. Approximately $8.4 million of our revolving credit facility was reserved to support letters
of credit issued on our behalf and $291.6 million, exclusive of letters of credit, was available for future borrowings. In
addition, we anticipate funding up to $900 million of new debt in connection with our proposed acquisition of Intralase
Corp. See “Risks Relating to the Pending IntraLase Corp. Acquisition” beginning on page 24.

This level of debt could have significant consequences on our future operations, including:
. making it more difficult for us to meet our payment and other obligations under our outstanding debt;

. resulting in an event of default if we fail to comply with the financial and other restrictive covenants
contained in our debt agreements, which event of default could result in all of our debt becoming
immediately due and payable;

. reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and
other general corporate purposes, and limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for these purposes;

. subjecting us to the risk of increased sensitivity to interest rate increases on our indebtedness with variable
interest rates, including borrowings under our senior credit facility;

. limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, and increasing our vulnerability to, changes in our
business, the industry in which we operate and the general economy; and

. placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt or are less
leveraged.

Any of the above-listed factors could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations and our ability to meet our payment obligations under the notes and our other debt.

To service our indebtedness, we will require a significant amount of cash. Our ability to generate cash flow depends on
many factors beyond our control.

Our ability to meet our payment and other obligations under our debt depends on our ability to generate significant
cash flow in the future. This, to some extent, is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative and regulatory
factors as well as other factors that are beyond our control. We cannot assure holders that our business will generate cash
flow from operations, or that future borrowings will be available to us under cur senior credit facility or otherwise, in an
amount sufficient to enable us to meet our payment obligations under our debt and to fund other liquidity needs. We made an
irrevocable election to satisfy in cash our conversion obligation with respect to the principal amount of any of our 2.50%
convertible senior subordinated notes due 2024 (the “Existing 2.50% Convertible Notes™) converted after December 15,
2004, with any remaining amount of the conversion obligation to be satistied in shares of our common stock, in each case,
calculated as set forth in the indenture governing the Existing 2.50% Convertible Notes. In addition, because we made this
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election, the indenture provides that we must satisfy in cash our obligations to repurchase any Existing 2.50% Convertible
Notes that holders put to us on January 15, 2010, July 15, 2014 and July 15, 2015.

If the Existing 2.50% Convertible Notes become convertible pursuant to their terms and the holders elect to convert
or if holders elect to put their notes to us on the specified repurchase dates, we may not have sufficient cash to satisty our
obligations. In addition, our 1.375% and 3.25% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2025 and 2026, respectively,
contain similar provisions. We may be unable to repurchase the notes for cash when required by the holders, including
following a fundamental change, or to pay the portion of the conversion value upon conversion of any notes by the holders.
Our repurchase of any such notes may be prohibited by our other debt instruments, which could cause defaults and cross-
defaults under our other debt agreements. If we are not able to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt obligations,
we may need to refinance or restructure our, sell assets, reduce or delay capital investments, or seek to raise additional
capital. If we are unable to implement one or more of these alternatives, we may not be able to meet our payment obligations
under the notes and our other debt.

A significant amount of our debt agreements contain covenant restrictions that may limit our ability to operate our
business.

The agreements governing our senior credit facility contain covenant restrictions that limit our ability to operate our
business, including restrictions on our ability to:

. incur additional debt or issue guaraniees;

. create liens;

. make certain investments;

. enter into transactions with our affiliates;

. sell certain assets;

. redeem capital stock or make other restricted payments;

. declare or pay dividends or make other distributions to stockholders; and

. consolidate, merge or transfer all or substantially all of our assets and the assets of our subsidiaries on a

consolidated basis.

Our senior credit facility requires us to maintain specific leverage, fixed charge coverage and interest coverage
ratios. Our ability to comply with these covenants is dependent on our future performance, which will be subject to many
factors, some of which are beyond our control, including prevailing economic conditions. Our failure to comply with these
obligations would prevent us from borrowing additional money under the facility and could result in a default under it. Ifa
default occurs under any of our senior indebtedness, the relevant lenders could elect to declare the indebtedness, together
with accrued interest and other fees, to be immediately due and payable and proceed against substantially ali of our assets,
which will serve as collateral securing the indebtedness. Moreover, if the lenders under a facility or other agreement in
default were to accelerate the indebtedness outstanding under that facility, it could result in a default under other
indebtedness. If all or any part of our indebtedness were to be accelerated, we may not have or be able to obtain sufficient
funds to repay it. In addition, we may incur other indebtedness in the future that may contain financial or other covenants that
are more restrictive than those contained in our current indentures.

As a result of these covenants, our ability to respond to changes in business and economic conditions and to obtain
addirional financing, if needed, may be significantly restricted, and we may be prevented from engaging in transactions that
might otherwise be beneficial to us. In addition, our failure to comply with these covenants could result in a default under our
debt, which could permit the holders to accelerate such debt. If any of our debt is accelerated, we may not have sufficient
funds available to repay such debt. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with our financial and other covenants.
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Despite our and our subsidiaries’ current levels of indebtedness, we may incur substantiglly more debt, which could
Surther exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial indebtedness.

Although certain of our debt agreements contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, these
restrictions are subject to a number of qualifications and exceptions, and the indebtedness incurred in compliance with these
restrictions could be substantial. Also, these restrictions do not prevent us from incurring obligations that do not constiiute
“indebtedness” as defined in the relevant agreement. If new debt is added to our current debt levels, the related risks that we
now face could intensify.

Our stock price may fluctuate as a result of a variety of factors, many of which are beyond our control. These factors
include:

. quarterly variations in our operating results;

. operating results that vary from the expeciations of management, securitics analysts and investors;

. changes in expectations as to our future financial performance;

. announcements of innovations, new products, strategic developments, significant contracts, acquisitions

and other materidl events by us or our competitors;

. the operating and securities price performance of other companies that investors believe are comparable to
us;

. future sales of our equity or equity-related securities;

. changes in general conditions in our industry and in the economy, the financial markets and the domestic or

international political situation;

. developments or dispuies (including lawsuits) concerning proprietary rights;

. developments in the insurance market, which may limit the amount of insurance coverage available to us;
. departures of key personnel; and

. regulatory considerations.

In addition, in recent years, the stock market in general has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This
volatility has had a significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies for reasons often unrelated
1o their operating performance. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect our stock price, regardless of our
operating results.

Our stockholder rights plan, amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions of
Delaware law, could make it difficult for a third party to acquire our company.

We have a stockholder rights plan that may have the effect of discouraging unsolicited takeover proposals. The
rights issued under the stockholder rights plan would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that attempts to acquire
us ou terms not appreved in advance by our board of directors. In addition, Delaware corporate law and our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that couid delay, deter or prevent a change in conirol of
our company or our management. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficuit for our
stockholders to elect directors and take other corporate actions without the concurrence of our management or board of
directors. These provisiens:

. authorize our board of directors to issue “blank check” preferred stock, which is preferred stock that can be

created and issued by our board of directors, without stockholder approval, with rights senior to those of
common stock;
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. provide for a staggered board of directors and three-year terms for directors, so that no more than one-third
of our directors could be replaced at any annual meeting,

. provide that directors may be removed only for cause;

. provide that stockholder action may be taken only at a special or regular meeting and not by written
consent;

. provide for super-majority voting requirements for some provisions of our charter; and

. establish advance notice requirements for submitting nominations for election to the board of directors and

for proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at a meeting.

We are also subject to anti-takeover provisions under Delaware law, which could also delay or prevent a change of
control. Together, these provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws, Delaware law and
our stockholder rights plan may discourage transactions that otherwise could provide for the payment of a premium over
prevailing market prices of our common stock and, possibly, the notes, and also could limit the price that investors are
willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock and the notes.

Risks Relating to the Pending Intralase Corp. Acquisition

Even though we and IntraLase have obtained the regulatory approvals required to complete the merger, governmental
authorities could still seek to block or challenge the merger.

The merger is subject to review by the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice and the FTC under the Hart-
Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 (HSR Act). Under the HSR Act, we and IntraLase are required to make
pre-merger notification filings and to await the expiration or early termination of the statutory waiting period prior to
completing the merger. The merger is also subject to review by certain other govemmental authorities under the antitrust
laws of various other jurisdictions where Intralase conducts business. We have made all required regulatory filings, the
applicable waiting periods have expired and we have therefore obtained all regulatory clearances, consents and approvals
required to complete the merger with the exception of one review pending in Germany. However, after the statutory waiting
periods have expired, and even after completion of the merger, governmental authorities could seek to block or challenge the
merger as they deem necessary or desirable in the public interest. In addition, in some jurisdictions, a competitor, customer or
other third party could initiate a private action under the antitrust laws challenging or seeking to enjoin the merger, before or
after it is completed. We, IntraLase or the combined company may not prevail, or may incur significant costs, in defending
or settling any action under the antitrust laws,

We will have more indebtedness after the acquisition of IntraLase, which could adversely affect our cash flows and
business.

In order to complete the acquisition, we anticipate arranging for and funding up to $900 million of new financing.
Proceeds from the financing will be used to fund the cash consideration paid to IntraLase stockholders. Our debt outstanding
as of December 31, 2006 was $851.1 million. As a result of the increase in debt, demands on our cash resources may
increase after the completion of the acquisition. The increased levels of debt could, among other things:

. require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our debt,
thereby reducing funds available for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions and other purposes;

. increase our vulnerability to, and limit our flexibility in planning for, adverse economic and industry
conditions;

. affect our credit rating;

. limit our ability to obtain additional financing to fund future working capital, capital expenditures,

additional acquisitions and other general corporate requirements;

. create competitive disadvantages compared to other companies with less indebtedness; and

27




. limit our ability to apply proceeds from an offering or asset sale to purposes other than the repayment of
debt.

Although we expect that the acquisition will result in benefits to the combined company, the combined company may not
realize those benefits because of integration and other challenges.

Our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisition will depend, in part, on our ability to integrate the
business of IntraLase with our business. The combination of two independent companies is a complex, costly and time-
consuming process. This process may disrupt the business of either or both of the companies, and may not result in the full
benefits expected by us. The difficulties of combining the operations of the companies include, among others:

. coordinating marketing functions;

. unanticipated issues in integrating information, communications and other systems;

. unanticipated incompatibility of purchasing, logistics, marketing and administration methods;
. retaining key employees;

. consolidating corporate and administrative infrastructures;

. the diversion of management’s attention from ongoing business concerns; and

. coordinating geographically separate organizations.

We cannot assure you that the combination of Intralase with us will result in the realization of the full benefits anticipated
from the acquisition.

If the proposed acquisition of IntraLase is not completed, we will have incurred substantial costs that may adversely affect
our financial results and operations and the market price of our common stock,

We have incurred and will incur substantial costs in connection with the proposed acquisition of IntraLase. These
costs are primarily associated with the fees of attorneys, accountants and our financial advisors. In addition, we have diverted
significant management resources in an effort to complete the acquisition and we are subject to restrictions contained in the
definitive agreement on the conduct of our business. If the acquisition is not completed, we will have incurred significant
costs, including the diversion of management resources, for which we will have received little or no benefit. Also, if the
acquisition is not completed under certain circumstances specified in the definitive agreement, we may be required to pay
Intral.ase expenses in the amount of $7 million.

In addition, if the acquisition is not completed, we may experience negative reactions from the financial markets and
our collaborative partners, customers and employees. Each of these factors may adversely affect the trading price of our
common stock and our financial results and operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

We have no unresolved written comments from the Commission.

Item 2. Properties

Qur principal executive offices and research facilities are located in Santa Ana, California, in a facility subleased by
us through July 2015. We also have an administrative, research and development and manufacturing facility in Santa Clara,
California, the lease for which expires in May 2008. We conduct our global operations in facilities that we own or lease.
Material facilities include administrative facilities in Australia, Canada, France, Germany, Hong Kong, Ireland, Italy, Spain
and the United Kingdom. We also have two facilities in Japan, one used for administration and research and development and
the other used for warehousing. We lease all of these facilities. In addition, we operate five manufacturing facilities: one in
Afiasco, Puerto Rico, where we lease the land and the facility, one in Madrid, Spain, where we own the land and the facility,
one in Hangzhou, China, where we own the facility but lease the land, one in Uppsala, Sweden, where we own the land and
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the facility, and one in Groningen, Netherlands, where we own the land and the facility. We believe these facilities are
adequate for the current needs of our business.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On January 4, 2003, Dr. James Nielsen filed a complaint against us and Allergan, Inc. in the U.S. District Court of
the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division, for infringement of U.S. Patent No. 5,158,572, Dr. Nielsen alleges that our
Array multifocal intraocular lens infringes the patent. He is seeking damages and a permanent injunction. The trial in this
matter was scheduled to begin on November 6, 2006, but this date has been vacated. A new trial date has not yet been
scheduled.

We do not believe, based on current knowledge, that the foregoing legal proceeding is likely to have a material
adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, we may incur substantial expenscs in
defending against third party claims. In the event of a determination adverse to us or our subsidiaries, we may incur
substantial monetary liabtlity, and be required to change our business practices. Either of these could have a material adverse
effect on ovr financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

While we are involved from time to time in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, including product
liability claims, we are not currently aware of any other actions against us or Allergan relating to the optical medical device
business that we believe would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows. We may be subject to future litigation and infringement claims, which could cause us to incur significant
expenses or prevent us from selling our products. We operate in an industry susceptible to significant product liability claims.
Product liability claims may be asserted against us in the future arising out of events not known to us at the present time.
Under the terms of the contribution and distribution agreement effecting our spin-off, Allergan agreed to assume
responsibility for, and to indemnify us against, all current and future litigation relating to its retained businesses and we
agreed to assume responsibility for, and to indemnify Allergan against, all current and future litigation related to the optical
medical device business.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

We did not submit any matter during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report to a vote of security
holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities

Dividends. We have never declared or paid any cash dividends-on our commen stock or any of our securities. We do
not expect to pay cash dividends on our capital stock in the foreseeable future. We intend to retain our future earnings to
continue 1o fund the development and growth of our business as well as repay long-term debt. In addition, our amended and
restated senior credit facility prohibits us from paying cash dividends,

Market Information. The following table shows the quarterly price range of our common stock during the periods

listed.
2006 2005
Calendar Quarter Low High Low High
First ..o $41.11  $47.23  $3591 $44.53
SeCond.. e e 43.97 50.70 35.00 40.90
Third......cooeeeeeeee ettt 38.75 52.04 37.25 43.30
Fourth........ccccocciiiiiiiiiiiieivcveaen, 34,77 41.94 32.04 44.00

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under the symbol “EYE.” The closing
price of our common stock was $38.94 on February 26, 2007.

The approximate number of stockholders of record was 4,600 as of February 26, 2007,
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected financial data as of and for each of the years in the five-year period ended
December 31, 2006, which has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements.

The selected financial data may not be indicative of the results of operations or financial position that we would
have obtained if we had been an independent company during the pre-spin-off period of 2002 presented.

No earnings per share data is presented for the year ended December 31, 2002 as our earnings were a part of
Allergan’s earnings through the close of business on June 28, 2002.

Statement of Operations:

INEE SALES..cciiiiiiiiiii et ee e e s seme e e s seeeeans

Gross Profit e

Selling, general and administrative..........ccccoceevecrvcnnnne
Research and development ............cccocovvvvininiinennns
In-process research and development ...
Business repositioning ........ccoeeoveioieirnenie e
Net gain on legal contingencies ......c.ocooeeoeveeicnceeeeeecenene

Operating income (J0$8).....ccoevierievrceriieree e eeeeene
INterest EXPense . ..ot rncane
L0SS ON iNVESIMENES, NEL......ocoiiiee e cveves e einens
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivative instruments...........

Loss due to early retirement of Convertible Senior

Subordinated Notes....... e e e e e e re———eeaa e e e e —eeaanneaas
L0 Tt N 1T~ AR UOTUUORO

irnings (loss) before income taxes ........coveeevevcevennnenn,
OViSion fOr INCOME TAXES wrvvvvrererirrrrereriirreerereareesrsearens

Net carnings (JOS8) occciiiccveiirrneiernrsesaesinseensnescnssessesans
Basic earnings (loss) per share...........cooecoviieiicccnin,
Diluted earnings (loss) per share.............coceovnnvenencnnene

For the Year Ended December 31,

2006(c) 2005(b} 2004(a) 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share data)

$ 997496  § 920,673 § 742,099 $ 601453 $ 538,087
379,325 353,325 306,164 227,811 204,338
618,171 567,348 435,935 373,642 333,749
404,802 396,599 329,197 276,695 235,977
66,099 61,646 45,616 37.413 29,917
— 490,750 28,100 — —
46,417 29,630 — — —
{96,896) — — — —
197,749 (411,327} 33,022 59,534 67,855
30,272 29,332 26,933 24,224 13,764
— — — — 3,935
1,290 (2,563) 403 246 3,199
18,783 1,885 116,282 — —
2,588 316 10,620 17,802 2,385
144,816 (440,297)  (121,216) 17,262 44,572
65,345 12,900 8,154 6,905 18,662
$ 79471  $(453,197) $(129370) $ 10357 $§ 25910
$ 125 $ (828) $ (389) $§ 036 —
$ 121 $ (828) $ (389) $ 035 —

{a) Includes results of the acquired Pfizer Inc. Surgical Ophthalmic Business since June 26, 2004 (date of acquisition).

{b) Includes results of the acquired VISX business since May 27, 2005 (date of acquisition).

{c) In 2006, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {“SFAS”) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment.”
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As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and equivAIEnts .........oooeveverieieiiieieseerersseseceenes $ 34,522 % 40826 $ 49455 § 46,104 § B0,578
(00304 (= 1R Tt - 478,143 479,005 376,825 252,492 274,494
TOMAL SSEES ..euveeriverreaeeeree e eeee e e e e sie e e eeesee e neeseenens 2,013,897 1,980,722 1,076,534 461,345 463,206
Current Habilities ........cccoevviicniiin, 217,453 260,116 193,923 113,301 108,204
Long term debt, net of current portion and short-term

DOITOWITLES et erees et eees 851,105 500,000 550,643 233,611 277,559

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditien and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analvsis presents the factors that had a material effect on AMO's results of operations
and cash flows during each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, and the Company’'s financial position
at that date, Except for the historical information contained herein, the following discussion contains forward-looking
statements that involve risk and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in the
forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such differences include, but are not fimited to, those discussed in the
section entitled “Risk Factors.” This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the historical consolidated
financial statements of AMO and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Overview

We are a global leader in the development, manufacture and marketing of medical devices for the eye. Effective
January 1, 2006, our reportable segments are represented by our three business units: cataract/implant, laser vision correction
(LVC) and eye care. Previously, our reportable segments were based on geographic regions which comprised the Americas,
which included North and South America, Europe/Africa/Middle East, Japan and Asia Pacific, which excluded Japan and
included New Zealand and Australia. Sales and operating results for 2005 and 2004 have been conformed to reflect the
change in presentation of reportable segments. OQur cataract/implant business focuses on the four key products required tor
cataract surgery — foldable intraocular lenses, or IOLs, implantation systems, phacoemulsification systems and viscoelastics.
Our LVC business markets laser systems, diagnostic devices, treatment cards and microkeratomes for use in laser eye
surgery. Qur eye care business provides a full range of coniact lens care products for use with most types of contact lenses.
These products include single-bottle, multi-purpose cleaning and disinfecting solutions, hydrogen peroxide-based
disinfecting solutions, daily cleaners, enzymatic cleaners and contact lens rewetting drops.

We have operations in approximately 20 countries and sell our products in approximately 60 countries in the following
four regions:

* Americas (North and South America);

* Europe, Africa and Middle East;

* Japan; and

* Asia Pacific (excluding Japan, but including Australia and New Zealand).
Eye Care Recall

In November 2006, we announced the anticipated financial impact associated with the voluntary recall of certain eye
care product lots and the related manufacturing capacity constraints caused by a production-line issue at our manufacturing
plant in China. The recall negatively impacted sales in the fourth quarter of 2006 due to saies returns of $9.5 million. We
also ¢stimated approximately $15.0 million in lost sales in 2006 as a result of the recall. The total of $24.5 million was
slightly higher than our original estimate due to higher returns. We incurred approximately $15.4 million in recall-related
costs, of which approximately $9.5 million was recorded in cost of goods sold and $5.9 million was recorded in selling,
general and administrative expenses. In 2007, we expect to lose approximately $20 million to $25 million in sales and incur
about $20 million to $25 million in costs. The costs are due to start-up related expenses and unabsorbed overhead as
production ramps up in the first and second quarters of 2007 and to spending on marketing programs to re-launch products
and recapture market share.
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We commenced the voluntary recall as a result of a production-line issue at our manufacturing plant in China, which
could affect the sterility of the product. This issue was limited to two of the four production lines in the China facility. [n all,
we recalled 2.9 million units, most from Asia Pacific, with about 360,000 units retrieved from Japan and the U.S. In
addition, we destroyed about 5 million units that were still in our control.

To correct the sterility issue, we temporarily closed the China plant to conduct a special cleaning and sanitization, and
complete an already-planned expansion. We began production on two of the plant’s four lines in January 2007 and expect
the third also to be operational in the first quarter of 2007. We have commenced product shipments to Japan distribution
centers, and are scheduled to begin shipping to the Asia Pacific markets before the end of the first quarter of 2007, The
remaining line has been completely replaced and is being expanded to provide automated packaging capabilities that are
expected to provide greater flexibility. As per our original schedule, the fourth line is expected to be operational in the late
May/early June 2007 timeframe. Our Spain facility supplies the Americas and European markets so there have been no
supply disruptions to these regions as a result of the recall.

Product Rationalization and Repositioning Plan

On October 31, 2005, our Board of Directors approved a product rationalization and repositioning plan covering the
discontinuation of non-strategic cataract surgical and eye care products and the elimination or redeployment of resources that
support these product lings, The plan also included organizational changes and potential reductions in force in manufacturing,
sales and marketing associated with these product lines, as well as organizational changes in research and development and
other corporate functions designed to align the organization with our strategy and strategic business unit organization,

The plan further called for increasing our investment in key growth opportunities, specifically our refractive implant
product line and international laser vision correction business, and accelerating the implementation of productivity initiatives,

In 2006, we incurred $62.7 million of pre-tax charges, which included $16.3 miltion for inventory, manufacturing
related and other charges included in cost of sales and $46.4 million included in operating expenses for severance, relocation
and other one-time termination benefits of $13.7 million, productivity and brand repositioning costs of $37.6 million, offset
by net asset disposal gains of $2.8 million and a net credit from settlement of contractual obligations of $2.1 million. In
2005, we incurred $42.3 million in pre-tax charges which inclueded $12.6 million for inventory related charges included in
cost of sales and $29.7 million included in operating expenses for severance, relocation and other one-time termination
benefits of $14.0 million, asset write-downs of $9.2 million, contractual obligations of $2.7 million and accelerated
productivity and brand repositioning costs of $3.8 million. We do not expect to incur additional charges associated with this
plan. The cumulative charges incurred of $105.0 million were within the range previcusly announced.

Pending Acquisition of Intralase Corp.

On January 5, 2007, we entered into an agreement with IntraLase Corp. (Intral.ase) to acquire IntraLase for
approximately $808 million in cash. IntraLase manufactures femtosecond laser systems utilized in LASIK surgery. Under
terms of the agreement, approved by the boards of directors of both companies, after they received fairness opinions from
their respective financial advisors, we will pay $25 in cash per share of IntraLase stock and the individually determined cash
value per share of outstanding stock options. We have arranged committed financing from a consortium of banks to
complete the transaction. We expect the transaction to be completed early in the second quarter of 2007. The transaction is
subject to IntraLase stockholder approval as well as regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions. For a
description of the risks related to this transaction, see “Risks Relating to the Pending IntraLase Corp. Acquisition” beginning
on page 24.

Acquisition of VISX, Incorporated

On May 27, 2005, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (Merger Agreement), dated as of November 9, 2004,
as amended, by and among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. (AMO), Vault Merger Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of
AMO, and VISX, Incorporated (VISX), we completed our acquisition of VISX, for total consideration of approximately
$1.38 bitlion, consisting of approximately 27.8 million shares of AMO common stock, the fair value of VISX stock options
converted to AMO stock options and approximately $176.2 million in cash (VISX Acquisition). VISX products include the
VISX STAR Excimer Laser System, the VISX WaveScan System and VISX treatment cards.

The VISX Acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase business combination. Under the purchase method of
accounting, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed were recorded at the date of acquisition at their respective fair values.
Our reported financial position and results of operations after May 27, 2005 include VISX and the impact of purchase
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accounting. Purchase accounting applied to the VISX Acquisition resulted in a non-cash in-process research and
development charge of $488.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Acguisition of Pfizer Inc. Surgical Ophthalmic Business

On June 26, 2004, we completed the acquisition of the Pfizer Inc. surgical ophthalmic business for $450 million in
cash (Pfizer Acquisition). We acquired ophthalmic surgical preducts and certain manufacturing and research and
development facilities located in Uppsala, Sweden, Groningen, Netherlands and Bangalore, India. The products acquired
include the Healon line of viscoelastic products used in ocular surgery, the Tecnis intraocular lenses and the Baerveld:
glaucoma shunt.

The Pfizer Acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase business combination. Our reported financial position and
results of operations after June 26, 2004 include Pfizer and the impact of purchase accounting. Purchase accounting applied
to the Pfizer Acquisition resulted in charges in the year ended December 31, 2004, including an in-process research and
development charge of $28.1 million and incremental cost of sales of $28.1 million from the sale of acquired inventory
adjusted to fair value.

During 2004, we also incurred other acquisition-related charges totaling approximately $11.6 million as we integrated the
Pfizer surgical ophthalmic business and eliminated duplicative functions.

Separation from Allergan

Allergan spun-off its existing optical medical device business by contributing all of the assets related to the two
business lines that comprise the optical medical device business to us and distributing all of our outstanding shares of
common stock to its stockholders. We had no material assets, liabilities or activities as a separate corporate entity until
Allergan’s contribution to us of the optical medical device business. The contribution of assets and distribution to Allergan
stockholders was completed on June 29, 2002. As a result of the spin-off, we are an independent public company and
Allergan no longer maintains any stock ownership in us,

Prior to the spin-off, we entered into several agreements with Allergan in connection with, among other things,
transitional services, employee matters, manufacturing and tax sharing.

Under the manufacturing agreement, which ended on June 29, 2005, Allergan manufactured certain of our eye care
products and VITRAX viscoelastics from the date of the spin-off. We purchased these products from Allergan at a price equal
to Allergan’s fully allocated costs plus 10%. During 2005 and 2004, we purchased $41.9 million and $89.3 million,
respectively, of product from Allergan. On an annual basis, a pricing *‘true up” calculation was performed during the first
calendar quarter after the end of each year. This “true up” calculation was based on the actual volume of products shipped by
Allergan to us during the preceding year versus the forecasted volume submitted by us that was used to calculate the invoiced
prices. During the year, we periodically reviewed the volume of purchases and accrued for estimated shortfalls, if any. In
October 2005, we received $0.8 million from Allergan for the final “true up” calculation for the last six months of the
agreement. In March 2005, we made a payment of $0.2 million to Allergan based upon the “true up” calculation for the year
ended December 31, 2004. These payments have been recorded as an increase/decrease to cost of sales in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.

The tax sharing agreement governs Allergan’s and our respective rights, responsibilities and obligations with respect to
taxes for any tax period ending before, on or after the spin-off. Generally, Allergan is liable for all pre-spin-off taxes except
for pre-spin-off taxes attributable to our business for 2002. In addition, the tax sharing agreement provides that Allergan is
liable for taxes that are incurred as a result of restructuring activities undertaken to effectuate the spin-off. During 2005, we
realized final adjustments to accrued, pre-spin-off taxes attributable to our business and payable to Allergan pursuant to this
agreement. These adjustments included a $1.4 million benefit from the resolution of a discrete item in the third quarter of
2005, which was recorded in the income tax provision.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable
Revenue is realized or realizable and earned when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has

occurred, the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. We record revenue from
product sales when title and risk of ownership have been transferred to the customer, which is typically upon delivery to the
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customer, with the exception of intraocular lenses distributed on a consignment basis, which is upon notification of
implantation in a patient. We recognize procedural revenues and revenues from the sale of treatment cards to direct customers
when we ship the treatment cards as we have no continuing obligations or involvement subsequent to shipment.

Some customers finance the purchase or rental of their VISX equipment directly from us over periods ranging from
one to three years. These financing agreements are classified as either rental or operating leases or sales type leases as
prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” Under sales type leases, system
revenues are recognized based on the net present value of the expected cash flow after installation to direct customers in the
United States and Japan or after shipment to internaticnal distributors. Under rental or operating lease arrangements, rental
revenue is recognized over the term of the agreement.

We generally permit returns of product if such product is returned in a timely matter, in good condition, and through
the normal channels of distribution. However, we do not accept returns of treatment cards and we do not provide rights of
return or exchange, price protection or stock rotation rights to any of our VISX product distributors. Return policies in certain
international markets can be more stringent and are based on the terms of contractual agreements with the customers.
Allowances for returns are provided for based upon an analysis of our historical patterns of returns matched against the sales
from which they originated. To date, historical product returns have been within our estimates,

When we recognize revenue from the sale of our products, certain allowances known and estimable at time of saie are
recorded as a reduction to sales. These items include cash discounts, allowances and rebates. These items are reflected as a
reduction to accounts receivable to the extent the customer will or is expected to reduce its payment on the related invoice
amounts. In addition, certain items such as rebates provided to customers that meet certain buying targets are paid to the
customer subsequent to customer payment. Thus, such amounts are recorded as accrued liabilities. These provisions are
estimated based on historical payment experience, historical relationship to revenues and estimated customer inventory
levels. If the historical data and inventory estimates used to calculate these provisions do not properly reflect future activity,
our financial position, results of operations and cash flows could be impacted. To date, historical sales allowances have been
within our estimates.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is determined by analyzing specific customer accounts and assessing the risk of
uncollectibility based on insolvency, disputes or other collection issues. In addition, we routinely analyze the different aging
categories and establish allowances based on the length of time receivables are past due.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market. On a regular basis, we evaluate inventory
balances for excess quantities and obsolescence by analyzing estimated demand, inventory on hand, sales levels and other
information. Based on these evaluations, inventory balances are reduced, if necessary.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

On January 1, 2002, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets”, whereby goodwill is no longer amortized, but instead is subject to a periodic impairment review
performed during the second quarter of each fiscal year. In a business combination, goodwill is allocated to our various
reporting units based on relative fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assurned. We review the recoverability of
goodwill by comparing each unit’s fair value to the net book value of its assets. If the book value of the reporting unit’s assets
exceeds its fair value, the goodwill is written down to its implied fair value.

Additionally, we review the carrying amount of goodwill whenever events and circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. Impairment indicators include, among other conditions, cash flow deficits,
historic or anticipated declines in revenue or operating profit and adverse legal or regulatory developments. If it is determined
such indicators are present and the review indicates goodwill will not be fully recoverable, based upon discounted estimated
cash flows, the carrying value is reduced to implied fair value.

In the second quarters of 2006, 2005 and 2004, we performed the annual impairment tests of goodwill and non-
amortizable intangible assets, and no impairment was indicated based on these tests. Effective January 1, 2006, our operating
segments consist of three businesses: Cataract/Implant, Laser Vision Correction and Eye Care. Accordingly, the annual
impairment review in the second quarter of 2006 was based on reporting units that are aligned with the current operating
segments.
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In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-lived Assets”, we assess potential impairment to our long-lived assets when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. If required, an impairment loss is recognized as the
difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the assets.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assels and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. We evaluate the need to establish a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets based upon the amount of existing
temporary differences, the period in which they are expected to be recovered and expected levels of taxable income. A
valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets is established when it is “more likely than not” that some or ail of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized.

We record a liability for potential tax assessments based on our estimate of the potential exposure. New laws and new
interpretations of laws and rulings by tax authorities may affect the liability for potential tax assessments. Due to the
subjectivity and complex nature of the underlying issues, actual payments or assessments may differ from estimates. To the
extent our estimates differ from actual payments or assessments, income tax expense is adjusted. Our income tax returns in
several locations are being examined by the local taxation authorities. Management believes that adequate amounts of tax
and related interest, if any, have been provided for any adjustments that may result from these examinations.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, we began accounting for stock options and employee stock purchase plan (ESPP) shares
under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R).
SFAS 123R requires entities to recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity
imstruments based on the grant-date fair value of those awards. The fair value of stock options and ESPP purchase rights are
estimated using a Black-Scholes option valuation model. This model requires the input of subjective assumptions, including
expected stock price volatility, estimated life and estimated forteitures of each award. The fair value of equity-based awards
is amortized over the vesting period of the award, and we have elected to use the straight-line method. We make quarterly
assessments of the adequacy of the tax credit pool to determine if there are any deficiencies which require recognition in the
consolidated staterent of operations. Prior to the implementation of SFAS 123R, we accounted for stock options and ESPP
shares under the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 23, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”
and made pro forma disclosures as required by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure,” which amended SFAS No. 123, “Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation.” Pro forma net toss and pro
forma net loss per share disclosed in the footnotes to the consolidated financial staternents were estimated using a Black-
Scholes option valuation model. The fair value of restricted stock and restricted stock units was calculated based upon the fair
market value of our common stock at the date of grant,

We also have an annual performance stock incentive program which provides the opportunity for certain executives to
earn long-term incentive compensation awards based upon specified market performance measures. Awards are to be settled
in a number of restricted stock shares or units equal to the value of the award amount divided by the fair market value of our
common stock on the date the performance criteria is deemed to have been met. The fair value of the awards on the grant date
is estimated using a lattice-based valuation model. The associated expense, if any, is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the period which starts from the date the annual program is approved by the Board of Directors through the end of the
expected vesting period of the restricted stock awards.

Acqguired In-Process Research and Development

Costs to acquire in-process research and development (IPR&D) projects and technologies which have no alternative
future use and which have not reached technological feasibility at the date of acquisition are expensed as incurred. The fair
value of [PR&D projects and technologies is estimated based upon management’s assumptions such as projected regulatory
approval dates, estimated future revenues and cost of goods sold of the products under development and expected sales and
marketing costs. The major risks and uncenainties associated with the timely and successful completion of these projects
consist of the ability to confirm the safety and efficacy of the technology based on the data from clinical trials and obtaining
necessary regulatory approvals. In addition, no assurance can be given that the underlying assumptions used to forecast the
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cash flows or the timely and successful completion of such projects will materialize, as estimated. For these reasons, among
others, actual results may vary from the estimated resuits.

Comparing Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

The following table presents net sales and operating income by operating segment for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively:

Net Sales Operating [ncome
(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Cataract/ITmplant ..........cccoocoevvereinvvcresiireinnnns $519,025 $497,191 $413,422 $266,729 $212.879 $122,267
Laser Vision Correction.......nnniinn. 216,876 122,615 — 130,848 66,375 —
Eye Care ..o 261,595 300,867 328,677 104,187 106,023 130,008
Total operating segments........c.ccoeveverercenecnenas $997.496 $920,673 $742,099 3$501,764 $385277 $252,275

Net sales for 2006 increased by $76.8 million, or 8.3%, to $997.5 million in 2006 from $920.7 million in 2005, The
increase in 2006 was primarily the result of full year sales of products acquired in the VISX Acquisition in May 20035,
subsequent international expansion of our LVC business, as well as increased sales of technologically advanced products due
to continued market acceptance of the products offset by the negative impact of the eye care recall and our business
rationalization efforts. The unfavorable impact from foreign currency fluctuations on net sales was $2.2 million in 2006. Our

net sales and earnings in future periods may be negatively impacted during times of a strengthening U.S. dollar.

Net sales from our cataract/implant segment increased by 4.4% in 2006 compared with 2005. This increase was driven
largely by increased sales of our branded promoted products, including the Tecnis and ReZoom intraocular lenses and
increased sales of phacoemulsification products. Net sales were negatively impacted by decreased sales of non-promoted
older-technology intraccular lenses and non-promoted viscoelastics. We believe that global sales of cataract/implant products
will continue to grow due to increased sales of the Tecnis and ReZoom intraocular lenses. We expect the growth to be
partiaily offset by decreased sales of our older intraocular lenses as we continue our strategy of promoting our higher-
technology intraocular lenses, Tecnis and ReZoom.

Net sales from our LVC segment increased 76.9% in 2006 compared with 2005, reflecting the full year benefit of the
May 2005 VISX acquisition, growth in CustomVue procedures and strong international system sales. Net sales of acquired
VI1SX products approximated $206.2 mitlion in 2006 compared with approximately $111.1 million in 2005.

Net sales from our eye care segment decreased by 13.1% in 2006 compared with 2005 primarily due to the impact of
the recall, decreased sales of hydrogen peroxide-based products, principally in Europe and Japan, where the migration to
single-bottle cleaning regimens continues, and decreased sales of multipurpose solutions in Japan due to an increase in the
market for daily disposable lenses. As previously discussed, sales in 2006 were negatively impacted by the recall.

As part of our product rationalization and repositioning plan to maximize our competitive advantage as the global
refractive leader and improve the global penetration of our core cataract, refractive and eve care brands, we have
discontinued a variety of non-strategic cataract surgical and eye care products that lack critical revenue mass, have
experienced steadily declining sales trends and/or have generated relatively unattractive margins. We expect the growth of
our promoted products to offset the revenue decline related to these discontinued products.

The net unfavorable impact on net sales from foreign currency fluctuations in all geographic regions was $2.2 million
in 2006. Our net sales and earnings in future periods may be negatively impacted during times of a strengthening U.S. dollar.
Net sales in the Americas include the favorable impact of foreign currency fluctuations of $2.7 million in 2006 primarily due
to currencies in Canada and Latin America. Net sales in Europe/Africa/Middle East include the favorable impact of foreign
currency fluctuations of $3.2 million primarily due to changes in the U.S. dollar versus the euro in 2006. Net sales in Japan
include the unfavorable impact of foreign currency fluctuations of $7.7 million resulting from changes in the U.S. dollar
versus the Japanese yen in 2006. Net sales in Asia Pacific include the unfavorable impact of foreign currency fluctuations of
$0.4 million in 2006,

Net sales in the U.S. represented 41.6%, 32.9%, and 25.2% of total net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Additionally, sales in Japan represented 13.9%, 18.9%, and 25.8% of total net sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. No
other country, or any single customer, generated over 10% of total net sales in any of these years.
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Net sales for 2005 increased by $178.6 million, or 24.19%, to $920.7 million in 2005 from $742.1 million in 2004. The
increase in 2005 was primarily the result of sales of products acquired in the VISX Acquisition in May 2005 and the full year
impact of the purchase of the Pfizer ophthaimic surgical business in June 2004, as well as increased sales of technologically
advanced products due to continued market acceptance. Net sales of acquired VISX products, included in the LVC segment,
approximated $111.1 million in 2003. Net sales of acquired Pfizer ophthalmic surgical products, included in the
cataract/implant segment, were $168.4 million in 2005 and $75.8 million in 2004. These increases were partially offset by
declines in our older non-promoted and discontinued products and eye care sales in Japan and Europe.

Net sales from our cataract/implant segment increased by 20.2% in 2005 compared with 2004. This increase was
driven largely by net sales of acquired Pfizer ophthalmic surgical products described above and increased sales of our
branded promoted products, including the Healor family of viscoelastics, Tecnis and ReZoom intraocular lenses, and
increased sales of Sensar intraocular lenses and phacoemulsification products. Net sales were negatively impacted by
decreased sales of non-promoted older-technology intraocular lenses and non-promoted viscoelastics.

Net sales from our LVC segment in 2005 primarily comprised products from the VISX acquisition. Microkeratomes
comprised the remaining portion of LVC net sales in 2003. Sales of microkeratomes were included in the cataract/implant
segment in 2004 and were not significant.

Net sales from our eye care segment decreased by 8.5% in 2005 compared with 2004 primarily due to decreased sales
of hydrogen peroxide-based products, principally in Europe and Japan, where the migration to single-bottle cleaning
regimens continued, and decreased sales of multipurpose solutions in Japan due to an increase in the market for daily
disposable lenses. The favorable impact from foreign currency fluctuations during the first nine months of 2005 were offset
by a negative impact int the fourth quarter of 2005,

The net unfavorable impact on net sales from foreign currency fluctuations in all geographic regions was $0.2 million
in 2005. The favorable impact from foreign currency fluctuations during the first nine months of 2005 were offset by a
negative impact in the fourth quarter of 2005. Net sales in the Americas include the favorable impact of foreign currency
fluctuations of $2.3 million in 2005 primarily due to currencies in Canada and Latin America. Net sales in
Europe/Africa/Middle East include the unfavorable impact of foreign currency fluctuations of $1.0 million primarily due to
the strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus the euro in 2005. Net sales in Japan include the unfavorable impact of foreign
currency fluctuations of $3.2 million resulting from the strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus the Japanese yen in 2005. Net
sales in Asia Pacific include the favorable impact of foreign currency fluctuations of $1.7 million in 2005.

Income and expenses. The following table sets forth certain statement of operations items as a percentage of net sales:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
INEE SALES....oitiiieteti et e re e R SRR a s e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
COSL OF SALES .ot e 38.0 38.4 41.3
GIOSS IIIATGIIL....cecerrereeenrercrrer et e ereeeen e enn e mrm s e s e s e e b e b e s s st e e essemsase e s e benesb b e n e bt 62.0 61.6 587
Other operating costs and expenses:
Selling, general and admMinIStIALIVE ... vove v e i et bbb s e 40.6 43.1 44.4
Research and development ....................... OO OO OO UUURUUUUUURRUTSTUUUUPYY 6.6 6.7 6.1
In-process research and develOPMENE ........ocveoivieieciiiriiice e — 533 38
BuSINess reposSitiONINg ........cocvieeeeneesie e e et b 4.7 32 —
Net gain on legal CONINZENCIES ..ooviviiiiiiiirc e et 9.7 — —
Operating income (LOSS) ..c.cueriiiiriminiri e 198 (44.7) 4.4
TRLETESE EXPRIISE <.eeieee ettt et r e rar e sa et s bR s R e s h s b s e st e pr e g e me e eas e e eane 3.0 32 3.6
Unrealized loss (gain) on derivative inSUIMENES . .....oovevviiniernininmnnis s ennsressaressens 0.1 (0.3) —
Loss due to early retirement of convertible senior subordinated notes........ovciiinircrrvsninennes 1.9 0.2 15.7
Other non-operaling eXPEISE, TMEL ...vv v v iiiiieriiemitsisirisis i sissnssnebosesnassesnssass - 03 — 1.4
Earnings (10ss) befOre iNCOME LAXES ......oooveeiiieececeterecstsets st s e seasreneres 14.5% (47.8)% (16.3)%
INET SAMTHNEZS (JOSS) 1evvereerec i st et cecs e b e st saeas b bbb s b sb s s asan st n b snrasrsrere 8.0% (49.2Y% (17.4)%

Gross margin. Our gross margin percentage increased as a percentage of net sales by 0.4 percentage points to 62.0% in
2006 from 61.6% in 2005, The increase in gross margin was largely driven by sales growth in the higher margin Healon
family of viscoelastics and sales of acquired VISX products. Gross profit for 2006 included a charge of $16.3 million, or a
1.6 percentage point impact on gross margin, for inventory provisions associated with our product rationalization and
business repositioning plan. The eye care recall also had a negative impact of $19.0 million from sales returns, inventory
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provisions and other charges, or a 1.9 percentage point impact on gross margin. Qur gross margin percentage increased as a
percent of net sales by 2.9 percentage points to 61.6% in 2005 from 58.7% in 2004. Gross profit for 2005 included a charge
of $12.6 million, or a 1.4 percentage point impact on gross margin, for inventory provisions associated with our product
rationalization and business repositioning plan.

Selling, general and administrative. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales was
40.6% in 2006, compared to 43.1% in 2005. Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2006 include approximately $1.8
million in acquisition and integration-related charges, amortization expense of $40.0 million related to acquired intangible
assets and $5.9 million related to the eye care recall. Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2006 also include a $1.5
million charge associated with the termination of a distributor agreement in India that we had with our former parent, .
Allergan. Stock-based compensation expense under SFAS 123R included in selling, general and adminisirative expenses was
$14.8 miltion in 2006. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased as a percent of net sales by 1.3 percentage
points to 43.1% in 2005 from 44.4% in 2004. Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2005 inctude approximately
$14.6 million in acquisition and integration-related charges and amortization expense of $26.7 million related to acquired
intangible assets. Selling, general and administrative expenses in 2005 also include an $8.6 million charge associated with the
termination of a distributor agreement in India that we had with our former parent, Allergan. In addition, selling, general and
administrative expenses in 2005 were impacted by selling costs associated with acquired VISX products of $16.2 million.

Research and development. Research and development expenditures as a percentage of net sales in 2006 remained
relatively constant as compared to 2005 and as a percentage of net sales increased slightly in 2005 as compared to 2004. Our
research and development strategy is to develop proprietary products for vision correction that are safe and effective and
address unmet needs. We are currently focusing on new advancements that build on our Tecnis, Healon and Sovereign
technologies, corneal and lens-based solutions to preshyopia and dry eye products.

In-process research and development. In 2005, we incurred an in-process research and development (IPR&D) charge
of $488.5 million related to the VISX Acquisition. This charge represented the estimated fair value of projects that, as of the
acquisition date, had not reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use, The Company recorded $449.2
million of this amount in the second quarter of 2005 and $39.3 million in the third quarter of 2005. The additional charge in
the third quarter of 2005 resulted primarily from the completion of the IPR&D valuation. The fair value assigned to IPR&D
comprised the following projects: High Myopia for CustomVue - $14.7 million, Excimer Laser Improvements - $56.2 million
and Presbyopia - $417.6 million. The fair value of these projects was determined by performing a discounted cash flow
analysis using the “income” approach. Net cash flows attributable to these projects were discounted to their present values at
a rate commensurate with the perceived risk, which for these projects ranged from 19.0 to 21.0 percent. High myopia for
CustomVue was forecasted to be approved for sale in the U.S. in late 2005. FDA approval was received in September 2005,
A procedure to treat presbyopia is forecasted to be approved for sale in the U.S. in mid-2007. Management’s best estimate of
additional research and development expenses needed prior to expected FDA approval for these procedures ranges from $4
million to $6 million. Additional research and development expenses in the range of $8 million to $10 million represent
management’s best estimate as to the additional R&D expenses to bring excimer laser system improvements to market.
Forecasted discounted cash flows for each product once launched include estimates for normal sustaining engineering and
maintenance R&D, These projects are currently on track for the expected approval dates. However, the major risks and
uncertainties associated with the timely and successful completion of these projects consist of the ability to confirm the safety
and efficacy of the technology based on the data from clinical trials and obtaining the necessary approvals. We can provide
no assurance that the approvals will be received on this schedule or at all.

Business repositioning costs. On October 31, 2005, our Board of Directors approved a product rationatization and
tepositioning plan covering the discontinuation of non-strategic cataract surgical and eye care products and the elimination or
redeployment of resources that support these product lines. The plan also includes organizational changes and potential
reductions in force in manufacturing, sales and marketing associated with these product lines, as well as organizational
changes in research and development and other corporate functions designed to align the organization with our strategy and
strategic business unit organization. The plan further cails for increasing our investment in key growth opportunities,
specifically our refractive implant product line and international laser vision correction business, and accelerating the
implementation of productivity initiatives. In 2006, we incurred $62.7 million of pre-tax charges, which included $16.3
million for inventory, manufacturing related and other charges included in cost of sales and $46.4 million included in
operating expenses for severance, relocation and other one-time termination benefits of $13.7 million, productivity and brand
repositioning costs of $37.6 million, offset by net asset disposal gains of $2.8 million and a net credit from settlement of
contractual obligations of $2.1 million. We incurred $42.3 million in pre-tax charges during the fourth quarter of 2005 which
included $12.6 million for inventory, manufacturing related and other charges included in cost of sales and $29.7 million
included in operating expenses for severance, relocation and other one-time termination benefits of $14.0 million, asset write-
downs of $9.2 million, contractual obligations of $2.7 million and accelerated productivity and brand repositioning costs of

38




$3.8 million. The cumulative charges incurred of $105.0 million were within the range previously announced. We do not
expect to incur additional charges associated with this plan.

Net gain on legal contingencies. We recognized a net gain on legal contingencies of $96.9 million in 2006, primarily
from settlement of pending patent litigation, net of costs incurred. On July 7, 2006, we entered into a settlement agreement
with Alcon, Inc., Alcon Laboratories, Inc., and Alcon Manufacturing Lid. (collectively, “Alcon”™) regarding all pending patent
litigation between us and Alcon. The settlement required Alcon to pay us a lump-sum payment of $12} million which was
received in July 2006 and was accounted for in the third quarter. The parties agreed to dismiss all pending patent litigation in
Delaware and Texas, agreed not to sue each other regarding the patents at issue in those cases, and cross-licensed patents
covering existing features of commercially available phacoemulsification products.

Operating income, Operating income (loss) was $197.7 million, $(411.3) million and $33.0 million in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Operating income as a percentage of net sales, or operating margin, was 19.8% in the year ended
December 31, 2006. Our 2006 operating income was impacted by a $96.9 million net gain related to the settlement of legal
matters discussed above, an aggregate $66.0 million in net charges associated with rationalization and repositioning
initiatives, acquisitions, integrations, and termination of a distributor contract. Operating income was impacted by a $19.2
million charge for stock-based compensation expense under SFAS 123R. Operating income was also negatively impacted by
$24.9 million related to the eye care recall. The $411.3 million operating loss in 2005 reflected the impact of $536.9 million
in charges related primarily to acquisitions, recapitalizations, and product rationalizations and repositioning actions.

Operating income from our Cataract/Implant business increased by $53.9 million in the year ended December 31,
2006, due to the increase in net sales and favorable mix of higher margin products discussed above, along with the favorable
impact of cost containment measures taken in connection with our business repositioning plan. Operating income from our
LVC business increased by $64.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2006, due to sales of products acquired from VISX
in May 20035. Operating income from our Eye Care business decreased by $1.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2006,
primarity due to the recall and continued softness in the market for hydrogen peroxide based products, partially offset by
lower selling and promotional costs attributable to discontinued products and cost savings from business repositioning
actions.

Operating income from our cataract/implant segment increased by $90.6 million in 2005 compared with 2004 due to
the increase in net sales and favorable mix of higher margin products discussed above, along with the favorable impact of
cost containment measures taken in connection with our business repositioning plan. Operating income from our
cataract/implant segment for 2004 included a charge of $28.1 million for manufacturing profit capitalized in inventory and
expensed related to the Pfizer Acquisition, Operating income from our LVC business of $66.4 million resulted from the
impact of products acquired from VISX in May 2005. Operating income from our eye care segment decreased by $24.0
million in 2005 compared with 2004 primarily due to the unfavorable impact from continued softness in the market for
hydrogen peroxide based products, primarily in Japan.

Non-operating expense. Interest expense was $30.3 million, $29.3 million and $26.9 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Interest expense in 2006 includes a pro-rata write-off of debt issuance costs of $3.3 million primarily associated
with the termination of the term loan. Interest expense in 2005 includes a pro-rata write-off of debt issuance costs of $5.8
million primarily associated with the termination of the term loan, partially offset by the recognition of a realized gain on
interest rate swaps of $0.8 million. We anticipate interest expense to increase in 2007 relative to 2006 due to the anticipated
additional debt in connection with the pending acquisition of Intral ase and a full year of interest on our 3.25% notes.

We recorded an unrealized loss (gain) on derivative instruments of $1.3 million, $(2.6) million and $0.4 million in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. We record as “‘unrealized loss (gain) on derivative instruments” the mark to market
adjustments on the outstanding foreign currency options and forward contracts which we entered into to reduce the volatility
of expected eamnings in currencies other than the U.S. dollar.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entered into an accelerated share repurchase arrangement with a third
party to use the proceeds from the issuance of the 3.25% Notes to purchase $500.0 million of AMO common stock at a
volume weighted price per share over the term of the agreement. During 2006, the third party had delivered to us in the
aggregate, 10.5 million shares of AMO common stock. The impact of the shares repurchased under this arrangement in 2006
reduced stockholders’ equity by $500.0 million, which included $0.1 million for the par value of Common Stock, additional
paid-in capital of $247.2 miilion and accumulated deficit of $252.7 million. Repurchased shares were retired upon delivery
to us. In addition, during 2006, we repurchased $148.9 million of aggregate principal amount of convertible senior
subordinated notes ($103.9 million of the principal amount of the 2.5% notes and $45.0 million of the principal amount of the
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1.375% notes) utilizing borrowings under our senior credit facility. We incurred a loss on debt extinguishment of $18.8
million, and wrote oft debt issuance costs of $3.3 million in 2006 in conjunction with the note repurchases.

In 2003, the loss due to exchange of the 3 ¥2% convertible senior subordinated notes due 2023 of $1.9 million is
comprised of a non-cash charge of $1.7 million and a cash charge of $0.2 million. In the second quarter of 2005, we
exchanged 160,695 shares of common stock for $3.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 3 ¥2% convertible senior
subordinated notes in a privately negotiated transaction. As a result, a non-cash charge of approximately $0.5 million
representing the fair value of shares issued as a premium was recorded. In the fourth quarter of 2005, we exchanged 291,760
shares of common stock and approximately $0.4 million in cash for $5.6 million aggregate principal amount of the 314%
convertible senior subordinated notes in privately negotiated transactions. A non-cash charge of approximately $1.2 million
and a cash charge of $0.2 million representing the fair value of shares issued as a premium were recorded.

In 2004, the loss due to exchange of the 3 2% convertible senior subordinated notes of $116.3 million is comprised of
a non-cash charge of $111.7 million and a cash charge of $4.6 million. In the second quarter of 2004, we exchanged
approximately 5.8 million shares of common stock and $4.6 million of cash for approximately $108.6 million in aggregate
principal amount of these notes. Because these notes we not convertible into equity at such time, a non-cash charge of
$107.2 million and a cash charge of $4.6 million was recorded. The $107.2 million non-cash charge was comprised of a
charge of $89.1 million representing the difference between the fair market value of 5.3 million shares of common stock
issued in exchange for the notes and the principal amount of notes exchanged and a charge of $18.1 million representing the
fair market value of 0.5 million shares of common stock issued as a premium. The $4.6 million cash charge represented cash
issued as a premium. In the remainder of 2004, we exchanged approximately 1.2 million shares of common stock for
approximately $22.8 million in aggregate principal amount of these notes. As a result, a non-cash charge of $4.5 million

representing the fair value of shares issued as a premium was recorded.

Other net non-operating expense was $2.6 million for 2006. Other non-operating expense of $0.3 million for 2005.
Other non-operating expense of $10.6 million for 2004 included $10.8 million paid for the repurchase of the 9%% senior
subordinated notes and early debt extinguishment costs and fees of $0.1 million aggregating $10.9 million partially offset by
foreign exchange gains and interest income.

Income taxes. In 2006, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $65.3 million on pre-tax income of $144.8
million. The pre-tax income in 2006 included a net gain on legal contingencies of $96.9 million, for which we recorded
income tax expense of $39.9 million, and charges of $18.8 million associated with the repurchase of convertible notes, which
resulted in the recognition of partial deferred tax benefit of $3.9 million. Additionally, we recorded a deferred tax benefit of
$6.3 million from stock-based compensation of $19.2 million under SFAS 123R. We have provided a tax provision at 41.5%
on the remaining pre-tax income. The increase in the tax rate on remaining pre-tax income is due to the impact of the recall,
repositioning and the related impact on realization of foreign tax credits. Income taxes are provided on taxable income at the
statutory rates applicable to such income and we have provided for U.S. federal income taxes and anticipated foreign
withholding taxes on the undistributed earnings of non-U.S, subsidiaries.

In 2005, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $12.9 million on a pre-tax loss of $440.3 million. The pre-tax
loss in 2005 included an in-process research and development charge of $490.8 million, 2 non-cash charge of $1.7 million
and a cash charge of $0.2 million related to the exchange of the 3 %% convertible senior subordinated notes and a charge of
$8.6 million associated with the termination of a distribution agreement in India with Allergan, for which no tax benefit was
provided on these items. We have provided a tax provision at 33% on the remaining income, which was partially offset by
tax benefits from the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and final adjustments with Allergan, which are discussed below.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law in October 2004, which allowed companies to elect to
repatriate cash into the United States in 2005 at a special, temporary effective tax rate of 5.25 percent. Based on our
evaluation of the amount of foreign earnings that we have elected to treat under this special provision, the income tax benefit
of the repatriation was $5.7 million in 2005.

The lower tax rate in 2005 reflected continuing implementation of our long-term tax strategies, as well as final
adjustments of previously accrued pre-spin-off taxes attributable to our business in 2002 and payable to Allergan pursuant to
a pre-spin tax sharing agreement. These adjustments included a $1.4 million benefit from the resolution of a discrete item in
the third quarter of 2005, which was recorded in the income tax provision.

We believe our future effective income tax rate may vary depending on our mix of domestic and international taxable
income or loss and the various tax and treasury methodologies we implement, including our policy regarding repatriation of
future accumulated foreign earnings.

40




In 2004, we recorded a provision for income taxes of $8.2 million even though we had a pre-tax loss of $121.2 million.
We recorded such provision as no tax benefit has been recognized for the IPR&D charge of $28.1 million nor for the
aggregate charge of $116.3 million related 1o the exchange of the 3 %2% convertible senior subordinated notes. We provided a
tax provision at 35% on the remaining income in 2004. The lower tax rate in 2004 reflected continuing implementation of
our long-term tax strategies.

Net earnings (loss). Net earnings (loss) was $79.5 million, $(453.2) million and $(129.4) million in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. Net earnings in 2006 was primarily due to the full year of operating results attributable to the VISX
acquisition, the net gain on legal contingencies, partially offset by business repositioning costs, stock-based compensation
expense under SFAS 123R and net charges incurred for the early retirement of convertible senior subordinated debt. The net
loss in 2005 included an aggregate after-tax charge of $536.9 million, primarily due to the VISX Acquisition, business
repositioning costs, integration related costs, and termination of a distributor agreement in India, write-off of debt issuance
costs and exchange of the 3 2% convertible senior subordinated notes, partially offset by tax benefits from the American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004 and final adjustments with Allergan.

The net toss in 2004 included an aggregate after-tax charge of $175.5 million related to the following: the
manufacturing profit capitalized in inventory and expensed related to the Pfizer Acquisition; the charge to terminate a
distributor contract following the decision to move to a direct sales model in Belgium as a result of the Pfizer Acquisition and
severance paid to employees considered redundant upon completion of the Pfizer Acquisition; the in-process research and
development charge related to the Pfizer Acquisition; the pro-rata write-off of debt issuance costs and write-off of original
issue discount net of a net realized gain on interest rate swaps; and the charges related to the repurchase of the 9 %% senior
subordinated notes and the exchange of the 3%2% convertible senior subordinated notes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We assess our liquidity by our ability to generate cash to fund operations. Significant factors in the management of
liquidity are: funds generated by operations; levels of accounts receivable, inventories, accounts payable and capital
expenditures; adequate lines of credit; and financial flexibility to attract long-term capital on satisfactory terms. As of
December 31, 2006, we had cash and equivalents of $34.5 million.

Historically, we have generated cash from operations in excess of working capital requirements, and we expect to do
so in the future. Net cash provided by operating activities in 2006 was $224.8 million compared to $20.8 million in 2005 and
$39.7 million in 2004. Operating cash flow improved in 2006 compared to 2005 largely as a result of settlement of legal
contingencies, the non-cash impact of stock-based compensation, depreciation and amortization and loss on exchange of
convertible notes. Other improvements included timing of collections on trade receivables and payments for interest on
outstanding debt and income taxes, as well as the favorable impact of the VISX acquisition. These improvements were
partially offset by an increase in cash payments 1o finalize business repositioning actions in 2006 and recall costs. Operating
cash flow decreased in 2005 compared to 2004 due to increases in cash paid for income taxes, timing of accounts payable
payments and inventory buildup, partially offset by the favorable impact of the VISX acquisition and timing of accounts
receivable collections. The inventory buildup was due in part to “bridging” stock related to the recent transfer of eye care
manufacturing from Allergan and the increases in the size and scope of our global manufacturing network.

Net cash used in investing activities was $40.4 million, $79.9 million, and $482.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The majority of 2006 capital expenditures were for the Uppsala, Sweden manufacturing facility to separate the
facility from existing Pfizer operations and related upgrades, and for upgrades to our eye care product manufacturing facility
in Madrid, Spain. The 2005 capital expenditures are primarily comprised of expenditures to upgrade our viscoelastics
manufacturing facility in Uppsala, Sweden. The 2005 amount includes $36.9 million net cash paid primarily for the
acquisition of VISX. The 2004 capital expenditures are primarily comprised of expansion of our manufacturing facilities in
preparation for the transition away from the Allergan manufacturing agreement, expenditures at the acquired manufacturing
facilities and construction of research and development facilities at our leased headquarters. The 2004 amount also includes
the $456.7 million Pfizer Acquisition purchase price, which was financed with a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of
$350.0 million of 2 ¥2% convertible senior subordinated notes and a $250.0 million term loan. Expenditures for property,
plant and equipment totaled $29.0 million, $23.1 million, and $17.5 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
Expenditures for demonstration (demo) and bundled equipment, primarily phacoemulsification and microkeratome surgical
equipment, were $10.8 million, $11.1 million, and $6.8 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. We maintain demo and
bundled equipment to facilitate future sales of similar equipment and related products to our customers. Expenditures for
capitalized internal-use software were $3.2 million, $8.8 million, and $2.4 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The
2005 software expenditures were due to acquisition related integrations and improvements to support common global
technology platforms. We capitalize internal-use software costs after technical feasibility has been established. In 2007, we
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expect to invest approximately $50.0 million to $60.0 million in property, plant and equipment, demo and bundled
equipment, and capitalized software as part of the overall expansion of our business,

Net cash used in financing activities was $189.8 million in 2006, which primarily comprised $227.7 million of debt
repayments and financing related costs of $11.1 miltion, offset by $42.2 million from the sale of stock to employees and $6.7
million of excess tax benefits. Proceeds of $500.0 million from the issuance of the 3.25% convertible senior subordinated
notes were used to repurchase 10.5 million shares of AMO common stock.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $54.0 million in 2005, which comprised $150.0 million of proceeds
from the issuance of the 1.375% convertible senior subordinated notes, $60.0 million of borrowings primarily under the
senior revolving credit facility, $45.8 million of proceeds from the sale of stock to employees and $0.8 million proceeds
received after settling an interest rate swap agreement, reduced by $194.2 million of debt repayments and $8.4 million of
financing related costs.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $442.2 million in 2004, which primarily comprised $350.0 million of
proceeds from the issuance of the 2 %2% convertible senior subordinated notes and a $250.0 million term loan, partially offset
by repayment of debt of $149.2 million and financing related costs of $16.6 million.

At December 31, 2006, approximately $8.4 million of the revolving credit facility was reserved to support letters of
credit issued on our behalf for normal operating purposes and we had approximately $291.6 million undrawn and available
revolving loan commitments.

At December 31, 2005, we had $10.0 million of borrowings outstanding under a short-term loan from Bank of Ireland
to our subsidiary, AMO Ireland. This loan was supported by a $10.0 million letter of credit and was paid in its entirety on
February 21, 2006 and is no longer available for borrowing.

Our senior credit facility provides that we will maintain certain financial and operating covenants which include,
among other provisions, maintaining specific leverage and coverage ratios. Certain covenants under the senior credit facility
may limit the incurrence of additional indebtedness. The senior credit facility prohibits dividend payments. We were in
compliance with these covenants at December 31, 2006. Our senior credit facility is collateralized by a first priority
perfected lien on, and pledge of, all of the combined company’s present and future property and assets (subject to certain
exclusions), 100% of the stock of the domestic subsidiaries, 66% of the stock of the foreign subsidiaries and all present and
future intercompany debts.

Our cash position includes amounts denominated in foreign currencies, and the repatriation of those cash balances
from some of our non-U.S. subsidiaries may result in additional tax costs. However, these cash balances are generally
available without legal restriction to fund ordinary business operations.

We believe that the net cash provided by our operating activities, supplemented as necessary with borrowings
available under our revolving credit facility and existing cash and equivalents, will provide sufficient resources to fund the
expected 2007 capital expenditures, and to meet our working capital requirements, debt service and other cash needs over the
next year.

We are partially dependent upon the reimbursement policies of government and private health insurance companies.
Government and private sector initiatives to limit the growth of health care costs, including price regulation and competitive
pricing, are continuing in many countries where we do business. As a result of these changes, the marketplace has placed
increased emphasis on the delivery of more cost-effective medical therapies. While we have been unaware of significant
price resistance resulting from the trend toward cost containment, changes in reimbursement policies and other
reimbursement methodologies and payment levels could have an adverse effect on our pricing flexibility.

Additionally, the current trend among U.S. hospitals and other customers of medical device manufacturers is to
consolidate into larger purchasing groups to enhance purchasing power. The enhanced purchasing power of these larger
customers may also increase the pressure on preduct pricing, although we are unable to estimate the potential impact at this
time.

Inflation. Although at reduced levels in recent years, inflation may cause upward pressure on the cost of goods and
services used by us. The competitive and regulatory environments in many markets substantially limit our ability to fully
recover these higher costs through increased selling prices. We continually seek to mitigate the adverse effects of inflation
through cost containment and improved productivity and manufacturing processes.
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Foreign currency fluctuations. Approximately 58%, 67%, and 75% of our revenues in the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were derived from operations outside the United States, and a significant portion of our
cost structure is denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily the Japanese yen and the euro. Therefore, we
are subject to fluctuations in sales and earnings reported in U.S. dollars as a result of changing currency exchange rates.

Conrractual obligations. The following represents a list of our material contractual obligations and commitments as of
December 31, 2006:

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than
1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years Total
(in millions)

Long-term debt, principal amount .............ococoevevevevevevenne. 5 — 3 — & — $ 8511 % 8511
Cash commitments for interest payments ...............coccoccen. 23.8 477 477 3336 452.8
Operating lease obligations..............cvviirinisinesninesn, 16.1 17.0 8.2 21.8 63.1
IT SEIVICES....coiiiiiiricirraracrcsesrenre s reressesenesrnsesess s nensanesnns 36 — — — 3.6
Other purchase obligations, primarily purchases of

inventory and capital equipment............coeceinenieienn, 62.0 46 — — 66.6

Off-balance sheet arrangements. We had no off-balance sheet arrangements at Decemnber 31, 2006.
New Accounting Standards

In May 20035, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 154, “Accounting Changes
and Error Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3.” SFAS No. 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements for changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable
to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that
retrospective application of a change in accounting principle be limited to the direct effects of the change. Indirect effects of a
change in accounting principle, such as a change in non-discretionary profit-sharing payments resulting from an accounting
change, should be recognized in the period of the accounting change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in
depreciation, amortizaticn, or depletion method for long-lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 154 did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross versus Net
Presentation)” to clarify diversity in practice on the presentation of different types of taxes in the financial statements. The
Task Force concluded that, for taxes within the scope of the issue, a company may adopt a policy of presenting taxes either
gross within revenue or net. That is, it may include charges to customers for taxes within revenues and the charge for the
taxes from the taxing authority within cost of sales, or, altematively, it may net the charge to the customer and the charge
from the taxing authority. If taxes subject to EITF 06-3 are significant, a company is required to disclose its accounting
policy for presenting taxes and the amounts of such taxes that are recognized on a gross basis. The guidance in this consensus
is effective for the first interim reporting period beginning after December 15, 2006 (the first quarter of our fiscal year 2007).
We do not expect the adoption of EITF 06-3 will have a material impact on our results of operations, financial position or
cash flow.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement 1097 (“FIN 487).and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes” by prescribing guidance for the recognition, derecognition and measurement in financial statements of
income tax positions taken in previously filed tax returns or tax positions expected to be taken in tax returns, including a
decision whether to file or not to file in a particular jurisdiction. FIN 48 requires that any liability created for unrecognized
1ax benefits be disclosed. The application of FIN 48 may also affect the tax bases of assets and liabilities and therefore may
change or create deferred tax liabilities or assets. The Company will be required to adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. If
there are changes in the net assets of the Company as a result of the application of FIN 48, the cumulative effects, if any, will
be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings, We are currently evaluating the impact of adoption of FIN 48 and have
not yet determined the effect on our earnings or financial position,
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurement.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. This Statement does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently assessing the
impact of SFAS No. 157 on our financial statements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Qualifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” which provides interpretive guidance
on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a
materiality assessment. The adoption of SAB No. 108 in 2006 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 158, “Employer’s
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a plan’s
overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its
funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year, and recognize changes in the funded status of a defined benefit
postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur. Those changes will be reported in comprehensive income and as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. We adopted SFAS No. 158 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The impact of
the adoption of this new accounting standard is disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The effect on
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 from the adoption of SFAS No. 158 was based on the funded status of the defined
benefit plans as of September 30, 2000, the measurement date of the plans’ assets and obligations. We will be required to
change the measurement date to December 31 in fiscal year 2008.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We routinely monitor the risks associated with fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates. We address
these risks through controlled risk management that may include the use of derivative financial instruments to economically
hedge or reduce these exposures. We do not expect to enter into financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Given the inherent limitations of forecasting and the anticipatory nature of the exposures intended to be hedged, there
can be no assurance that such programs will offset more than a portion of the adverse financial impact resulting from
unfavorable movements in either interest or foreign exchange rates. In addition, the timing of the accounting for recognition
of gains and losses related to mark-to-market instruments for any given period may not coincide with the timing of gains and
losses related to the underlying economic exposures and, therefore, may adversely affect our operating results and financial
position.

To ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of our interest rate and foreign exchange hedge positions, we continually
monitor, from an accounting and economic perspective, our interest rate swap positions and foreign exchange forward and
option positions, when applicable, both on a stand-alone basis and in conjunction with our underlying interest rate and
foreign currency exposures.

Interest rate risk. At December 31, 2006, our debt comprises domestic borrowings of $851.1 million of fixed rate debt.

In July 2004, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement, which effectively converted the interest rate on $125.0
million of term loan borrowings from a floating rate to a fixed rate. This interest rate swap qualified as a cash flow hedge and
would have matured in July 2006. In April 2005, we terminated the interest rate swap. Upon termination, we received
approximately $0.8 million and included the related gain of approximately $0.5 million, which includes the accrued but
unpaid net amount between us and the swap counterparty, as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in the
second quarter of 2005. As a result of the repayment of the term loan in July 2005, the gain on the interest rate swap of $0.8
million was fully recognized as a reduction to the interest expense in the third quarter of 2005.




The tables below present information about our debt obligations and interest rate derivatives for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005:

December 31, 2006
Maturing in
Fair Market
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Total Value
(in thousands, except interest rates)

LIABILITIES
Debt Obligations:
Fixed Rate ..ocoeeeeennn. $ — 3 — 8 — 8 — 5 — § 246,105 § 246,105 § 238722
Weighted Average

Interest Rate — — — — — 2.50% 2.50%
Fixed Rate ................. ) — § — 8 — § — 3 — § 105000 $ 105000 $ 99,554
Weighted Average

Interest Rate.......... — — — — —_ 1.375% 1.375%
Fixed Rate ................. $ — 5 — 3 — 3 — 8 — 5 500,000 § 500,000 % 455950
Weighted Average

Interest Rate.......... — — — — — 3.25% 3.25%
Total Debt

Obligations............ $ — 3 — § — 3 — 8 — & 851,105 § 851,105 $ 794,226
Weighted Average

Interest Rate.......... — — — — —_ 2.80% 2.80%

December 31, 2005
Maturing in
Fair Market
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total Value
(in thousands, except interest rates)

LIABILITIES
Debt Obligations:
Fixed Rate ................. b — ¥ — § — $ — 8 -— § 350,000 § 350,000 $ 376,705
Weighted Average

Interest Rate — —_ — — — 2.50% 2.50%
Fixed Rate ......ccevnnene b — 3 — § — 5 — 3 — % 150,000 § 150,000 $ 150948
Weighted Average

Interest Rate.......... — — — — — 1.375% 1.375%
Variable Rate............. $§ 10000 $ — 5 — 5 — 3% — 8 — § {0000 $ 10,000
Weighted Average

Interest Rate 4.61% — — — _— — 4.61%
Variable Rate............. § 50,000 % — § — 3 — 8 — 5 — $ 50000 % 50.000
Weighted Average

Interest Rate.......... 6.22% — — — — — 6.22%
Total Debt

Obligations............ $§ 60000 3 — % — 5 — $ — § 500000 § 560000 $ 587,653
Weighted Average

Interest Rate.......... 5.95% — — — — 2.16% 2.57%

Foreign currency risk. Overall, we are a net recipient of currencies other than the U.S. dollar and, as such, we benefit
from a weaker dollar and are adversely affected by a stronger dollar relative to major currencies worldwide. Accordingly,
changes in exchange rates, and in particular a strengthening of the U.S. dollar, may negatively affect our consolidated net
sales and gross profit as expressed in U.S. dollars.

We may enter into foreign exchange option and forward contracts to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility
associated with foreign exchange rate changes to allow management to focus its attention on its core business operations.
Accordingly, we enter into contracts which change in value as foreign exchange rates change to economicaliy offset the
effect of changes in value of foreign currency assets and liabilities, commitments and anticipated foreign currency
denominated sales and operating expenses. We enter into foreign exchange option and forward contracts in amounts between
minimum and maximum anticipated foreign exchange exposures, generally for periods not to exceed one year. We do not
enter into foreign exchange option and forward contracts for trading purpose.

We use foreign currency option contracts, which provide for the sale of foreign currencies to offset foreign currency
exposures expected to arise in the normal course of our business. While these instruments are subject to fluctuations in value,
such fluctuations are anticipated to offset changes in the value of the underlying exposures. The principal currencies subject
1o this process are the Japanese yen and the euro. The foreign exchange forward contracts are entered into to protect the value
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of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities and the changes in the fair value of the foreign currency
forward contracts were economically designed to offset the changes in the revaluation of the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities. These forward contracts are denominated in currencies which represent material exposures.
The changes in the fair value of foreign currency option and forward contracts are recorded through earnings as “Unrealized
loss (gain} on derivative instruments” while any realized gains or losses on expired contracts are recorded through earnings as
“Other, net” in the accompanying consclidated statements of operations. Any premium cost of purchased foreign exchange
option contracts are recorded in “Other current assets” and amortized over the life of the options.

At December 31, 2006, there are no outstanding interest rate swaps.
The following tables provide information about our foreign currency derivative financial instruments outstanding as of

December 31, 2006 and 2005. The information is provided in U.S. dollar amounts, as presented in our consolidated financial
statements.

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Average Average
Contract Contract
Notional or Strike Notional or Strike
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(in § millions} (in $ millions)
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Receive US$/Pay Foreign Currency:
SWEdISh KIONA....cecevivirivviictieciric e sniressssssreensssersensssarsensasens $ 8.8 685 $ 315 7.94
UK Pound ..o esne e s eee e — — 52 1.72
Canadian Dollar.....cveeensiiniieimenomemsess s sssnesisssars 9.5 1.16 —_ —
AUSTAlia DOLLAT «.cvvvririvrer e s reeeessnsssraesssnsserensssnsen 7.1 1.27 — —
SWISS FTANC ....cvieiiicceciee e e et ee e e eaenes — — 1.5 1.31
Japanese Yen ... 7.1 118.8
Pay US$/Receive Foreign Currency:
JapANEse YEI ....covi ittt —_ — 30 117.45
BULO oot reee s e s s ree e sneve s e aecssanne s s bn e e e s st e e s e annans — — 59 1.19
SWISS FLANC ..ciiiviviiiieiiieeccis et tes et ettt ettt 3.7 1.22 — —
Canadian Dollar........oovveeivieeieeeecitcrcce e e — — 34 1.17
Astralia DOLIAr ..ottt — — 29 0.73
Total NOtOnaL..........ooooeeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeee s $ 36.2 $ 53.4
Estimated Fair ValUe. ... $ — $ —
Foreign currency purchased put options:
JAPANESE YN ....eovoiviiciiecrciecct e $ 72.0 11800 $ 66.2 117.83
BUTO 1 ctrcre s s e esine s svr s sie e s snnesste e s snne s ieesnnesssessnnnesnessassevnens 50.8 1.24 40.2 1.18
Foreign currency sold call options:
JAPANESE YOI ..o e 81.3 104.50 60.0 106.60
11 | o S 53.1 1.29 43.0 1.26
Total Notional. .........cooiieeeececececeeeeee s es s sran s $ 257.2 $ 209.4
Estimated Fair Value...........cccccooeivieiciiiince e $ (0.6) $ 1.1

The notional principal amount provides one measure of the transaction volume outstanding as of the end of the period,
and does not represent the amount of our exposure to market loss. The estimate of fair value is based on applicable and
commonly used prevailing financial market information as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. The amounts ultimately realized
upon settlement of these financial instruments, together with the gains and losses on the underlying exposures, will depend on
actual market conditions during the remaining life of the instruments.

The impact of foreign exchange risk management transactions on income was a net realized gain (loss) of $2.3 million,

$(2.0) million and $(1.9) million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which are recorded in “Other, net” on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

[T g (=311 Tt € TR
Cash and eqUIVAlEnts ........cccociviiiiiiiiiii s
Trade reCeivables, NEL.....ccoceii e e e e e e e s s s bee e s st e s s ersmr e s srbreeensreeresranes
LR Y o [PPSO
DEfEITEA INCOME TAKES ...ttt sb s ss bbb ss bbb ss e b e eb bbbt b e e bbb ebesbesbses
INCOME LAX TECEIVADLE ..ot e et eae e e e eae e rteeeseeeeneenn
OHET CUITENE ASSELS....e.vieieieeeceieteeeese e e sessesseeete e et e e seesaessaessaeesasrmssrasasesastannsannann saes

TOtA] CUITETIE ASSELS ..vvvvereveerrreerereeerneeirerinsesrrrsrssesssesersnessrresssnss saassrsnssnsassranssnnerssrarssan

Property, plant and eqUIPIMENT, MEL........coocveeiereiie e e smee s

Deferred INCOME TAXES ..ovivviiiiiiiiieeiiieiiieaiieesisassreeeiasassseesisseasssassrasasssasssssasssesssnsasssasssnsarsnss

L S8 e ureeciteeetee ittt ittt ettt e bbb e e st e s b e e bt aas b bt e s bt e bbb ea e sa bt e ansasabbteen e e tbteeanne st

INtangible ASSELS, TEL..oeoi ittt et s e et et e e naee eeeenen

GOOAWITL oottt e ee et etee e e s s e maeaeasae e e mmaseeaeaes s ssnsmseseeesansnsesanaenasansnsnsanansesen

TOtAl ASSELS...coe ettt ee e e eeeeeece e e e eaee e e e e e e rtrreaeeesseasnreeaeeesseaanreeeeaeeaannn

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current HabilIEs .....ooooei et e e e b s e e e enen
Current portion of long-term debt and short-term borrowings ........ccoocvvevinicincnie e,
Accounts payable.............oooo
Accrued COMPENSALON........covorieeerireerrnrr e e n e e
Other 3CCTUBT BXPRIISES ..cocovriiiiiiiiiiiiieie st
INCOIME fAXES ..o iee e e et e s e e s e e e s sme e sme s r e are e reanne e re e r e meas
Deferred INCOME AXES ....cccviiiiniiriiinic i e e e eeass st s
Total current Habilities.....ccoovvvviniiiiiiii s

Long-term debt, net of current portion

Deferred iNCOME LAXES .....ooivieiiieeiec ittt et e et eme et ememeenene
Other HabilIIEs ..o ettt e et a e e emse e aennns
Commitments and CONBNZENCIES ...oocciiiiiieir et e e e e e seee e e e seee e e s smeesenns
StOCKhOIAETS™ EQUILY ...eeieiecieeecieee et e et set e s
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized, none issued .......coccveene
Common stock, $.01 par value; 240,000,000 shares authorized; 59,512,106 and
67,832,010 Shares 1SSUEHA ..vvvvviriiiiiiiiiiiiiesiiserires e sississstaststsisisiatseststsisssisrsrsssssssssissiarans
Additional paid-in Capital .........ooceiieiiiiniiiiie e
Accumulated defiCit.. ...

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Less treasury stock, at cost (1,397 and 1,397 shares) ......cccocovoirvmicr e
Total StocKhOlders” BUILY....cciveviiiiiiictene ettt

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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As of December 31,

2006 2005

(In thousands, except share data)

$ 34,522 § 40,826
232,408 238,761
127,532 104,820

41,698 66,476
15,045 —_
26,938 28,122
478,143 479,005
132,756 115,725
13,260 12,626
69,365 52,473
471,664 495,609
848,709 825,284

$ 2013897 3 1,980,722

3 — 3 60,000
53,897 64,045
41,896 43,406

120,384 90,666
— 1,434
1,276 565
217,453 260,116
851,105 500,000
185,844 182,179
43,504 28,365
595 678
1,409,475 1,586,864
(730,800) (557,586}
36,745 (19,870)
(24) @4)
715,991 1,010,062

$ 2,013,897 § 1,980,722




ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC,

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

GrOSS PIOFIL ...ttt et s r e er et se et e
Selling, general and adminiSIrAtiVe..........cccovriveinencece e
Research and development ...
In-process research and development ..........ovecceeiiciriioien e e
BUSINESS TEPOSITOMIME «...veeeeeeeeeeemeeeeerreescesses e e atassesessemceseneeeanssasassseneeneas
Net gain on legal CONTINZENCIES ...vvviiviivieiceircvercrr e ereene s ae e rees
Operating inCoOmMEe (lOSS)........o.oriiiiree s s

Non-operating expense (income):
Interest expense ..
Unrealized loss (gam) on derlvauve 1nstruments

Loss due to early retirement of Convertible Seruor Subordmated
INOEES (TIOUE B) -oeeveeeieirierereeerrersersreestererssesreesssessressssaesssesasnsesasesssnsesnne
Other, DEL ..ttt

Eamnings (1055} before INCOME tAXES ..vvvveiiiniiiiccerinicceeneir i ee s eessreesnsssseseesnnes
Provision fOr iNCOME TAKES .....ccoiviiiiimieeciiti st c et ssiaree st re s e ssarec s snaneeas
INEt @AITUHNES (F0S5) teemeenreeieeeansrrvreeeaeesesmenssiriersseeeaeeseeararsssrssaesseasessesmarsssaerineasens

Net earnings (loss) per share:

BASIC vt cier e sttt i e e s s e e s s e e st st e s aasse s ree e s aaaraseet et e s Rt e nanbasesianreenrres

Diluted ... vt neeart e eees
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

5 1T T U O OSSPSR
DI Lo e e ee e re s s sbae s e ee e e s an e e s s s e e aaere e br b v anaeeanean

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)
5997496 $ 920,673 § 742,009
379,325 353,325 306,164
618,171 567,348 435,935
404,802 396,599 329,197
66,099 61,646 45,616
— 490,750 28,100
46,417 29,680 —_—
(96,396) — —
197,749 (411,327) 33,022
30,272 29,332 26,933
1,290 (2,563) 403
18,783 1,885 116,282
2,588 316 10,620
52,933 28,970 154,238
144816 (440,297) (121,216)
65,345 12,900 8,154
$ 79471 $(453,197) $(129,370)
$ 125 § (828 § (3.89)
$ 121 $ (828) % (3.89)
63,383 54,764 33,284
63,571 34,764 33,284

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Balance a1 December 31,
2003

Comprchensive loss
Net loss......c.......
Foreign currency

translation adjusiments.......
Unrealized gain on
derivative instrument
qualifying as cash flow
hedge, netof 5112 of tax....
‘Total comprehensive luss
Issuance of common stock i
conneclion with
converlible note exchanges .

Issuance of common stock

under stock option plagt ...,

Issuance of common stock

under stock purchase plans,.

Issuance of restncted stock ........

Expense of compensution

plan..

Tax bene ploy

stock plans ...

Purchase of treasury stock. at

[ O

Balance at December 31,
2004

{or realized gain on
derivative instrument
qualifying as cash flow
hedge, netof $112 of tax....
Total comprehensive loss.......

{ssuance of common stock in
connection with
convertible
1ol EAChaBEes ...
Issuance of common stock
under stock option plan.......
Issuance of common stock
under stock purchase plans..
Issuance of restricted stock ..o
Cancellation of restricted stock..
[ssuance of common stock
under VISX acquisition.......
Expens¢ of compensation plan...
Tax benefits from employee
stock plans.....cececins
Transfer of restricted stock 1o
wreasury stock.

Balance at December 31,
2008

Comprehensive income
Net eamings ........ .
Foreign currency translation

BAjUSLMENS L ruviirineseeennannee
Total comprehensive
income...

Adjustment for initial adoption
of FAS 158, net of taxes......
Issuance of commaon stock
under stock option plan .......
Issuance of common stock
under stock purchase plans..
Isswance of restricted stock ...
Cancellation of restricted
stock
Stock repurchase .
Reetassification of upearned
compeasation balance ...
Tax benefits from cmployee
S10CK Plans vnnesreesseseensnn
Sinck-based compensation

Balance ot December 31,
2006

Retained Accumblsted
Additionsl Farnings Other
Common Stock Paid-In Unearned (Accumulated  Comprehensive Treasury Stock Comprehensive
Shares Par Value In Capital Compenstion Deficit) Income {Loss) Shares Amount Total Income {Loss)
{in thousands}
29379 % 294§ 54,124 % (64) & 24981 3 13.868 ms (15 % 93.192
(129.370) (129.370) § {129,370}
55.799 55,799 55,799
207 207 207
(73,364
7021 70 243,881 243951
490 5 4934 4939
171 2 3051 3053
3 265 (265} —
219 219
4,288 4,288
(8) @#)
37.069 37 s 310547 § {310 {104,389) § 69,874 s (23)§ - 26270
(453,197) (453,197) & {453,197)
(89,537} (89,537} (B9.537)
(207) (207) 3__@)
3. o)
453 4 10,126 10,130
2,305 23 41,388 41,411
144 I 4,429 4.430
74 } 4,008 {4.008) 1
49 49 —
27787 2718 1,202,907 1,203,585
L2445 245
16,332 16,332
1th] (L)
67,832 678 §  1,589688 % (2,824) % (557,586 § (19.870) (s 25 1010062
79.471 79471 % 79471
58,036 58,036 38036
s urse
(1,421) {1421)
1,799 18 17.276 37.294
154 2 4927 4,929
225 2 2) —
(T) - —
(10,491) (105) (247.210) {252.685) (500,000)
(2,824) 2,824 —
8,386 8,386
19,234 19.234
59.512 595 § 1409473 § — 8 (730.800) § 36745 s 24) § 715,991

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)
Cash flows provided by operating activities
Net earnings (loss): $ 79471 § (453,197) § (129,370)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash provided by operating activitics:
Ameonization and write-off of original issue discount and debt issuance costs .........evrne 7,051 9,284 11,028
Amortization and write-off of net realized gain on interest rate SWaps ....oocicreeennieenee —_ (773) (3,466)
Depreciation and amMOrtiZation .............coveeriiminencserinemsras s s seneeses 70,598 51,588 23,616
Deferred income taxes.. 29,985 (5,104) (16,737)
Tax benefit from issuance of slock under stock plans — — 4,288
In-process research and development.... e — 490,750 28,100
Loss on exchange of convertible senior qubordmated NOES ..o ceerrrarnien 18,783 1,670 111,702
| Loss on investments and assets .. 2,204 13,165 1,047
| Unrealized loss (gain) on dcrivatives 1,290 (2,563) 403
Stock based compensation expense.. . 19,234 1,245 215
; Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effccl of acqmsmon
Trade receivabIES ..ot e bbb b as 13,918 (27,780) (48,459)
INVEMTOMES L.vveeieiitii it ceeeeeeceeeeecare s bt reeembeeranssssaenssconntsenneesrnsensneenes {20,378} (14,720) 13,198
Other current assels (6,190} (7,170) (1,514)
Accounts payable.... (11,823) (27,328) 39,759
Accrued expenses and other llabllltle‘i 27,647 6,684 7,294
Income taxes .. (6,880) (16,802) 5,775
Other non-currem assets ................................................................................................ (116) 1,887 (7,215)
Net cash provided by operating aCtVIHES ....coovvvvriiesn e eeeresrrssrrsssessiensess 224,794 20,836 39,668
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of business, net of cash acquIred ........ooooecvieeeciicniee e — (36,867) (456,709)
Additions to property, plant and equipment.......c.ccocvcceeerrnn, (29,023} (23,097) (17,492
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,609 48 1,172
Additions to capitalized internal-use SOfIWATE......cc..ccveerieeeecr v (3,191) (8,816) (2,415
Additions to demonstration and bundled equipment.........ccoocevvvirenireenincennns (10,756) (11,135) (6,778)
Net cash used in iNVESHNE ACHVILIES ...vvvivinieiniiiiiis e ees ettt rees (40,361) (79,867} {482,222)
Cash flows from financing activities
Short-term borrowings (TEPAYMENLS), NEL......ocrvcrrrrcrmerereaereesrassessrrssrserssssorsossomeesssss sessssenes (60,000) 60,000 —
Repayment of long-1erm debt ...t bt (167,678} (194,166) (149,243}
Financing related COStS ....couviveeieenririencniiinerienins (11,063} (8.459) (16,553)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 500,000 150,000 600,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 42,223 45,841 7,992
Repurchase and retirement of common $tocK .....ocvieeiiinnn, (500,000) —_ —
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation ............ 6,718 — —
OHBET ...t et e aR s a e bt o1 s nena s RS n AR s et nea e anana e enes — 773 (8)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ............ccovviververeeeemsneseeeeernsrens (189,800) 53,9389 442,188
Effect of exchange rates on cash and equivalents (937) (3,587) 3,717
Net (decrease) increase in cash and equivalents ..... (6,304) (8,629) 3,351
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year.............. 40,826 49,455 46,104
Cash and equivalents at end Of YEar..... ...t et nssan e $ 34522 § 40826 $ 49455
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:
EIEETESL. ..ottt st et n s s e reten $ 14781 § 22005 $ 21472
TICOMNE LAXES....ecee ettt ie et e eb vt s a e e e ebesmeebenns st aneareaeseresssesesnessnesessansasenns 25,675 34,805 14,225
Supplemental non-cash investing and financing activities:
Exchange of convertible notes into COMIMON SLOCK ........vervivieienesssineesenreesessmssreenrssssrnsns $ — $ 8600 § 131400
Acquisition of VISX, Incorporated (NOte 3) ..o nines — 1,203,185 —

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Note 1: Description of Business

Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. (AMO or the Company) develops, manufactures and markets medical devices for the
eyes. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company’s reportable segments are represented by three business units:
cataract/implant, laser vision correction (I.VC) and eye care. Previously, the Company’s reportable segments were based on
geographic regions which comprised the Americas, which included North and South America, Europe/Africa/Middle East,
Japan and Asia Pacific, which excluded Japan and included New Zealand and Australia. The cataract/implant business
focuses on the four key products required for cataract surgery — foldable intraocular lenses, or IOL’s, implantation systems,
phacoemulsification systems and viscoelastics. The LVC business markets laser systems, diagnostic devices, treatment cards
and microkeratomes for use in laser eye surgery. The eye care business provides a full range of contact lens care products for
use with most types of contact lenses. These products include single-bottle, multi-purpose cleaning and disinfecting
solutions, hydrogen peroxide-based disinfecting solutions, daily cleaners, enzymatic cleaners, contact lens rewetting draps,
and in Europe and Asia, contact lenses. The Company sells its products in approximately 60 countries and has direct
operations in approximately 20 countries.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

This summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in understanding and evaluating the
consolidated financial staternents. These policies are in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and have been applied consistently in all material respects. The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period,
and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AMO and all of its subsidiaries. All significant
transactions among the consolidated entities have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial position and results of operations of AMO’s foreign operations are generally determined using local
currency as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these operations are translated at the exchange rate in effect at
each year-end. Income statement amounts are translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing during the year.
Translation adjustments arising from the use of differing exchange rates from period to period are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions and
remeasurements relating to foreign operations deemed to be operating in U.S. dollar functional currency are included in
“Other, net” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Cash and Equivalents

The Company considers cash and equivalents to include cash in banks, money market mutual funds and time deposits
with financial institutions with original maturities of 90 days or less.

Investments
The Company has non-marketabie equity investments in conjunction with its various collaboration arrangements. The
non-marketable equity investments are recorded at cost and are evaluated periodically for other than temporary declines in
fair vailue. The Company uses the following criteria to determine if such a decline should be considered other than temporary:

» the duration and extent to which the market value has been less than cost;

» the financial condition and near-term prospects of the investee;
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*  the reasons for the decline in market value;
»  the investee’s performance against product development milestones; and

» the Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in market value.

If it is determined that a decline of any investment is other than temporary, then the carrying value would be written
down to fair value, and the write-down would be included in earnings as a loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of first-in, first-out cost or market. On a regular basis, the Company evaluates its
inventory balances for excess quantities and obsolescence by analyzing demand, inventory on hand, sales levels and other
information. Based on these evaluations, inventory balances are written down, if necessary.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Additions, major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while
maintenance and repairs are expensed. For financial reporting purposes, depreciation is generally provided on the straight-
line method over the useful lives of the related assets, which are 20 to 40 years for buildings and improvements and from 3 to
15 years for machinery and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the related facility lease or the
asset, whichever is shorter. Accelerated depreciation methods are generally used for income tax purposes.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs over the fair value of net assets of purchased businesses. Intangible
assets include licensing agreements, customer relationships and technology rights, which are amortized utilizing a straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 19 years, and non-amortizable trademarks.

The Company has adopted Statement of Financtal Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” (SFAS 142}, whereby goodwill and non-amortizable intangible assets are no longer amortized, but instead is subject
to a periodic impairment review performed during the second quarter of each fiscal year. In a business combination, goodwill
is allocated to the Company’s various reporting units, which are the same as the Company’s reportable operating segments,
based on relative fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The Company reviews the recoverability of its
goodwill and non-amortizable intangible assets on an annual basis by comparing each unit’s fair value to the net book value
of its assets. If the book value of the reporting unit’s assets exceeds its fair value, the goodwill is written down to its implied
fair value. In the second quarters of 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company performed its annual impairment tests of its
goodwill and non-amortizable intangible assets, and no impairment was indicated based on these tests.

Additionally, the Company reviews the carrying amount of goodwill whenever events and circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of goodwill may not be recoverable. Impairment indicators include, among other conditions, cash flow
deficits, historic or anticipated declines in revenue or operating profit and adverse legal or regulatory developments. If it is
determined such indicators are present and the review indicates goodwill will not be fully recoverable, based upon discounted
estimated cash flows, the carrying value is reduced to implied fair value,

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Assets” (SFAS 144), the
Company assesses potential impairment to its long-lived assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable. If required, an impairment loss is recognized as the difference
between the carrying value and the fair value of the assets.

Capitalized Software
The Company capitalizes certain internal-use computer software costs after technological feasibility has been

established. These capitalized costs are amortized utilizing the straight-line method over their estimated economic life not to
exceed three years.
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Demonstration (Demo) and Bundled Equipment

In the normal course of business, the Company maintains demo and bundled equipment, primarily phacoemulsification
and microkeratome surgical equipment, for the purpose and intent of selling similar equipment or related products to the
customer in the future. Demo and bundied equipment are not held for sale and are recorded as other non-current assets. The
assets are amortized utilizing the straight-line method over their estimated economic life not to exceed three years.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

Revenue is realized or realizable and earned when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred,
the price to the buyer is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. The Company records revenue from
product sales when title and risk of ownership have been transferred to the customer, which is typically upon delivery to the
customer, with the exception of intraccular lenses distributed on a consignment basis, which is upon notification of
implantation in a patient. The Company recognizes license fees and revenues from the sale of treatment cards to direct
customers when it ships the treatment cards as it has no continuing obligations or involvement subsequent to shipment.

Some customers finance the purchase or rental of their VISX equipment directly from the Company over periods
ranging from one to three years. These financing agreements are classified as either rental or operating leases or sales type
leases as prescribed by SFAS No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” Under sales type leases, equipment revenues are recognized
based on the net present value of the expected cash flow after installation to direct customers in the United States and Japan
or after shipment to international distributors. Under rental or operating lease arrangements, rental revenue is recognized over
the term of the agreement.

The Company generally permits returns of product if such product is returned in a timely matter, in good condition, and
through the normal channels of distribution. However, the Company does not accept returns of treatment cards and does not
provide rights of return or exchange, price protection or stock rotation rights to any VISX product distributors. Return
policies in certain international markets can be more stringent and are based on the terms of contractual agreements with the
customers. Allowances for returns are provided for based upon an analysis of the Company’s historical patterns of returns
matched against the sales from which they originated. To date, historical product returns have been within the Company’s
estimates.

When the Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products, certain allowances known and estimable at time of
sale are recorded as a reduction to sales. These items include cash discounts, allowances and rebates. These items are
reflected as a reduction to accounts receivable to the extent the customer will or is expected to reduce its payment on the
related invoice amounts. In addition, certain items such as rebates provided to customers that meet certain buying targets are
paid to the customer subsequent to customer payment. Thus, such amounts are recorded as accrued liabilities. These
provisions are estimated based on historical payment experience, historical relationship to revenues and estimated customer
inventory levels. To date, historical sales allowances have been within the Company’s estimates.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is determined by analyzing specific customer accounts and assessing the risk of
uncollectibility based on insolvency, disputes or other collection issues. In addition, the Company routinely analyzes the
different aging categories and establishes allowances based on the length of time receivables are past due (based on
contractual terms). A write-off will occur if the settlement of the account receivable is less than the carrying amount or the
Company determines the balance will not be collected,

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk principally consist of trade receivables.
Wholesale distributors, major retail chains, and managed care organizations account for a substantial portion of trade
receivables. This risk is limited due to the large number of customers comprising the Company’s customer base, and their
geographic dispersion. Ongoing credit evaluations of customers’ financial condition are performed and, generally. no
collateral is required. The Company maintains reserves for potential credit losses and such losses, in the aggregate, have not
exceeded management’s expectations.

Income Taxes

The Company records income taxes under the asset and liability method, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and for operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
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assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized
in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Management evaluates the need to establish a valuation allowance
for deferred tax assets based upon the amount of existing temporary differences, the period in which they are expected to be
recovered and expected levels of taxable income, A valuation allowance to reduce deferred tax assets is established when it is
“more likely than not” that some or all of the deferred t1ax assets will not be realized. -

In preparing its consolidated financial statements, the Company is required to estimate its income taxes in each
Jurisdiction in which it operates. This process invelves estimating the current liability as well as assessing temporary
differences resulting from differing treatment of items for tax and financial accounting purposes. Significant management
Judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Stock Based Compensation

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company’'s stock-based compensation plans were accounted for under the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (APB
25) and the disclosure only provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (SFAS 123). Accordingly, no
compensation expense was recorded for stock options granted with exercise prices greater than or equal to the fair value of
the underlying common stock at the option grant date. The fair value, as determined on the date of grant, of restricted stock
awards was recognized as compensation expense ratably over the respective vesting period. Additionally, the ESPP qualified
as a non-compensatory plan under APB 23; therefore, no compensation cost was recorded in relation to the discount offered
to employees for purchases made under the ESPP.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123R, requiring recognition
of expenses equivalent to the fair vatue of stock-based compensation awards. The Company has elected to use the modified
prospective application transition method as permitted by SFAS 123R and therefore has not restated the financial results
reported in prior periods. Under this transition method, stock-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31,
2006 includes compensation expense for all stock-based compensation awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of
January I, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, as
adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense for ail stock-based compensation awards granted subsequent to
January 1, 2006 is based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. In addition,
the Company’s unearned compensation balance at January 1, 2006 was reclassified to additional paid-in capital upon the
adoption of SFAS 123R.

Additionally, under SFAS 123R, the ESPP is considered a compensatory plan and requires recognition of
compensation expense for purchases of common stock made under the ESPP, The Company recognizes compensation
expense for stock option and ESPP awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Compensation expense related to
the restricted stock and restricted stock units is recognized over the requisite service periods of the awards, consistent with
the Company’s practices under SFAS 123 prior to January 1, 2006.

Research and Development
Research and development costs are charged to expense when incurred.

Acquired In-Process Research and Development

Costs to acquire in-process research and development (IPR&D) projects and technologies which have no alternative
future use and which have not reached technological feasibility at the date of acquisition are expensed as incurred (see
Note 3).

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) encompasses all changes in equity other than those with stockholders and consists of net
earnings (loss), foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains/losses on derivative instruments and pension
obligations, if applicable.
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The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were as follows:

Foreign Change in net Total accumulated
currency unrealized holding  Unrecognized losses other
translation gains / losses on and prior service comprehensive

(in millions) adjustment derivatives cost, net income (loss)
Balance as of December 31, 2003............. $ 13,868 % — § — 3 13,868
Net change during the vear.................... 55,799 207 — 56,006
Balance as of December 31, 2004........... ' 69,667 207 — 69,874
Net change during the year ....................... (89,537) (207) —_ (89,744)
Balance as of December 31, 2005............. (19,870) — — (19,870)
Net change during the year..................... 58,036 _— — 58,036
Adoption of SFAS No., 158, — — (1,421) (1,421)
Balance as of December 31, 2006............. $ 38,166 % — (1,421) % 36,745

Recently Adopted and Issued Accounting Standards

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3" (SFAS No. 154). SFAS No. 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial statements for changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable
to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that
retrospective application of a change in accounting principle be limited to the direct effects of the change. Indirect effects of a
change in accounting principle, such as a change in non-discretionary profit-sharing payments resulting from an accounting
change, should be recognized in the period of the accounting change. SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in
depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 is effective for accounting changes and
corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2005. The adoption of SFAS 154 by the Company
did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In June 2006, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”} issued EITF 06-3, “How Taxes Collected from Customers and
Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the Income Statement (That is, Gross versus Net
Presentation)” to clarify diversity in practice on the presentation of different types of taxes in the financial statements. The
Task Force concluded that, for taxes within the scope of the issue, a company may adopt a policy of presenting taxes either
gross within revenue or net. That is, it may include charges to customers for taxes within revenues and the charge for the
taxes from the taxing authority within cost of sales, or, alternatively, it may net the charge to the customer and the charge
from the taxing authority. If taxes subject to EITF 06-3 are significant, a company is required to disclose its accounting
policy for presenting taxes and the amounts of such taxes that are recognized on a gross basis. The guidance in this consensus
is effective for the first interim reporting period beginning after December 15, 2006 (the first quarter of our fiscal year 2007).
The Company does not expect the adoption of EITF 06-3 to have a material impact on its results of operations, financial
position or cash flow.

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No, 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FASB Statement 109 (“FIN 48").and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December i5, 2006. FIN
48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainties in income taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes” by prescribing guidance for the recognition, derecognition and measurement in financial statements of
income tax positions taken in previously filed tax returns or tax positions expected to be taken in tax returns, including a
decision whether to file or not to file in a particular jurisdiction. FIN 48 requires that any liability created for unrecognized
tax benefits be disclosed. The application of FIN 48 may also affect the tax bases of assets and liabilities and therefore may
change or create deferred tax liabilities or assets. The Company will be required to adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007. If
there are changes in the net assets of the Company as a result of the application of FIN 48, the cumulative effects, if any, will
be recorded as an adjustment to retained earnings. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of its adoption of FIN 43
and has not yet determined the effect on its earnings or financial position.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurement,” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,

establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. This Statement does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
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fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently
assessing the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial statements.

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staft Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™) No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements when Qualifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements,” which provides interpretive guidance
on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstaternents for the purpose of a
materiality assessment. SAB No. 108 is effective for companies with fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006 and is
required to be adopted by the Company in its fiscal year ending December 30, 2006. The adoption of SAB No. 108 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”} issued SFAS No. 158, “Employer’s
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R).” SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a plan’s
overfunded status or a liability for a plan’s underfunded status, measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine its
funded status as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year, and recognize changes in the funded status of a defined benefit
postretirement plan in the year in which the changes occur. Those changes will be reported in comprehensive income and as a
separate component of stockholders’ equity. We adopted SFAS No. 158 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. The impact of
the adoption of this new accounting standard is disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. The effect on
the balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 from the adoption of SFAS No. 158 was based on the funded status of the
defined benefit plans as of September 30, 2006, the measurement date of the plans’ assets and obligations. The Company
will be required to change the measurement date to December 31 in fiscal year 2008.

Note 3: Acquisitions

VISX, Incorporated {VISX)

On May 27, 2005, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (Merger Agreement), dated as of November 9, 2004,
as amended, by and among AMQ, Vault Merger Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of AMO, and VISX, AMO
completed its acquisition of VISX, for total consideration of approximately $1.38 billion, consisting of approximately
27.8 million shares of AMO common stock, the fair value of VISX stock options converted to AMO stock options and
approximately $176.2 million in cash (VISX Acquisition). VISX products include the VISX STAR Excimer Laser System, the
VISX WaveScan System and VISX treatment cards. As a result of the VISX Acquisition, the Company became the leader in
the design and development of proprietary technologies and systems for laser vision correction of refractive vision disorders.
The VISX Acquisition has been accounted for as a purchase business combination. The results of operations of the VISX
Acquisition have been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations from the date of the VISX
Acquisition.

The total cost of the VISX Acquisition is as follows (in thousands):

Cash consideration to VISX SIOCKROLAETS........c.vovcei et enesssesssess e ssseeenees $ 176,167
Fair value of AMO shares issued to VISX StoCKROMETS ......ccovvvvoveivevseermirisieinneminnseenens 1,136,605
Fair value of vested VISX StOCK OPUONS ..coovooiiiiiiniiier vt nan e aerans 66,580
Direct transaction fees and EXPENSES .....c.oocovvvvviiiviieriis s e s e e ber e srasberesns 15,765
Cash and cash equivalents aCQUITEd .........c.oocviiivvieriicrc e ssms st sss s et sreeneens (156,765)
Total PUrchase PrCE ...ttt $1,238,352

The above purchase price has been allocated based on the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed and has
been allocated as follows (in thousands):

IIIVETIEOTIES .uviiviiiiitiiieie e eeeeeser e st et st s ks e te e e e eeeeen e e eeeesereeersae e tetasaseansesseemee s eeeammenemneanannseers $ 11,918
ACCOUNES TECRIVADIE, MEL .ottt st e st e st eee e s b mersreste s st eesessansaasans 39,353
OHDET CUITEIE ASSETS..veiuvrerrerrirssesisesisssasstessnssimtieeeaeeeeeseaaeesaeeserressoresssssssassisstssintesenemmannnen 22,129
Property, plant and equiPIMENt ...............ccccccorummmmmrnriereeirrreaarsccecerereeeraranessssesseress 3,350
OUHET NOM-CUITENT @SSELS .evereeverrrererereearsesssrersossssrserssssssesosesesssessssemnesvsnessssessssssssssssesaresssess 8,038
TNEANGIBIE ASSEIS ....eiciirreriee e ever et rr et re e b st e e et a s sreeabans 402,300
In-process research and develOPMENT ........c.voevecrereiicieeeeteceae e sre e ees e sb e e saeas 488,500
GOOAWII L.ttt ee e eeee e eeeeenee s st e aane s ek s s0es b e s ameeneeeeeeeennnn 479,016
ACCOUNTS PAYADLIE ..ot cnrerareseereses s s e e (16,032)
OUher CUITENT JIADIIIIES «.oeee ettt e et e et e s et et esssesetaseaneeseensennressanenereransaennnss (43,957)
Non-current deferred tax hability, primarily related to intangible asseis.......cccoovicivenenne. {156,263)
Net aSSE1S ACQUITEA. ...vivivirereeeeer et bttt e e et et b s bbb bbbttt et et ed e benen $1,238,352
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Of the $402.3 million of acquired intangible assets, $239.5 million was assigned to developed technology rights that
have a weighted-average useful life of approximately 10.1 years, $22.4 million was assigned to customer relationships with a
useful life of 5 years and $140.4 million was assigned to the VISX trade name with an indefinite useful life. The amounts
assigned to intangible assets were based on management’s estimate of the fair value.

Identification and allocation of value to the identified intangible assets was based on the provisions of SFAS No. 141,
“Business Combinations,” (SFAS No. 141). The fair value of the identified intangible assets was estimated by performing a
discounted cash flow analysis using the “income” approach. This method includes a forecast of direct revenues and costs
associated with the respective intangible assets and charges for economic returns on tangible and intangible assets utilized in
cash flow generation. Net cash flows attributable to the identified intangible assets are discounted to their present value at a
rate commensurate with the perceived risk. The projected cash flow assumptions considered contractual relationships,
customer attrition, eventual development of new technologies and market competition.

The estimates of expected useful lives are based on guidance from SFAS No. 141 and take into consideration the
effects of competition, regulatory changes and possible obsolescence. The useful lives of technology rights are based on the
number of years in which net cash flows have been projected. The useful lives of customer relationships was estimated based
upon the length of the contracts currently in place, probability based estimates of contract renewals in the future and natural
growth and diversification of other potential customers, which were considered insignificant. Management considers the
VISX trade name to be the leading name in excimer laser vision correction procedures. VISX’s estimated market share of 60
percent demonstrates its commercial success. Management intends to maintain and continue to market existing and new
products under the VISX trade name. As management intends to continue to use the VISX trade name indefinitely, an
indefinite life was assigned.

Assumptions used in forecasting cash flows for each of the identified intangible assets included consideration of the
following:

*  VISX historical operating margins

*  Number of procedures and devices VISX has developed and had approved by the FDA

*  VISX market share

*  Contractual and non-contractual relationships with large groups of surgeons and

* Patents and exclusive licenses held.

A history of operating margins and profitability, a strong scientific, service and manufacturing employee base and a
leading presence in the excimer laser market were among the factors that contributed to a purchase price resulting in the
recognition of goodwill. The acquired goodwill, which is not deductible for tax purposes, has been allocated to the LVC
segment.

In-process research and development (IPR&D)

Approximately $488.5 million of the purchase price represents the estimated fair value of projects that, as of the VISX
Acquisition date, had not reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future use. The Company recorded $449.2
million of this amount in the second quarter of 2005 and $39.3 million in the third quarter of 2005. The additional charge in

the third quarter of 2005 resulted primarily from the completion of the IPR&D valuation. The fair value assigned to [IPR&D
comprised the following projects (in thousands):

Value of

IPR&D

Acquired
High Myopia for CUStomVIUE ............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiniinict sttt $ 14,700
Excimer Laser IMPrOVEINETIES ... ..o e e ee et sbe et ee s st bbb ebesaeabes 56,200
PrESDYOPIA. ... s 417,600
TOMLL. 1 cveveiersiii ettt e $488,500

The fair value of these projects was determined by performing a discounted cash flow analysis using the “income”
approach. Net cash flows attributable to these projects were discounted to their present values at a rate commensurate with
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the perceived risk, which for these projects ranged from 19.0 to 21.0 percent. The following assumptions underlie the fair
value as of the VISX Acquisition date:

» A high myopia procedure for CustomVue was forecasted to be approved for sale in the U.S. in late 2005. A
procedure to treat presbyopia is forecasted to be approved for sale in the U.S. in mid-2007. Additional research
and development expenses will be incurred prior to expected FDA approval for these procedures. Forecasted
discounted cash flows for each product once launched include estimates for normal sustaining engineering and
maintenance R&D;

= Additional research and development expenses will be incurred to bring excimer laser system improvements to
market. Like the other IPR&D projects, maintenance R& D and sustaining engineering costs were allocated to the
forecasted cash flows once commercialized;

*  Revenue that is reasonably likely to result from the approved and unapproved potential uses of identifiable
intangible assets that includes the estimated number of units to be sold, estimated selling prices, estimated market
penetration and estimated market share and year-over-year growth rates over the product cycles. These estimates
were based on management’s consideration of life cycles for similar products VISX has previously launched, the
competitive landscape, and previous success in working with the FDA; and

*  The cost structure was assumed to be similar to that for existing products.

The major risks and uncertainties associated with the timely and successful completion of these projects consist of the
ability to confirm the safety and efficacy of the technology based on the data from clinical trials and obtaining necessary
regulatory approvals. In addition, no assurance can be given that the underlying assumptions used to forecast the cash flows
or the timely and successful completion of such projects will materialize, as estimated. For these reasons, among others,
actual results may vary significantly from the estimated results.

In September 2005, high myopia CustomVue was approved by FDA.

Pfizer Inc. Surgical Ophthalmic Business

On June 26, 2004, pursuant to a stock and asset purchase agreement dated as of April 21, 2004, the Company
completed the purchase of Pfizer Inc.’s surgical ophthalmic business for $450.0 million in cash {Pfizer Acquisition). Pfizer’s
surgical ophthalmic business manufactured and marketed surgical devices for the eyes. The Company acquired ophthalmic
surgical products and certain manufacturing and research and development facilities located in Uppsala, Sweden, Groningen,
Netherlands and Bangalore, India. The products acquired include the Healon line of viscoelastic products used in ocular
surgery, the CeeOn and Tecnis intraocular lenses and the Baerveldt glaucoma shunt. The Pfizer Acquisition has been
accounted for as a purchase business combination.

The following unaudited pro forma information assumes the VISX Acquisition and the Pfizer Acquisition occurred on
January 1, 2004. These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared for informational purposes only and do not purport to
represent what the results of operations would have been had the VISX Acquisition and the Pfizer Acquisition occurred as of
the date indicated, nor of future results of operations. The unaudited pro forma results for years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
NEU SALES oot s b e s sr st e e e e e s e e ar b e reens $ 1,000,842 % 982,834
INEL CAIMIIIES .ottt ettt s s s et et s s rr s e s e ess e b e sreas s arssbeensarbesrs rararereens 37.377(1) 70,603(2)
Earnings per share:
BaSIC (3] teiiieei ettt ettt eb e tb e r et e et e et e st e entesnsarbsernennnenes $ 057 % 1.09
DU () et r et st s e snbasneernssansnavenes $ 054 % 1.04

(1) The unaudited pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2005 excludes the following non-recurring
charges related to the VISX Acquisition: a $488.5 million in-process research and development charge and a $2.0
million charge for the amortization and write-off of debt issuance costs. The unaudited pro forma information also
reflects an $11.7 million increase in amortization related to management’s estimate of the fair value of intangible assets
acquired as the result of the VISX Acquisition and a $4.7 million increase in interest expense resulting from additional
borrowings incurred to fund the cash portion of the VISX Acquisition and related costs and amortization of deferred
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financing costs. Approximately $11.0 million of merger charges incurred by VISX are not excluded from the unaudited
pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2005.

(2) The unaudited pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2004 excludes the following non-recurring
charges related to the Pfizer Acquisition: incremental cost of sales of $28.1 million from the sale of acquired inventory
adjusted to fair value, a $28.1 million in-process research and development charge, a charge of $6.5 million for the
write-off of debt issuance costs, one-time commitment fee and original issue discount, net of the recognition of realized
gains on interest rate swaps; and early debt extinguishment costs of $127.2 million. The unaudited pro forma
information also reflects a $2.3 million decrease in depreciation and amortization related to the fair value of property,
plant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets acquired in the Pfizer Acquisition and a $4.1 million increase in
interest expense resulting from the recapitalization to fund the Pfizer Acquisition.

The unaudited pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2004 also includes a $28.2 million increase in
amortization related to management’s estimate of the fair value of intangible assets acquired as the result of the VISX
Acquisition and an $11.4 million increase in interest expense resulting from additional borrowings incurred to fund the
cash portion of the VISX Acquisition and related costs and amortization of deferred financing costs.

(3) The weighted average number of shares outstanding used for the computation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2005 reflects the issuance of 27.8 million shares of AMO’s common stock to VISX stockholders
less the 16.6 million weighted average shares related to the VISX Acquisition already included in basic shares
outstanding.

The weighted average number of shares outstanding used for the computation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2004 reflects the issuance of 7.0 million shares of AMO’s common stock in the private exchanges
of the 3%2% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes less the 3.6 million weighted average shares related to the private
exchanges already included in basic shares outstanding. The weighted average number of shares outstanding used for
the computation of basic earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2004 also includes the 27.8 million shares
issued to VISX stockholders as the result of the VISX Acquisition.

(4) The weighted average number of shares outstanding used for the computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2005 includes the aggregate dilutive effect of approximately 3.3 million shares for stock options
and awards, the remaining 3%% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes and VISX options exchanged for AMO stock
options

The weighted average number of shares outstanding used for the computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2004 includes the aggregate dilutive effect of approximately 3.6 million shares for stock options
and awards, the remaining 3%% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes and VISX options exchanged for AMO stock
options. :

Note 4: Product Rationalization and Business Repositioning

On October 31, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a product rationalization and repositioning plan
covering the discontinuation of non-strategic cataract surgical and eye care products and the elimination or redeployment of
resources that support these product lines. The plan also included organizational changes and potential reductions in force in
manufacturing, sales and marketing associated with these product lines, as well as organizational changes in research and
development and other corporate functions designed to align the organization with our strategy and strategic business unit
organization.

The plan further called for increasing the Company’s investment in key growth opportunities, specifically the
Company’s refractive implant product line and international laser vision correction business, and accelerating the
implementation of productivity initiatives. Following an analysis of its FOL manufacturing capabilities in the second quarter
of 2006, the Company has decided to consolidate certain operations. In addition, the Company expanded the scope of its eye
care rationalization initiatives in order to maximize manufacturing capacity and seize growth opportunities. Total cumulative
charges of $105.0 million have been incurred through December 31, 2006.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company incurred $62.7 mitlion of pre-tax charges, which included $16.3

million for inventory, manufacturing related and other charges included in cost of sales and $46.4 million included in
operating expenses. Charges included in operating expenses comprised productivity and brand repositioning costs of $37.6
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million and severance, relocation and other one-time termination benefits of $13.7 million, offset by net assei disposal gains
of $2.8 million and a net credit from settlement of contractual obligations of $2.1 million.

The Company incurred $42.3 million in pre-tax charges during the fourth quarter of 2005 which included $12.6
million for inventory, manufacturing related and other charges included in cost of sales and $29.7 million included in
operating expenses for severance, relocation and other one-timer termination benefits of $14.0 million, asset write-downs of
$9.2 million, contractual obligations of $2.7 million and accelerated productivity and brand repositioning costs of $3.8
million.

Business repositioning charges and related activity in the accrual balances during the year ended December 31, 2006
were as follows (in thousands):

Balance at Balance at
December 31, Costs Cash Non-Cash December 31,
Business Repositioning Costs Reported In: 2005 Incurred Payments Adjustments 2006
Cost of 5ales — ..o s
Inventory, manufacturing and other charges.... 3 — § 16244 3 — § (16,244) § —
Operating EXpenses — ..o vvervceervncnccccvacninns
Severance, relocation and related costs ............... 8,779 13,700 (11,080) — 11,399
Net gain on asset disposals ... — 2,777 — 2,377 —
Contractual obligations.............cccccviviiniininninn 2,641 (2,106) (287) — 248
Productivity initiatives and brand repositioning
COSES 1verrrerrrnarrearreseanseerereermesrnesreerreseesessmeesnes 883 37,600 (37,295) — 1,188
12,303 46,417 (48,662) 2,777 12,835

$ 12303 § 62,661 $ (48662) $§ (13467) § 12,835

The Company incurred $42.3 million in pre-tax charges during the fourth quarter of 2005 as follows (in thousands);

Balance at
Costs Cash Non-Cash December 31,
Business Repositioning Costs Reported In: Incurred Payments Adjustments 2005
Cost Of 8aleS —— ... it e
Inventory, manufacturing and other charges.........c.ococoovvninnne $ 12585 % — $ (12,585 % —
Operating EXPenses — ... s ‘
Severance, relocation and related COSES ..o, 14,020 (5,241) — 8,779
ASSEL WIHE-QOWIS 1ovvveeeieeieceieeeeeeeeeeee e e e eesee e tescsabs s tassessesane 9,172 — (9,172) —
Contractual OblIZAtONS ........o.ev v neeererreeerermeseeneneas 2,641 — —_ 2,641
Productivity initiatives and brand repositioning costs ................. 3,847 {2,964) — 883
29,680 (8,205) (9172) 12,303

$ 42265 $ (8205) $ (21,757 § 12,303

Preductivity initiatives and brand repositioning costs resulted from the Company’s investment in key growth
opportunities, specifically the Company’s refractive implant product line, international laser vision correction business and
expanded eye care rationalization, and the implementation of productivity improvements in manufacturing operations,
distribution, customer service and corporate functions. Severance, relocation and related costs were incurred for worldwide
workforce reductions due to the Company’s discontinuation of certain non-core products and infrastructure and process
improvements associated with the Company's productivity initiatives. The majority of these costs occurred in the United
States, Japan and Europe. Net asset gains resulted from disposals of long-lived assets from certain discontinued non-core
products and relocation of certain facilities, offset by asset write-downs which resulted from the impairment and disposal of
long-lived assets from the reduction in expected future cash flows. The fair values of impaired assets were based on
probability weighted expected cash flows as determined in accordance with SFAS 144. The net credit from contractual
obligations primarily resulted from the settlement with a vendor during the third quarter of 2006.
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Note 5: Composition of Certain Financial Statement Captions

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

Trade receivables, net
THAAE TEOETVADIES - ittt ettt e e ee et e e bt ettt e teeeeeeetaaamsestessameeeeeeassaessateenmeseaseasansosaasnns $244725 $247.849
Less allowance fOr doubiful 8CCOUNES ..........coeiviiiii e v eeaarse e e eeee e e nsateeseaneeeeas 12,317 9,088

$232,408 $238,761

Inventories
Finished products, including consignment inventory of $13,958 and $11,890 in 2006 and
2005, FESPECHVELY 1..vvvrerererccisaieres it st st er s st e es e s se s st ae e s e ra 4 e ae s e e e b b e e npnsane $ 83358 § 66,492
WWOIK 0 PIOCESS .ciceicrariiiisnisnas e tenece st b b et s secasearsaes s b4 e et e et e RS A E e d e e et bR R AR b e b emamrbe b nd s b 13,538 13,148
RaAW IAIEIIALS .o ettt et e e sttt s s e e e semaes s bbb e e sem s eaeean st ssemmnnesesnnsaaasbbeenemennnas 30,636 25,180

$127,532 $104.820

Property, plant and equipment, net

LM ceteteemeeereeeeeeeeeteceeeesieestessesasete s rseesesaeseasaseaesesaentsoae st eatesetnteh e et ea e eat et e et eneee e et et eraeaneatnrnenrna $ 9566 § 8,987
Buildings and leasehold iMpProvements . ... ..ot e 93,575 79,502
Machinery, equipment and fUrMiIUTe...........coooovniiiiiic e v eenes 115,447 94,819

218,588 183,308
Less accumulated depreciation and amortiZation ...........coovviieeieccinn e s 85,832 67,583

$132,756 3115725

Intangible assets, net

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Useful Gross Accumulated Gross Accumuiated
(In thousands) Life (Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortizing Intangible Assets:
LICENSING ...ovveerecirreniei e 3-5 $ 4590 § (4243) % 4590 § (4,113)
Technology rfights oo 8-19 364,219 (61,997) 348,379 (26,128)
Trademarks .....coovieeeeeeeeeiceecetrecteee e e eers it ensre s 13.5 16,933 (3,545) 14,689 (1,995)
Customer relationships ........ooccecveviieninnnincennee. 5 22,400 (7,093} 22,400 (2,6013)
408,142 (76,878) 390,038 (34,849)
Nonamortizing Tradename (VISX) ......ooeeeeceecs Indefinite 140,400 — 140,400 —

$ 548,542 § (76,878 $ 530458 $ (34,849)

The intangible assets balance increased due to the impact of foreign currency fluctuation. Amortization expense was
$40.0 million, $26.9 million and $5.6 millicn in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and is recorded in selling, general and
administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, Amortization expense is expected to be $39.0
million in 2007 and 2008, $38.8 million in 2009, $36.2 million in 2010, $34.3 million in 2011 and $143.9 million thereafier.
Actual amortization expense may vary due 1o the impact of foreign currency fluctuations.

Goodwill

December 31 December 31,

2006 2005
(In thousands)
GODAWILL L.t rr et e e e e e e e e vt et e e e e e rea et ee s e aa b et et e reva b ranreseeaaannsrarreesrerrnnes

BV Care .ottt a e s e s e st s e ke reanae e et e et rateneeear s $ 28540 § 283817
Cataracl/IMPIANL ....o.vivic vt er e ec oo tara e e emesercasererane e e e e senicacenanesbanns 349,347 317,451
Laser ViSiON COMTECIION .ceveivicrevereisreieeeeiee et erreovnisseseseeesrresesstesasesssesnssernesrsarsesasesssessresnresnsranees 470,822 479016

$ 348,709 § 825,284
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Effective January 1, 2006, the Company’s reportable segments are represented by three business units:
Cataract/Implant, Laser Vision Correction and Eye Care (See Note 14, “Business Segment Information™). The change in
goodwill during the year ended December 31, 2006 is due to an adjustment of Laser Vision Correction goodwill of $7.4
million as a result of excess tax benefits from the exercise of converted VISX stock options that were fully vested at the
acquisition date and the impact of foreign currency fluctuations on the Eye Care and Cataract/Implant segments. The
Company performed its annual impairment test of goodwill during the second quarter of 2006 and determined there was no
impairment.

Note 6: Debt

Average Rate  December 31, December 31,

(In thousands) of Interest 2006 2005
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2024 ..........ooovreeeeiiciiciierirerinee e 2.500% § 246,105 $ 350,000
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2025 ... 1.375% 105,000 150,000
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2026.......ccvvevevremeecseaeeeneeeeereeeeees 3.250% 500,000 —
ShoOrt tEITN DOMOWINZS ..oenieeiiietnitetercerceir e ere e re s ss e as s rarasasersenens 5.950% — 60,000
851,105 560,000
eSS CUITERL TIAIUIITICS 1. v vvveesieeeeemeeeeemeneseesntesssssasesssstasassrnsesesmansesssasnsessasinessrnas — 60,000
Total debt, net of current portion and short term borrowings .........coceeveveinienns $ 851,105 $ 500,000
Senior Credit Facility

On June 25, 2004, the Company amended and restated its senior credit facility to provide a $250.0 million term loan
and a $100.0 million revolving credit facility. The amended and restated senior credit facility matures on June 25, 2009. In
January 2005, the Company entered into an amendment to the senior credit facility to provide for an increase of $100.0
million in the revolving loan commitments and an additional $100.0 million in term loan commitments. On May 27, 2005,
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, as guarantors thereunder, entered into an amendment to provide for an additional
increase of $100.0 million in the revolving loan commitments under the senior credit facility, which amounts were made
available to AMO to finance, in part, AMO’s acquisition of VISX, and are available for working capital and other general
corporate purposes subject to satisfaction of certain conditions. This amendment also provides for termination of $100.0
million of existing term loan commitment. The amendment increased the revolving toan commitments to $300.0 million. The
maturity of the senior credit facility on June 25, 2009 remains unchanged.

During the second quarter of 2005, the Company paid approximately $44.5 million of the term loan. On June 30, 2005,
the Company paid approximately $0.4 million of the term loan. On July 21, 2005, the Company repaid the balance of its term
loan, including approximately $149.1 million of principal and approximately $1.2 million of accrued interest, using the net
proceeds from the 1.375% convertible senior subordinated notes (see below) and existing cash. As a result of the repayment
of the term loan, the Company wrote off remaining debt issuance costs of approximately $3.8 million in the third quarter of
2005.

On May 27, 2005, the Company borrowed approximately $200.0 million under the senior revolving credit facility to
fund the cash portion of the VISX Acquisition. In June 2005, the Company repaid approximately $123.0 million of revolver
borrowings with acquired VISX cash.

During 2006, the Company repurchased $148.9 million of aggregate principal amount of convertible senior
subordinated notes ($103.9 million of the principal amount of the 2.5% Notes and $45.0 million of the principal amount of
the 1.375% Notes) utilizing borrowings under its senior credit facility. The Company incurred a loss on debt extinguishment
of $18.8 million, and wrote off debt issuance costs of $3.3 million in 2006 in conjunction with the note repurchases.

At December 31, 2006, approximately $8.4 million of the senior revolving credit facility was reserved to support letters
of credit on the Company's behalf for normal operating purposes and the Company has approximately $291.6 million
undrawn and available of revolving loan commitments. At December 31, 2005, the Company had $50.0 million borrowings
outstanding under the revolving credit facility. Approximately $18.7 million of the revolving credit facility was reserved to
support letters of credit issued on the Company’s behalf for normal operating purposes. At December 31, 2005, the Company
had $10.0 million of borrowings outstanding under a short-term loan from Bank of Ireland to an AMO subsidiary, AMO
Ireland. This loan was supported by a $10.0 million letter of credit which was part of the $18.7 million of letters of credit
noted above. This loan was paid in its entirety on February 21, 2006 and is no longer available for borrowing.
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Borrowings under the revolving credit facility, if any, bear interest at current market rates plus a margin based upon the
Company’s ratio of debt to EBITDA, as defined. The incremental interest margin on borrowings under the revolving credit
facility decreases as the Company’s ratio of debt to EBITDA decreases to specified levels. Under the senior credit facility,
certain transactions may trigger mandatory prepayment of borrowings, if any. Such transactions may include equity or debt
offerings, certain asset sales and extraordinary receipts. The Company pays a quarterly fee (1.95% per annum at December
31, 2006) on the average balance of outstanding letters of credit and a quarterly commitment fee {0.375% per annum at
December 31, 2006) on the average unused portion of the revolving credit facility. The senior credit facility provides that the
Company will maintain certain financial and operating covenanis which inchude, among other provisions, maintaining
specific leverage and coverage ratios. Certain covenants under the senior credit facility may limit the incurrence of additional
indebtedness. The senior credit facility prohibits dividend payments. The Company was in compliance with these covenants
at December 31, 2006. The senior credit facility is secured by a first priority perfected lien on, and pledge of, all of the
combined company’s present and future property and assets (subject to certain exclusions}, 100% of the stock of the domestic
subsidiaries, 66% of the stock of foreign subsidiaries and all present and future intercompany debis.

3.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2026 (3.25% Notes)

In June 2006, the Company completed a private placement of $500 million aggregate principal amount of its 3.25%
Notes due August 1, 2026. Interest on the 3.25% Notes is payable on February 1 and August | of each year, commencing on
February 1, 2007. The 3.25% Notes are convertible into 16.7771 shares of the Company’s common stock for each $1,000
principal amount of the 3.25% Notes (which represents an initial conversion price of approximately $59.61 per share),
subject to adjustment. The 3.25% Notes may be converted, at the option of the holders, into cash or under certain
circumstances, cash and shares of the Company’s common stock at any time on or prior to the trading day preceding July 1,
2014, only under the following circumstances:

*  during the five business days after any five consecutive trading-day period in which the trading price per $1,000
principal amount of the 3.25% Notes for each day of such measurement period was less than 98% of the conversion
value. This conversion feature represents an embedded derivative. However, based on the de minimis value
associated with this feature, no value was assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006;

*  during any fiscal quarter subsequent to September 29, 2006, if the closing sale price of the Company’s common
stock measured over a specified number of trading days is above 130% of the conversion then in effect;

* if a fundamental change occurs; or

* upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions.

On and after July 1, 2014, to (and including) the trading day preceding the maturity date, subject to prior redemption or
repurchase, the 3.25% Notes will be convertible into cash and, if applicable, shares of the Company’s common stock
regardless of the foregoing circumstances.

The Company may redeem some or all of the 3.25% Notes for cash, on or after August 4, 2014, for a price equal to
100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent interest, if any, to, but excluding the
redemption date.

The 3.25% Notes contain put options, which may require the Company to repurchase in cash all or a portion of the
3.25% Notes on August 1, 2014, August 1, 2017, and August 1, 2021 at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent interest, if any, to, but excluding the repurchase date,

Beginning with the six-month interest period commencing August 1, 2014, the Company will pay contingent interest
during any six-month interest period if the trading price of the 3.25% Notes for each of the five trading days ending on the
second trading day immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month interest period equals or exceeds 120% of
the principal amount of the 3.25% Notes. The contingent interest payable will equal 0.25% of the average trading price of
$1,000 principal amount of the 3.25% Notes during the five trading days immediately preceding the first day of the
applicable six-month interest period. This contingent interest payment feature represents an embedded derivative. However,
based on the de minimis value associated with this feature, no value has been assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006,

On or prior to August 1, 2014, upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, under certain circumstances, the Company
will provide for a make whole amount by increasing, for the time period described herein, the conversion rate by a number of
additional shares for any conversion of the 3.25% Notes in connection with such fundamental change transactions. The
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amount of additional shares will be determined based on the price paid per share of the Company’s common stock in the
transaction constituting a fundamental change and the effective date of such transaction. This make whole premium feature
represents an embedded derivative. However, based on the de minimis value associated with this feature, no value has becn
assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006.

3% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2023 (32% Notes)

On June 24, 2003, the Company issued $140.0 million of 3%2% Notes due April 15, 2023. Interest on the 3¥2% Notes
was payable on April 15 and October 15 of each year, commencing on October 15, 2003. The 3'2% Notes were convertible
into 48.69 shares of AMQ’s common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of 3%2% Notes (conversion price of $20.54 per
share), subject to adjustment.

In the quarter ended June 23, 2004, the Company exchanged approximately 5.8 million shares of common stock and
approximately $4.6 million in cash for approximately $108.6 million in aggregate principal amount of 3%2% Notes in
privately negotiated transactions with a limited number of holders (Private Exchanges). The Private Exchanges resulted in an
aggregate increase of $216.4 mitlion to common stock and additional paid-in capital. Because the 3¥2% Notes were not
convertible into equity at the time of the Private Exchanges, a non-cash charge of approximately $107.2 million and a cash
charge of approximately $4.6 million were recorded. The $107.2 millton non-cash charge was comprised of a charge of $89.1
million representing the difference between the fair value of 5.3 million shares of common stock issued in exchange for the
notes and the principal amount of notes exchanged and a charge of $18.1 million representing the fair value of 0.5 million
shares of common stock issued as a premium. The $4.6 million cash charge represented cash issued as a premium. The
Company also recorded a charge of approximately $3.2 million for the write-off of the pro-rata portion of capitalized debt
related costs. During the remainder of 2004, the Company exchanged approximately 1.2 million shares of common stock for
approximately $22.8 million in aggregate principal amount of 3%2% Notes. These exchanges resulted in an increase of $27.6
million to common stock and additional paid-in capital. A non-cash charge of $4.5 million representing the fair value of
shares issued as a premium was recorded.

In the second quarter of 2005, the Company exchanged 160,695 shares of common stock for $3.0 million aggregate
principal amount of the 3%% Notes in a privately negotiated transaction. The exchange resulted in an increase of $3.5 million
to common stock and paid-in capital. A non-cash charge of $0.5 million representing the fair value of shares issued as a
premium was recorded. In the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company exchanged 291,760 shares of common stock and
approximately $0.4 million in cash for $5.6 million aggregate principal amount of the 3%2% Notes in privately negotiated
transactions. The exchange resulted in an aggregate increase of $6.6 million to common stock and paid-in capital. A non-cash
charge of $1.2 million and a cash charge of $0.2 million representing the fair value of shares issued as a premium were
recorded. As a result of the exchanges noted above, all of the 3¥4% Notes were retired in 2005.

2149 Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2024 (2%:% Notes)

On June 22, 2004, the Company issued $350.0 million of 2%2% Notes due July 15, 2024. Interest on the 2%2% Notes is
payable on January 15 and July 15 of each year, commencing on January 15, 2005. The 2%:% Notes are convertible into
19.9045 shares of AMQ’s common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of 2%4% Notes (conversion price of approximately
$50.24 per share), subject to adjustment. The 2%% Notes may be converted, at the option of the holders, on or prior to the
final maturity date under certain circumstances, including:

¢ during any fiscal quarter commencing after September 24, 2004, if the closing sale price per share of AMQ’s
common stock exceeds 130% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the 30 consecutive trading day
period ending on the last trading day of the preceding fiscal quarter;

»  during the five business days after any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price of the 212%
Notes for each day was less than 95% of the conversion value of the 2¥2% Notes; provided that holders may not
convert their 2¥2% Notes in reliance on this provision after July 15, 2019, if on any trading day during such trading
period the closing sale price per share of AMO’s common stock was between 100% and 130% of the then current
conversion price. This conversion tenure represents an embedded derivative. However, based on the de minimis
value associated with this feature, no value was assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006 and 2005;

= upon the occurrence of specified ratings events with respect to the 2%% Notes. This conversion feature represents

an embedded derivative. However, based on the de minimis value associated with this feature, no value has been
assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006 and 2005;
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» if the 2%2% Notes have been called for redemption;
* if a fundamental change occurs; or
»  upon the occurrence of specified corporate events.

Upon conversion, the Company has the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of common stock, cash or a combination of
cash and shares of common stock.

The Company may redeem some or all of the 2%4% Notes for cash, on or after January 20, 2010, for a price equal to
100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent interest, if any, to but excluding the
redemption date.

The 2Y2% Notes contain put options, which may require the Company to repurchase all or a portion of the 2%4% Notes
on January 15, 2010, July 15, 2014, and July 15, 2019 at a repurchase price of 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and
unpaid interest, including contingent interest (as described below), if any, to but excluding the repurchase date. The Company
may choose to pay the repurchase price in cash, shares of common stock or a combination of cash and shares of common
stock.

Under the indenture for the 22% Notes, the Company may irrevocably elect to satisfy in cash the conversion obligation
with respect to the principal amount of the 2%2% Notes and the Company made such election prior to December 31, 2004. As
such, any future dilutive effect of the 2¥4% Notes will be calculated under the net share settlement method. As a result of this
election, the Company also is required to satisfy in cash its obligations to repurchase any 2% Notes that holders may put to
the Company on January 15, 2010, July 15, 2014 and July 15, 2019,

Beginning with the six-month interest period commencing January 15, 2010, holders of the 2¥2% Notes will receive
contingent interest payments during any six-month interest period if the trading price of the 24% Notes for each of the five
trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month interest period
equals or exceeds 120% of the principal amount of the 2%2% Notes. The contingent interest payable will equal 0.25% of the
average trading price of $1,000 principal amount of 2%2% Notes during the five trading days immediately preceding the first
day of the applicable six-month interest period. This contingent interest payment feature represents an embedded derivative.
However, based on the de minimis value assoctated with this feature, no value has been assigned at tssuance and at December
31, 2006 and 2005.

On or prior to January 15, 2010, upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, under certain circumstances, the
Company will pay a make whole premium on 2%% Notes converted in connection with, or tendered for repurchase upon, the
fundamental change. The make whole premium will be payable, in the same form of consideration into which the Company’s
commeon stock has been exchanged or converted, on the repurchase date for the 2¥2% Notes after the fundamental change,
both for 22% Notes tendered for repurchase and for 2%2% Notes converted in connection with the fundamental change. The
amount of the make whole premium, if any, will be based on the Company’s stock price on the effective date of the
fundamental change. This make whole premium feature represents an embedded derivative. However, based on the de
minimis value associated with this feature, no value has been assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The Company utilizes a convertible bond pricing model and a probability weighted valuation model, as applicable, to
determine the fair values of the embedded derivatives noted above.

The proceeds from the June 2004 term loan and a portion of the net proceeds from the 2%4% Notes aggregating $450.0
million were used to fund the Pfizer Acquisition. In addition, approximately $80.8 million of the net proceeds from the 2¥2%
Notes were used to consummate the June 2004 tender offer to purchase the remaining $70.0 million aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Company’s 9%4% senior subordinated notes and pay the related premium and consent fees. As a result
of the purchase of the 9%4% senior subordinated notes, the Company recorded a charge of approximately $10.8 million for the
premium and consent fees paid and a net gain of $0.7 million for the write-off of capitalized debt related costs and
recognition of the realized gain on interest rate swaps.

1.375% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes Due 2025 (1.375% Notes)

On July 18, 2005, the Company issued $150.0 million of 1.375% Notes due July 1, 2025. Interest on the 1.375% Notes
is payable on January 1 and July 1 of each year, commencing on January 1, 2006. The 1.375% Notes are convertible into
21.0084 shares of AMO’s common stock for each $1,000 principal amount of the 1.375% Notes (conversion price of
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approximately $47.60 per share), subject to adjustment. The 1.375% Notes may be converted, at the option of the holders,
into cash or under certain circumstances, cash and shares of AM(’s common stock at any time on or prior to the trading day
preceding June 1, 2011, subject to prior redemption or repurchase only during the specified periods under the following
circumstances:

+  during the five business days after any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per $1,000
principal amount of the 1.375% Notes for each day of such measurement period was less than 103% of the
conversion value, which equals the product of the closing sales price of AMO’s common stock and the conversion
rate then in effect. This conversion feature represents an embedded derivative. Since this feature has no
measurable impact on the fair value of the 1.375% Notes and no separate trading market exists for this derivative,
the value of the embedded derivative was determined to be de minimis. Accordingly, no value has been assigned at
issuance and at December 31, 2006 and 2005;

+ if a fundamental change occurs; or
= upon the occurrence of specified corporate events.

On and after June 1, 2011, to (and including) the trading day preceding the maturity date, subject to prior redemption or
repurchase, the 1.375% Notes will be convertible into cash and, if applicable, shares of AMO’s common stock regardless of
the foregoing circumstances.

With respect 1o each $1,000 principal amount of the 1.375% Notes surrendered for conversion, the Company will
deliver the conversion value to holders as follows: (1) an amount in cash (the “principal return™) equal to the lesser of (a) the
aggregate conversion value of the 1.375% Notes to be converted and (b) $1,000, and (2) if the aggregate conversion value of
the 1.375% Notes to be converted is greater than the principal return, an amount in shares equal to such aggregate conversion
value, less the principal return.

The Company may redeem some or all of the 1.375% Notes for cash, on or after July 6, 2011, for a price equat to 100%
of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent interest (as described below), if any, to but
excluding the redemption date.

The 1.375% Notes contain put options, which may require the Company to repurchase in cash all or a portion of the
1.375% Notes on July 1, 2011, July 1, 2016, and July 1, 2021 at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest, including contingent interest (as described below), if any, to but excluding the repurchase
date.

Beginning with the six-month interest period commencing July 1, 2011, holders of the 1.375% Notes will receive
contingent interest payments during any six-month interest period if the trading price of the 1.375% Notes for each of the five
trading days ending on the second trading day immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month interest period
equals or exceeds 120% of the principal amount of the 1.375% Notes. The contingent interest payable will equal 0.25% of
the average trading price of $1,000 principal amount of the 1.375% Notes during the five trading days immediately preceding
the first day of the applicable six-month interest period. This contingent interest payment feature represents an embedded
derivative. Since this feature has no measurable impact on the fair value of the 1.375% Notes and no separate trading market
exists for this derivative, the value of the embedded derivative was determined to be de minimis. Accordingly, no value was
assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

On or prior to July 1, 2011, upon the occurrence of a fundamental change, under certain circumstances, the Company
will provide for a make whole amount by increasing, for the time period described herein, the conversion rate by a number of
additional shares for any conversion of the 1.375% Notes in connection with such fundamental change transactions. The
amount of additional shares will be determined based on the price paid per share of AMO’s common stock in the transaction
constituting a fundamental change and the effective date of such transaction. This make whole premium feature represents an
embedded derivative. Since this feature has no measurable impact on the fair value of the 1.375% Notes and no separate
trading market exists for this derivative, the value of the embedded derivative was determined to be de minimis. Accordingly,
ne value has been assigned at issuance and at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

As of December 31, 2006, the aggregate maturities of tota] long-term debt of $851.1 million are due after 2011,
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Note 7: Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, the Company’s operations are exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in interest
rates and foreign currency exchange rates. The Company addresses these risks through controlled risk management that may
include the use of derivative financial instruments to economically hedge or reduce these exposures. The Company does not
enter into financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with major financial institutions that have at least an “A” or
equivalent credit rating. The Company has not experienced any losses on its derivative financial instruments to date due to
credit risk and management believes that such risk is remote.

Interest Rate Risk Management

At December 31, 2006, the Company’s debt is comprised primarily of domestic borrowings of $851.1 million fixed
rate debit.

In July 2004, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement, which effectively converted the interest rate
on $125.0 millien of term loan borrowings from a floating rate to a fixed rate. This interest rate swap qualified as a cash flow
hedge and would have matured in July 2006. In April 2005, the Company terminated the interest rate swap. Upon
termination, the Company received approximately $0.8 million and included the related net gain of approximately $0.5
million, which includes the accrued but unpaid net amount between the Company and the swap counterparty, as a component
of accumulated other comprehensive income in the second quarter of 2005. As a result of the repayment of the term loan in
July 2005, the gain on the interest rate swap of $0.8 million was fully recognized as a reduction to the interest expense in the
third quarter of 2005. At December 31, 2006, there are no outstanding interest rate swaps.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Company enters into foreign exchange option and forward contracts to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility
associated with foreign exchange rate changes to allow management to focus its attention on its core business operations.
Accordingly, the Company enters into contracts which change in value as foreign exchange rates change to economically
offset the effect of changes in value of foreign currency assets and liabilities, commitments and anticipated foreign currency
denominated sales and operating expenses. The Company enters into foreign exchange option and forward contracts in
amounts between minimum and maximum anticipated foreign exchange exposures, generally for periods not to exceed one
year. These derivative instruments are not designated as accounting hedges.

The Company uses foreign currency option contracts, which provide for the sale of foreign currencies to offset foreign
currency exposures expected to arise in the normal course of the Company’s business. While these instruments are subject to
fluctuations in value, such fluctuations are anticipated to offset changes in the value of the underlying exposures. The
principal currencies subject to this process are the Japanese yen and the euro. The foreign exchange forward contracts are
entered into to protect the value of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities and the changes in the fair
value of the foreign currency forward contracts were economically designed to offset the changes in the revaluation of the
foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities. These forward contracts are denominated in currencies which
represent material exposures. The changes in the fair value of foreign currency option and forward contracts are recorded
through earnings as “Unrealized loss (gain) loss on derivative instruments” while any realized gains or losses on expired
contracts are recorded through earnings as “Other, net” in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Any
premium cost of purchased foreign exchange option contracts are recorded in “Other current assets” and amortized over the
life of the options.
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The following table provides information about our foreign currency derivative financial instruments outstanding as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The information is provided in U.S. dollar amounts, as presented in our
consolidated financial statements.

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Average Contract Average Contract
Notional or Strike Notional or Strike
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(in $ millions) (in $ millions)

Foreign currency forward contracts:
Receive US$/Pay Foreign Currency:
Swedish KIona.........ocecorevvernerinvveseereresessesseerens $ 8.8 685 § 315 7.94
UK. POURd ...ccovvcerirrierenrreeveresineesenvsrenessenes — — 52 1.72
Canadian Dollar ..o 9.5 1.16 — —
Australia Dollar ......ocooeviin e 7.1 1.27 — —
SWiSs Franc...c.ocovvciiniine s — — 1.5 1.31
Japanese Yen ..o 7.1 118.8 —
Pay US$/Receive Foreign Currency:
Japanese Yen .....cccceinininininnniinnnn — — 3.0 117.45
EUIO ottt s — — 59 1.19
SWISS FTanc ...cooovivicinniiiniiniicnie e 3.7 1.22 — —
Canadian Dollar ..., — — 34 1.17
Australia Dollar ..., — — 2.9 73
Total Notional...............................o $ 36.2 $ 53.4
Estimated Fair Value...........o.ooeeovverevencrnnscenenns $ — $ —
Foreign currency purchased put options:
Japanese Yen ....o.ovnrnenenen e $ 72.0 11800 % 66.2 117.83
BULO o e 50.8 1.24 40.2 1.18
Foreign currency sold call options:
Japanese Yen s 813 104.50 60.0 106.60
BUIO oot 53.1 1.29 43.0 1.26
Total Notional.............cccccoviiviiniieiineenns $ 257.2 $ 209.4
Estimated Fair Value............cccooov v $ (0.6) $ 1.1

The notional principal amount provides one measure of the transaction volume outstanding as of the end of the period,
and does not represent the amount of the Company’s exposure to market loss. The estimate of fair value is based on
applicable and commonly used prevailing financial market information as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
amounts ultimately realized upon settlement of these financial instruments, together with the gains and losses on the
underlying exposures, will depend on actual market conditions during the remaining life of the instruments.

The impact of foreign exchange risk management transactions on income was a net realized gain (loss) of $2.3 million,
$(2.0) million and $(1.9) million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which are recorded in “Other, net” in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company’s financial instruments included cash and equivalents, trade
receivables, accounts payable and borrowings. The carrying amount of cash and equivalents, trade receivables and accounts

payable approximates fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of long-term debt was
estimated based on quoted market prices at year-end.
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The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31 were as follows
(in thousands):

2000 2005
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Current portion of long-term debt and short-term
DOITOWINES ...v.vveeerieeereirsemsaennisee e eeaesssieseienaran $ — § —  $ 60,000 $ 60,000
Long-term debt .......ccooeeeeiiiiieiscsesec e 851,105 794,226 500,000 527,653

Note 8: Related Party Transactions

Prior to June 29, 2002, the Company entered into several agreements with Allergan in connection with, among other
things, transitional services, employee matters, manufacturing and tax sharing. These agreements generally required the
Company to indefinitely indemnify Allergan from liabilities related to the business contributed to AMO,

The transitional services agreement set forth charges generally intended to allow Allergan to fully recover the allocated
costs of providing certain services, plus all cut-of-pocket expenses, except that AMO paid to Allergan a commission related
to AMO products that were sold by Allergan during the transition period. The Company recovered costs from Allergan in a
similar manner for services provided by AMO. All transitional services under the transitional services agreement have
terminated.

Under the manufacturing agreement, which ended on June 29, 2005, Allergan manufactured certain eye care products
and VITRAX viscoelastics from the date of the June 29, 2002 spin-off. The Company purchased these products from Allergan
at a price equal to Allergan’s fully allocated costs plus 10%. During 2005 and 2004, the Company purchased $41.9 million
and $89.3 million, respectively, of product from Allergan. On an annual basis, a pricing “true up” calculation was performed
during the first calendar quarter. This “true up” calculation was based upon the actual volume of products shipped by
Allergan to AMO during the preceding year versus the forecasted volume submitted by AMO that was used to caiculate the
invoiced prices. During the year, the Company periodically reviewed the volume of purchases and accrued for estimated
shortfalls, if any. The Company received $0.8 million from Allergan in October 2005 as the final “true-up” amount for the
six months ended June 29, 2005.

The following table summarizes the charges from Allergan for the above-mentioned transitional services for 2005 and
2004 (in thousands):

2005 2004
Selling, general and administrative expenses, net of $921 and $1,165
charged 10 ALlergan.........cccoiviiininec e 3 — $ (98)
Research and develOPMEDL ..........ccovevrvcennrnerevcrerererrnisrrenreesaesass e esresssesssesens — 185
Manufacturing “true up” payment (1€ceipt), NEt ..oooeveeerreeeeeeeecrrnreiennrens (637) 233

As of December 31, 2006, an interest-free relocation loan of $0.5 million, collateralized by real property, was
outstanding from the chief executive officer. The principal amount of the loan is payable upon the earlier to occur of (a) 60
days following the chief executive officer’s termination of employment; (b) the date of the sale or other transfer of the
property or (c) July 3, 2007. This relocation loan is evidenced by a promissory note dated July 3, 2002, prior to the adoption
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Note 9: Income Taxes

The Company’s income before provision for income taxes was generated from the United States and international
operations as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
{in thousands)

Earnings (loss) before income taxes:

L et be s e a b e s b b e rer et et s n e neennsennean $ 87,803 $(497,583) $(105,537)
FOTEIEM. ettt e sass b s em e e e m s e ae et e s e anee e e e rns 57,013 57,286 (15,679)
Earnings {(10s5) before inCOME tAXES ....vvvciieeeie e sssa s sresaesb s eeae $ 144,816  $(440,297) $(121,216)




The Company’s provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)
Income tax expense:
CUITEI ..o stev it ittt ab e s b e s s b saassssssnss s besasssssssasasasensanssnssnansennersrnntessaresssrnnnces
TS, FEUETAL..cvvieveicrevereve et e e e e et s eessssssebnasbasasessesasenssea $ 25413 § 130 $ 8780
FOTEIRIN ..ot reraserneseses e s e srese s s e se s s eecae b s ansstsan 8,723 17,846 15,739
U.S. state and PUETTO RICO coioivvvviieriiiereirierresasssssssssssaesessesssee s e aseeeeceessess 1,224 28 372
B 0T e: Y Tl ¢ =1 1| PO SN 35,360 18,004 24,891
Deferred:
U.S. federal ...t 25,646 (903) (13,286)
FOTRIZN.oceeerrereetereri e seseeresmesee et r et et ee e e aeee e en s er e e en e b s 1,201 (3,002} (2,663)
U.S. state and PUEIO RICO vvvvvverrerrerrieeieieeieesieesteceieceie it eeneesnseeteesseesseestassnas 3,138 (1,139} (786)
TOAl dEFEITE. ... et e rraesssesssessner s e e sasarasnsnenaes 29,985 (5,104} (16,737)
TOLAY ...ttt e e et e e e embe e eebe e st santsab e et bt et be et banas et aa s s et e eataensanennns $ 65345 $ 12900 $ 8,154

The reconciliations of the U.S. federal statutory tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2008 2004
Statutory rate of taX EXPENSe.....cccviiiiiiiiiin s 35.0% (35.0)% (35.0)%

State taxes, net of U.S. tax benefit........ccoovrieeieiieee e 1.6 0.3 (1.5}
In-process research and development charges ..., — 39.0 8.1
Convertible note eXChANZES ......cooiiiiirmiiircr e 1.9 0.1 31.2
Other permanent iEMS. ... ...couvveie v cerrrec et (0.8) (2.4) 1.5
Foreign income, including U.S. tax effect of foreign earnings and

dividends, net of foreign tax credits.........ccoooeiiicrincinnc s 63 2.1 —
Net change in valuation alloWance .........ccvcvveierevicrrienrieies s 0.6 (0.4) 1.5
ORI ot e e s s bababr s s ea s s st ab s b s s e sarssabasasaessssssnssarenssssesasasnsene 0.5 (0.3) 0.9

Effective taX TR ....oieie e eteereceeere e siesaie s e ssresseereeeeeeressssnsnsesnsennessnenee 45.1% 2.8% 6.7%

Temporary differences and carryforwards, which give rise to a significant portion of deferred tax assets and liabilities
at December 31, 2006 and 20035, were as follows:

As of December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)
DIEFEITE LAX ASSELS ..ocveereiciiiiiiiteite sttt st et e e b e e e esresirssmesrmssnesre e e s e ease s e s smessmeerresansmanabasasssrnteassnes
Net operating 1088 carmyTOrwards ... s e $ 4013 § 23265
Reserves and acCrued EXPONSES ... e e e e e 3,685 6,854
CaPHAlIZE @R PENISES . crereereririreeieirrereiee e ee s e s bbb b 1,937 204
Intercompany Profit IN IMVERIOIY ..o i s s b 7,029 12,281
Net benefit on foreign eamings, including foreign tax credits..............cccoinnsnn. 11,984 26,220
Federal and SEate tAX CIEOITS ..ivvirveieeii e ieveirrerersesiessistnsatreesetorannsesrresesassinsesesesssasssnsessissssesssssasanes 3,142 3,691
Inventory reserves and VATIANCES ........cooiiereirieeiieeesermrarri s st she s s ssa e sassnssnes 5,726 4,932
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation ... 644 —_
F N L 15T o OO 4,698 5,123
42,858 82,570
LeSS: valuAation BHOWANCE .........ccooiiiei e ct e se e se ettt s sabs ettt aeat e s tssnane e s b e e s anensarteerrnsans (8,645} (7,913)
TOtal AEfErTEd 1AX ASSEL....oivieeccceciie et et ece et et eerrs e rre e rrr e e e e snssarasesasssesassrsensertensesseenenaeenen 34,213 74,657
Deferred tax HADIIITIES . .ociovririierirrreirereinesrresreeee e s s e ne s e et ses s e e e eaemes s seesiman et e ese e s amaeseenssessesats
Capitalized intangible assets......... SO OR YOO PRSP PROO 164,054 175,420
Fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation ..........ccocovveie i — 1,104
AL OINET (..ot e e e e et e e e b s e be e e e be e At b bt At e A ke st ear b e nne e e e naren 2,321 1,775
Total deferred tax LHaDIIITIES ..o veeeie e ceesseeee e e e se s reri e e e e s rrreaesssesebsbnseeassesansaseeesassmreeeesaneaaanss 166,375 178,299
Net deferred tax Hability .....ccocviirerirereer e et s s $(132,162) $(103,642)




Deferred taxes have been provided for U.S. federal and state income taxes and anticipated foreign withholding taxes on
undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries.

During 2006, the Company utilized approximately $50.0 million and $8.2 million of federal and various state tax net
operating losses, respectively. As of December 31, 2006, the Company has approximately $13.2 million of various foreign
net operating losses available for carryforward that will begin to expire in 2013 if not utilized.

In addition, as of December 31, 2006, the Company has approximately $19.1 million of foreign tax credit
carryforwards that will begin to expire in 2014. Based on the Company’s position that all foreign earnings will be taxed in the
U.S. and the projected future earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, management believes it is “more likely than
not” that the Company will realize the benefit of these foreign tax credits.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has approximately $1.2 million in federal research and development credits
which will begin to expire in 2020, In addition, at December 31, 2006, the Company has approximately $1.9 million in
various state credits which do not expire.

In 2006, a valuation allowance has been provided on certain foreign tax loss carryforwards ($3.9 miliion), certain
foreign deferred tax assets ($1.5 million) and certain U.S. long-term deferred tax assets ($3.2 million) as ultimate utilization
is less than more likely than not. In 2005, a valuation allowance had been provided on certain foreign tax loss carryforwards
($5.6 million) and certain U.S. Jong-term deferred tax assets ($2.3 million) as ultimate utilization is less than more likely than
not.

The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing its valuation allowance and by adjusting
the amount of such allowance, if necessary. At December 31, 2006 management believes that it is “more likely than not” that
it will realize the benefit of its deferred tax assets. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization are the Company’s
forecast of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred
tax assets. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income in the applicable taxing jurisdictions could affect the ultimate
realization of deferred tax assets and could result in an increase in the Company’s effective tax rate on future earnings.

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”), signed inte law in October 2004, allowed companies to elect to
repatriate cash into the United States in 2005 at a special, temporary effective tax rate of 5.25 percent. On December 6, 2005,
the Board of Directors approved management’s plan for reinvestment and repatriation of specific foreign earnings under the
Act. The Company repatriated $48.6 million under the provisions of the Act. Since the Company provides taxes currently on
foreign earnings, the election of this provision enabled the Company to realize a tax benefit of $5.7 million in the fourth
quarter of 2005.

During 2005, the Company realized final adjustments to accrued, pre-spin-off taxes attributable to its business and
payable to Allergan pursuant to a tax sharing agreement. These adjustments included a $1.4 million benefit from the
resolution of a discrete item in the third quarter, which was recorded in the income tax provision.

The Company records a liability for potential tax assessments based on its estimate of the potential exposure. New laws
and new interpretations of laws and rulings by tax authorities may affect the liability for potential tax assessments. Due to the
subjectivity and complex nature of the underlying issues, actual payments or assessments may differ from estimates. To the
extent the Company’s estimates differ from actual payments or assessments, income tax expense is adjusted. The Company’s
income tax returns in several locations are being examined by the local taxation authorities. Management believes that
adequate amounts of tax and related interest, if any, have been provided for any adjustments that may result from these
examinations.

Note 10: Employee Retirement and Other Benefit Plans
Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans
The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans in Japan and in certain European countries.

Components of net periodic benefit cost under the Japan and European pension plans in 2006, 2005 and 2004 were as
follows (in thousands):
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. . 2006 2005 2004
SEIVICE COBEiiiiiiiriiiiniesiresissesseseesesessaseasessssassasenesssssonssssssssressssessaresssnsssnts $2,304 $1,822 $1,815
Interest cost.................. © 557 471 467

Expected return on plan @ssetS.....ccoovieeivieivieriricnieeirres e e seereeneeseas (225) (207) (197)
Amortization of transition amoUNE...........cceeerirerieneesesnreesenereaereeriesrerens — — 2
Amortization of Prior SErViCe COSt ...cviviiiiiiiiiiesesss s essecsssreiesrons 55 63 63
Recognized net actuarial 108S........oovovoeiioieieiiieeeeee e 43 — 36
Recognized curtailment gain.......ocoeveeveeeieeceseenenecesearcrsnesassssnssnesasesannes (530) — —
Recognized settlement ain ......cocveninniicnoni e {13) — —
Net periodic DENETIt COSE......cccoiiiiii ittt mrs st srsees - $2,191 32,149 $2,186

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit costs were as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Discount rate:
JAPAN ... e s 2.00% 2.00% 1.80%
European plans.........cccviiini s 425% 5.25% 5.50%
Expected return on plan assets: ’
;Y 721 OO U UPOP O 2.30% 2.50% 3.00%
European plans (unfunded plans).........oooooiiiiiiiie e N/A  N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase:
7 4 PO 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
EUropean plans... ... et e 3.50% 3.00% 3.30%

As discussed in Note 2, the Company adopted SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006. SFAS No. 158 requires that the
Company recognize on a prospective basis the funded status of its defined benefit pension plans on the consolidated balance
sheet and recognize as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, the gains or losses and
prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost.
The impact of the adoption of the new accounting standard in 2006 was not significant.
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Components of the change in benefit obligation, change in plan assets and funded status for the Company’s defined
benefit pension plans for December 31, 2006, and 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of period ...........ovvveverrieeceinenninninne e $ 18,608 $ 16,170
S ETVICE OB . eiiiiiie ittt e ree s er s e e ee b ae s bs s e csss e bbesssssesssesssssaanseareesrnensnreesnneesares 2,304 1,822
INEEIEST COSE..eemietiiiie ittt en e et eee e e e e emees 557 471
Plan curtailments. .. ... cieceaeiiieecss e s e csvsssse e s ssan e e v e e s vssnrerssnnees (1,004} —
Plan SEIEMENT. ...ciiiiiiie i ereeeesrsr s e e ssse s eraesaesiaaste s b e s b s s basabasaras (2,830} —
ACTHATIAL LOSS <. ettt e et e e eaee e s emae e e sereaesnaene s vanmees 1,278 2,665
Benefits Paid oo o e e (44} (166)
Impact of foreign currency translation...........cccciviinomininnnee s, 961 {2,354)
Benefit obligation, end of Period ..o e $ 19,830 18,608
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period.........ccooo e $ 9819 § 3,041
Actual 1etiurn On PN ASSELS ..vcvvvevvirieeeirrerresieerieerssesesrsssressrsissesesesarsrssssssssns 1,023 1,348
Company CONIITDULION ....ocvvviereiieinenee et e s eses 777 1,848
Plan SellEmEnt ......cocvvviiiriieiniirereierin i reeesssrnesesstrerisierssesernessessssssarsssssssanss (2,830) —
Benefits paid ......cocceoeeeiieee et e (44) (166)
Impact of foreign currency translation.........cococevniniencniccneie e (106) (1,252)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period........c.ooccevniccrrenicnmereiesreeisre e $ 9,639 § 9819
Funded status of plans........coiiieninincsenccntn e (10,191) (8,789)
Unrecognized net actuarial Loss ..o — 1,799
Unrecognized Prior SErVICE COSt.....ovioi it eieee e ee e eeesmeseeeeeneeeens e 340
Fourth quarter cONEBULIONS ...c...vveiiriiiriiaeciirv e {559) 517
ACCIUEH BENELIE COSE .vvvmerieeeireree st insenssssssensansnseneasesesaaatesssnsatssssnsssssrasnssns $(10,7503 § (6,133}

The funded status of the pension benefits presented was measured as of September 30. The Company adopted this
measurement date to conform to its internal cost management systems. Assumptions used in determining benefit obligations
are as follows:

§ OU0
gli 2006 2005
Discount rate: e
JAPAN e L e ettt et et emee et 220% 2.00%
Buropean plans.........c.mi st e s 4.50% 4.25%
Rate of compensation increase:
JAPAIL oot et e s a e an 3.00% 3.00%
BUTODEAN PLANS ...ceee ettt ettt e ettt an et e neen 3.50% 3.50%

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit plans was $13.1 miltion and $12.8 million at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

There are no assets in the European plans. The Japan pension plan asset allocation as of the measurement date
(September 30) and the target asset allocation, presented as a percentage of total Japan pension plan assets, were as follows:

Target
2006 2005 Allocation
EqUity SECURILIES . ...coeieeieeiriciicininince et 56.7% 514%  45-55%
Dbt SECUITHES. ...ttt sttt e e e s n e e ene s srenees 36.5% 425% 45-55%
LT+ S SO ST SO TR 2.0% 0.0% 0%
L0 11 (1= O PSSR 4.8% 6.1% 5-10%
10 Y U O 100.0% 100.0%
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As of September 30, 2006, the Japan plan assets are invested using a passive investment strategy. Asset allocations and
investment performance is reviewed by the Benefits Committee with a view to ensuring that sufficient liquidity will be
available to meet expected cash flow requirements. The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption is based
on numerous factors including historical rates of return, long-term inflation assumptions, current and future financial market
conditions and expected asset allocation.

The Company expects to contribute $1.0 million to its defined benefit plans in 2007.

The following estimated future benefit payments are expected to be paid in the years indicated (in thousands):

Year Amount
2007 e e e s e s e b e bt a b e R e d et 4 e r e sRsesasersseans $ 261
2008 <ottt e e e es e en s e e e et et e e besresanes 276
2OLD et r e e bas e e e e e b ea e b as s e s s s an e rnnenennes 296
20ET eeeierterrecre s ser st stse e r e e s e s s e s e e b e s be e bbb sbaa s es s gesrsearsanreias 349
201222005 et e e e ee e e e s ne e sneanaeaneeans 3,648

Savings and Investinent Plan

AMO employees in the U.S. and Puerto Rico are eligible to participate in the Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 401(k)
Plan (the Plan). Under the Plan, participants’ contributions, up to 8% of compensation, qualify for a 50% Company match.
Participants are immediately vested in their contributions and are 100% vested in Company contributtons after three years of
service. The Company also provides an annual profit sharing contribution. Participants vest ratably over five years in the
Company’s profit sharing contributions. The Company contributed $9.1 million, $6.7 million and $5.4 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively, to the Plan.

Note 11: Common Stock

The Company has an incentive compensation plan that provides for the granting of stock options, restricted stock,
restricted stock unit and other stock-based incentive awards to directors, employees and consultants. Options granted to
employees become exercisable 25% per year beginning twelve months after the date of grant and have a ten year term. A
total of 5,000,000 shares of common stock have been authorized for issuance under the incentive compensation plan.

On June 24, 2002, the Company adopted a stockholders’ rights plan to protect stockholders’ rights in the eventof a
proposed or actual acquisition of 15% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock. As part of this
plan, each share of the Company’s common stock carries a right to purchase one one-hundredth (1/100™) of a share of Series
A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, par value $0.01 per share, subject to adjustment, which becomes exercisable only
upon the occurrence of certain events, The rights are subject to redemption at the option of the Board of Directors at a price
of $0.01 per right until the occurrence of certain events. The rights expire on June 24, 2012, unless earlier redeemed or
exchanged by the Company.

In addition, the Company entered into an accelerated share repurchase arrangement with a third party to use the proceeds
from the issuance of the 3.25% Notes to purchase $500.0 million of AMO common stock at a volume weighted price per
share over the term of the agreement, During 2006, the third party had delivered to the Company in the aggregate, 10.5
million shares of AMO common stock. The impact of the shares received under this arrangement in 2006 reduced
stockholders’ equity by $500.0 million, which included $0.1 million for the par value of Common Stock, additional paid-in
capital of $247.2 million and accumulated deficit of $252.7 million. Repurchased shares were retired upon delivery to the
Company.

Stock-Based Compensation

AMO has an Incentive Compensation Plan (ICP) that provides for the granting of stock options, restricted stock and
restricted stock units to directors, employees and consultants. The Company has two Employee Stock Purchase Plans (ESPP)
for United States and international employees, respectively, which allow employees to purchase AMO common stock. A total
of 5 million shares of common stock have been authorized for issuance under the ICP. Effective January 1, 2006, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123R) as
discussed below,
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Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Total stock-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006 is as foltows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31, 2006

COST OF SAIES .evvvvivtiirieiece ettt e e et e et e e e et et e et et e as e et e e e sressensessesseeseansesestesnessensesnsessens $ 2,251
Operaling EXPENSes - ..ot et as e eaeeaeseeamnnearas
Research and development .........cocooviiiieeeceee e et e e 2,152
Selling, general and adminiStrative ...t ensenes 14,831
16,983
Pre-tax EXPEIISE ..cuoviieiiiiiiciti ettt ettt e ne e 15,234
INcome tax Benefit ......cconvveeeeeee e (6,323)
INEt OF LAX BXPEIISE...evemmeniiieevcrmcei ettt et et ebesee st sese e e eseasnsnsassesesesnern b 12,911

At December 31, 2006, total pre-tax compensation costs related to unvested stock-based awards granted to employees
and directors under the Company’s ICP and ESPP which are not yet recognized were approximately $28.8 million, net of
estimated forfeitures. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighied-average period of 2.75 years.

Net cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options were approximately $37.3 million for the year ended December
31, 2006. In accordance with SFAS 123R, the cash flows resulting from excess tax benefits {tax benefits related to the excess
of proceeds from employee exercises of stock options over the stock-based compensation cost recognized for those options)
are classified as financing cash flows in the Company’s consolidated statement of cash flows. During the year ended
December 31, 2006, the Company recorded $6.7 million of excess tax benefits as a financing cash inflow. The Company
issues new shares to satisfy option exercises.

Determining Fair Value

Valuation Method - The Company estimates the fair value of stock options granted and ESPP purchase rights using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model and a single option award approach.

Expected Term - The expected term represents the period the Company’s stock-based awards are expected to be
outstanding and was determined based on historical experience with similar awards, giving consideration to the contractual
terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and expectations of future employee behavior as influenced by changes to

the terms of its stock-based awards. -
1)

Expected Volatility - The compulanon of expected volatility is based on a combination of historical and market-based
implied volatility. Implied volatility is baﬁed on publicly traded options of the Company’s common stock with a term of one
year or greater.

Risk-Free Interest Rate - The risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes valuation method is based on the implied
yield currently available on U.S. Treasury securities with an equivalent remaining term.

Expected Dividend - No dividends are expected to be paid.

Estimated Forfeitures - When estimating forfeitures, the Company considers voluntary termination behavior as well as
analysis of actual option forfeitures.

The fair value of the Company’s stock-based compensation granted to employees for the year ended December 31,
2006 was estimated using the following weighted-average assumptions:

Employee
Stock
Stock Purchase
Options Plans
Expected life in Years.............ccocoivmniomnmin s 6.1 0.5
, Expected vOIAtIliLY .....oooiviviiniinccsserevirisr st ve st ssssss s sanesssanersses 29% 27%
RiSK-TTEE INLEIEST TALE .. ..vcvirereeeirereceer et e b e st a s eae s ara et ssb et s sast et s ssnstatsenten 5% 5%

Expected dividends ... — —




The weighted average fair value of options granted under the ICP was $17.68 for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Under the ESPP, the weighted average fair value of grants was $9.56 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Stock Options
Stock options granted to employees are generally exercisable at a price equal to the fair market value of the common
stock on the date of the grant and vest at a rate of 25% per year beginning twelve months after the date of grant. Grants under

these plans expire ten years from the date of grant.

The following is a summary of stock option activity (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number of Average Contractual Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price Term in Years  Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2005......ccccviviniciininnnne 8858 § 22.79
L] 214 1= o L SRS 679 45.31
EXErcised ..cooviviiiiie ettt (1,799) 20.73
Forfeitures and cancellations ............ccoocviiiiiiiniccnnccencnnenns (96) 33.16
EXPIrations ....oeeeeieiieniiiiiiniieninncie s (14) 23.25
Outstanding at December 31, 2006..........c.ooeivnviniiiiiininnne 7,628 § 25.16 628 § 76,743
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2006............. 7519 § 24,97 629 § 76,913
Exercisable at December 31, 2006.......cccveiveeivceiereeeceeeens 5348 § 19.81 546 § 82,293

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the difference between the exercise price of the underlying
awards and the quoted price of the Company’s common stock for the options that were in-the-money at December 31,
2006. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised under the Company’s
stock option plans was $43.1 million determined as of the date of option exercise.

The following table summarizes information regarding options outstanding and options exercisable at December 31,
2006:

Qutstanding Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Number of Contractual Exercise of Exercise
Exercise Prices Options Life (Years) Price Options Price
$5.00—%$9.99 1,865,604 4.89 $ 8.71 1,865,604 $ B.71
$10.00—%17.99 1,271,618 5.00 l3.§]l 1,120,026 13.81
$18.00—%27.99 700,251 4.48 24.69 694,251 24.70
$28.00—%$33.99 1,561,816 1.93 32.65 1,058,424 32.15
$34.00—3$50.99 2,228,510 8.28 40.28 609,774 37.84

Employee Stock Purchase Plans

Under the ESPP, eligible employees may authorize payroll deductions of up to 10% of their regular base salary to
purchase shares at the lower of 85% of the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the first or last day of the six-
month purchase period. In the second quarter of 2006, 78,000 shares of common stock were issued under the ESPP in the
aggregate amount of $2.4 million and 72,637 shares of common stock were issued under the ESPP in the aggregate amount
of $2.5 million as of the most recent purchase period ended on October 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006 employee
withholdings under the ESPP aggregated $0.6 million.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock awards are granted at a price equal to the fair market value of the common stock on the date of the
grant, subject to forfeiture if employment terminates prior to the release of restrictions, which is generally three years from
the date of grant. During this restriction period, ownership of the shares cannot be transferred. Restricted stock has the same
cash dividend and voting rights as other common stock and is considered to be currently issued and outstanding. The cost of
the awards, determined to be the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant, is expensed ratably over the period the
restrictions lapse.
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The following table summarizes the restricted stock award activity for the year ended December 31, 2006 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

Weighted

Average
Numbher of  Grant Date
Shares Fair Value
Nonvested stock at December 31, 2005.........oooiiiimiiinciiicen 101 $ 3879
8 1 1=« O SO USSR 286 45.30
YT (- O O OO UUUU SN (36) 38.23
FOrfeited. ... e e e e erer e ebereanne (13) 42.57
Nonvested stock at December 31, 2006.........ccovvvevvvvveeeceeeee s 338 § 4419

Performance-Based Awards

In February 2006, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a 2006 performance award program under the
Company’s incentive compensation plan (the 2006 Program}, which provides the opportunity for certain executives to earn
tong-term incentive compensation awards based upon specified measures. The potential maximum aggregate award value for
the 2006 program was $2.7 miilion. The award determination was based upon the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) (the
increase or decrease in the Company’s common stock price) over a two-year period beginning January 1, 2005 compared to a
peer group composed of various entities within the bio-technology and medical device industries. Awards would have been
determined to be earned if the Company’s TSR was in excess of the 50th percentile of the peer group. When the TSR equals
the 75th percentile of the peer group, the maximum amount would have been earned. Awards were to be settled in a number
of restricted stock shares or units equal to the value of the award amount divided by the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock on the date the performance criteria is deemed to have been met. The restricted stock shares or units will have
the same terms and conditions as other restricied shares or units issued under the Company’s ICP. The estimated fair value of
the 2006 Program was $0.8 million on the grant date using a lattice-based valuation model.  Since the specified measures
were not achieved, no awards of stock or units were granted and no compensation expense was recognized in 2006.

Pro-forma Disclosures under SFAS 123 for Periods Prior to Fiscal 2006
The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share as if the Company had applied the fair value

recognition provisions of SFAS 123 to stock-based compensation during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in
thousands, except per share amounts):

2005 2004
Net loss:
As reported: dit $(453,197) $(129,370)
Stock-based compensation expense included in reported net earnings ,
net of tax ... O OO OSSO S OOTUR OO 834 99
Stock-based compensation expense determined under fair value based
method, Net Of X oo (11,800) (7,117)
Pro fOrma NEL LOSS <. bsban b b ar e $(464,163) $(136,388)
Loss per share:
As reported:
BASIC «.oeoineeeeeeeecse e iss e tesbassssbsssasssssbesssssasestbe b ea s arbe s sa s e ata st eseenranbearantes $ (828) § (3.89)
DHIEEA ..ot et 3 (828) $ (389
Pro forma:
BASIC cvviviiii it cvrrersiererereesteiastiereir s beeinsernnesnseranerare e st skt e reentasatarnseenseans § (B48) § (4.1
Diluted $ (848) $ (4.10)

For the purpose of the weighted-average estimated fair value calculations, the fair value of the Company’s stock-based
compensation granted to employees for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 was estimated using the following
weighted-average assumptions:

Stock Options ESPP -

. 2005 2004 2005 2004
Expected life (in Years) ......ccoevvmeninininiiicc s 5.0 49 0.5 0.5
Expected vOlatility ....ccoooreeeieoreieioreenrece e st 36.0% 42.3% 353% 31.3%
RISK-FIEE IMIETESE AR . cvvvereierrrierirereirrrreeirrtrerisreeessirsresissnsrssssseessrnees 38% 38% 39% 12%

Expected dividends ..o — — — —




The weighted average fair value of options granted under the ICP was $14.52 and $14.05 for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Under the ESPP, the weighted average fair value of grants was $9.09 and $6.35
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 12: Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting net earnings and the weighted average
outstanding shares, assuming the conversion of all potentially dilutive convertible securities, stock options and stock
purchase plan awards.

The table below presents the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended December
31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except
per share amounts)

Basic and diluted net earmings (lOSS) ...........ccevvrirvrerrserinieienieir e $ 79471 $(453,197) $(129370)
Basic common shares outsEANdINgG .........ooroiicririnieieeeerenteteee et eeeeres 63,383 54,764 33,284
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options and aWards ............ccceeevirieninnie et e 2,188 — —
Diluted common shares OWSIANAIIE .............cooveveiiiiiieieeeeeee e eeeee e 65,571 54,764 33,284
Basic earnings (1088) PEr ShAre............c...oovivieieeiirieesteee et s $ 125 $ (8.28) % (3.89)
Diluted earnings (L0SS) Per SRAE........ccviviiereeeeeeriesres s srestsssassrerens 3 1.21 § (8.28) § (3.39)

For 2006, options to purchase 284,000 shares of common stock were excluded as the effect would be anti-dilutive. For
2005, the dilutive effect of stock options and stock purchase plan awards of approximately 2,674,000 shares and the dilutive
effect of the 3 2% Notes of approximately 290,000 shares have been excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share
as the effect would be anti-dilutive. For 2004, the dilutive effect of stock options and stock purchase plan awards of
approximately 2,125,000 shares and the dilutive effect of the 3 ¥2% Notes of approximately 3,559,000 shares have been
excluded from the computation of diluted loss per share as the effect would be anti-dilutive.

The Company will settle in cash the principal amount of the 3.25% Notes, 2 2% Notes and the 1.375% Notes. In
addition, there were no potentially diluted common shares associated with the 3.25% Notes, 2 2% Notes and the 1.375%
Notes as the Company’s year end stock price was less than the conversion prices of the notes.

Note 13: Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases certain facilities, office equipment and automobiles and provides for payment of taxes, insurance
and other charges on certain of these leases. Rental expense was $17.6 million, $17.8 million, and $20.4 million in 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating lease commitments with a term of more than one
year as of December 31, 2006, are as follows: $16.1 million in 2007; $10.9 million in 2008; $6.1 million in 2009; $4.3
million in 2010; $3.9 million in 2011 and $21.8 million thereafter.

In August 2002, the Company entered into an information technology services outsourcing agreement expiring in
November 2007. Future annual payments under this agreement are $3.6 million in 2007.

The Company recognized a net gain on legal contingencies of $96.9 million in 2006, primarily from settlement of
pending patent litigation, net of costs incurred. On July 7, 2006, the Company entered into a settiement agreement with
Alcon, Inc., Alcon Laboratories, Inc., and Alcon Manufacturing Lid. (collectively, “Alcon”) regarding all pending patent
litigation between AMO and Alcon. The settlement required Alcon to pay AMO a lump-surn payment of $121 million which
was received in July 2006 and was accounted for in the third quarter. The parties agreed to dismiss all pending patent
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litigation in Delaware and Texas, agreed not to sue each other regarding the patents at issue in those cases, and cross-licensed
patents covering existing features of commercially available phacoemulsification products.

On January 4, 2005, Dr. James Nielsen filed a complaint against the Company and Allergan, Inc. in the U.S. District
Court of the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division, for infringement of U.S. Patent No. 5,158,572. Dr. Nielsen alleges
that the Company’s Array multifocal intraocular lens infringes the patent. He is seeking damages and a permanent injunction.
The trial in this matter was scheduled to begin on November 6, 2006, but this date has been vacated. A new trial date has not
yet been scheduled.

The Company does not believe, based on current knowledge, that the foregoing legal proceeding is likely to have a
material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. However, the Company may incur
substantial expenses in defending against third party claims. In the event of a determination adverse to the Company or its
subsidiaries, the Company may incur substantial monetary liability, and be required to change its business practices. Either of
these could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

While the Company is involved from time to time in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, including
product liability claims, the Company is not currently aware of any other actions against AMO or Allergan relating to the
optical medical device business that the Company believes would have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. The Company may be subject to future litigation and infringement
claims, which could cause the Company to incur significant expenses or prevent the Company from selling its products. The
Company operates in an industry susceptible to significant product liability claims. Product liability claims may be asserted
against AMO in the future arising out of events not known to the Company at the present time. Under the terms of the
contribution and distribution agreement effecting the spin-off, Allergan agreed to assume responsibility for, and to indemnify
AMO against, all current and future litigation relating to its retained businesses and the Company agreed to assume
responsibility for, and to indemnify Allergan against, all current and future litigation related to the optical medical device
business. '

Note 14; Business Segment Information

The operating segments are segments for which separate financial information is available and upon which operating
results are evaluated on a timely basis to assess performance and to allocate resources.

Through 2005, the Company’s reportable segments were based on geographic regions which comprised the Americas,
which included North and South America, Europe/Africa/Middle East, Japan and Asia Pacific, which excluded Japan and
included New Zealand and Australia. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company’s has reorganized its reportable segments to
reflect the way it manages its business, represented by its three business units: Cataract/Implant, Laser Vision Correction and
Eye Care. Sales and operating results for the prior period have been conformed to reflect the current period presentation of
reportable segments. The cataract/implant segment markets four key products required for cataract surgery — foldable
intraocular lenses, or IOLs, implantation systems, phacoemulsification systems and viscoelastics. The laser vision correction
segment markets laser systems, diagnostic devices, treatment cards and microkeratomes for use in laser eye surgery. Sales of
microkeratomes were included in the cataract/implant segment in 2004 and were not significant. The eye care segment
provides a full range of contact lens care products for use with most types of contact lenses. These products inciude single-
bottle, multi-purpose cleaning and disinfecting solutions, hydrogen peroxide-based disinfecting solutions, daily cleaners,
enzymatic cleaners, contact lens rewetting drops and, in Europe and Asia, contact lenses.

The Company evaluates segment performance based on operating income (loss) excluding certain costs such as
business repositioning costs, non-recurring acquisition related costs and stock-based compensation expense. Research and
development costs, manufacturing operations and related variances, inventory provision/repricing costs and supply chain
costs are managed on a global basis and are considered corporate costs. The Company presents the measure which
management believes is determined in accordance with the measurement principles consistent with those used in measuring
the corresponding amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Because operating segments are generally defined by the
products they manufacture and sell, they do not make sales to each other. Depreciation and amortization, excluding
amortization of intangible assets, related to the manufacturing of goods is included in operating income. The Company does
not discretely allocate assets to its operating segments, nor does the Company’s chief operating decision maker evaluate
operating segments using discrete asset information.
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Net Sales QOperating Income
(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Operating segments:

Cataract/Implant ............coovvnn, $519,025 $497,191 $413,422 3266729 § 212,879 § 122,267
Laser Vision Correction................... 216,876 122,615 — 130,848 66,375 —
Eye Care.....ccccoovmvnnienrice e 261,595 300,867 328,677 104,187 106,023 130,008
Total segments.............cccovveeerernennnn. 997,496 920,673 742,099 501,764 385,277 252,275
Manufacturing operations.............ccceevee. — — — (24,061) (17,291) (20,105)
Research and development ............co.o...... — — — (66,099) (61,646)  (45,616)
In-process research and development....... — —_ — —  (490,750) (28,100)
Business repositioning ...........c..veevienennn — — — {62.661) (42,265) —
Global supply chain.........coovvvevceeenn, — — — (61,330) (48,118  (37,758)
General COTporate......o.ovvvveecverereesaereenns — — — (89,864) (136,534) (87,674)

Total...ccoicceniieiiee e $997496 $920,673 §$742,099 3§ 197,749 $(411,327) § 33,022

Depreciation and amortization expense by segment comprised the following (in thousands):

Depreciation and Amortization

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
CataraCt/TMPIANT ..ot ieee e re s ers s st taesssss b bsa s s sansabararans $ 6431 § 7457 $ 5270
Laser ViS10N COMMECHION . u.cuiciieieres it stssessss s s ersesteeets et esabe s tsstssattsateeaaeemeeentsssosesstesasann 4,908 2971 —
EYE CaI et ettt es st st s b bttt bt n e 128 218 255
Total segrnentslJrh ..... 11,467 10,646 5,525
Manufacturing OPELALIONS .........ccovciiieiiiiaeie ey r st e e e e e eeeeens e s e basaess e s eeeeneens ?: ...... 23,916 20,717 13,544
GEMEEAL COTPOTAE e 35215 20225 4,547
TOtALucuciiii sttt ettt r st s e se et et R n et e s nnasnraen $70,598 $51,588 $23,616
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Geographic Area Information

. Net Sales
(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004
United States:
CataraCt/IMPLANE «....cceeeeecrcerie ettt renasa s et ss s $172,157 $148,563 $134,247
L258r ViSTON COITECHON o iie it iecereveieecversssveerensssnsenassneessarassesrnnseessssssnssansesrsasasreras 167,228 97,524 ‘ —
EFE CIR...cveveremememeeeeeeeeeeeerestetststss s ea s s bbb e en e e p a8 es e emem e na s 75,877 56,403 52,635

Total United SEAES.......cooiimsiniiniiisiiresrisrmress s ss et s snemsssesasasas 415,262 302,490 186,882

Americas, excluding United States:

Cataract/TMPLANL ..c...vovecvececre e s 34,882 26,643 20,139
Laser Vision CorteCliON ..uiiiiieiieiirerrerrerrsisesssesseesseesseeeeearesssstssiessaessesanssanssne 9,419 4,062 —
EYE CaIC ...t bbb 12,268 10,904 10,562
Total Americas, excluding United States.........oocveevreiinciicisimnnnenenan 56,569 41,609 30,701
Europe/Africa/Middle East: :
CataraCt/IMPLANL ......cocveviieereer et bbb bbb 189,845 193,204 152,917
Laser Vision COrTECHON ..ouiiviireiivierrercaeararrressseeese e s emcrsmsssstssssssanssassissinssnsasssns 17,125 9,465 —
EYE CATE...o.ieeieceec ittt s bbb b s e bbb 82,234 95,926 103,806
Total Europe/Africa/Middle East........coveiiiirocceociicmisissssssnsnesens 289,204 298,595 263,723
Japan:
CataraCl/IMPLANE .....ccvoveveenenici bt sesess i 71,271 75,095 62,856
Laser Vision COITECHOMN . ...vveeccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeess ittt sssbaveesssmeesasatesesssnaresssbnssarsnneessnsnees 4,667 2,599 —
EYE Care. .ottt e bbb 62,722 96,595 128,679
TOLAL JAPAN..c.v vttt bbb bbb 138,660 174,289 191,535
Asia Pacific:
Cataract/IMPIANT ....cvvvceceececcciiete e s st en s 50,870 53,686 36,263
Laser Vision CommeCtiON . ..o e eeccctrteeccirres s ensessmrerevssnnss ssssanssarsss e s rnsssnsnnnneses 18,437 8,965 _
EYE CALB....ceieeeeeeeemee e cresesesese e e cmemems b s b s ab s b bbb h e e sm st e e nensasasasannas 28,494 41,039 32,995
Total ASIA PACIFIC. ..ceriiiiisiiciieticiee e eesberbe s vaesane e e e e araresssasarasarasarasasessnesnnss 97,801 103,690 69,258
TOLAL oottt e s et e et e et e s tea e e sabesat s b e s bbesanaseeshaeem s e s e R e e aresnRg s pRe e ens sene saesree e e nesiein $997,496 $920,673 $742,099

The United States information is presented separately as it is the Company’s headquarters country, and U.S. sales
represented 41.6%, 32.9% and 25.2% of tbt4l net sales for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Additionally, sales in Japan represented 13’9%, 18.9% and 25.8% of total net sales for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively. No other country or single custoimer, generated over 10% of total net sales in the periods
presented. 3

Property, Plant and Equipment Other Long-Lived Assets

(In thousands) 2006 2005 2004 2006 20605 2004

United StAteS. . .oiiiiiinriereeeeccirerrvnerereesranessesenes § 25,168 $ 27,759 $ 23885 § 50,570 $ 36,13t § 27901
Americas, excluding United ... 564 629 120 2,303 2,144 1,817
Europe/Africa/Middle East.............cooooovinninnen. 88,549 66,017 72,130 8,105 5,980 4,220
Japan ..., 832 1,132 1,965 2,942 3,785 4,618
Asia PacifiC......ocevvvnveeeeerce i 17,643 20,188 20,539 5,445 4433 3,269
TOtAl. ettt $132,756 $115,725 $118639 §$ 69,365 §$ 52473 $ 41,825

82




Note 15: Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter(c) Quarter(d) Quarter(e) Quarter(f) Total Year
(in thousands, except per share data)

2006 (a)

NEt 5alES. ... et $238,228 $257,041 $258,602 $243,625 $997,496

GrosS Profit.......cocovevrmrerecccee e 151,393 164,668 163,128 138,982 618,171

Net eamings (058} ..o irrnnriniiiniii s 2,629 (2,703) 87,154 (7,609) 79,471

Basic earnings (loss) per share........c.cocecvieieeevvevereenisseeeenca 0.04 (0.04) 1.47 (0.13) 1.25

Diluted earnings (10ss) per Share.............c..coovvvvinvreisrereeenees 0.04 {0.04) 1.42 (0.13) 1.21

2005 (b)

Netsales.. ... $192519 $227,092 $248,233 $252,829 $920,673

Gross Profit ... 122,080 139,614 160,781 144,873 567,348

Net earnings (10S8) ...coviieiiriie e iesns et 13,826 (438,115) (31,215) 2,307  (453,197)

Basic earnings (loss) per share........cocooveevreeecececccirenns, 0.37 (9.53) 0.47) 0.03 (8.28)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share..........cooovovvervviviieeeeneene 0.35 (9.53) 0.47) 0.03 (8.28)

(a) Fiscal quarters in 2006 ended on March 31, June 30, September 29 and December 31.

(b)  Fiscal quarters in 2005 ended on March 25, June 24, September 30 and December 31.

(c) Includes charges of $35.2 million recorded during the first quarter of fiscal 2006, which comprised $3.2 million for
inventory provisions and other manufacturing charges associated with discontinued products, $29.3 miilion related to
its current business repositioning initiatives, $2.3 million in other write-offs and $0.4 million in an unreatized loss on
derivative instruments.

(d) Includes charges of $52.7 million recorded during the second quarter of fiscal 2006, which comprised $18.2 million
related to the company’s note repurchases, $17.7 million related to current business repositioning initiatives, $14.3
million for inventory provisions, manufacturing and distribution charges related to discontinued products and other
charges, and $2.5 million in an unrealized loss on derivative instruments, Includes a $451.3 million in-process research
and development charge, debt recapitalization related costs of $2.4 million and $4.7 million in charges associated with
recent acquisitions and integrations in the second quarter of fiscal 2005.

(e) Includes a pre-tax net gain of $102.9 million related to the settlement of legal matters in the third quarter of fiscal 2006.
The third-quarter results in fiscal 2006 also included pre-tax net charges of $4.0 million associated with recently
completed business rationalization and repositioning initiatives, $3.9 million associated with note repurchases and $2.3
million in an unreaiized gain on derivative instruments. Includes a $39.3 million in-process research and development
charge, debt recapitalization related charges of $3.8 million, an $8.6 milliongharge for the termination of a distributor
agreement and $9.7 million in charges associated with recent acquisitions and integrations in the third quarter of fiscal
2005 and a $1.4 million benefit from the resolution of a discrete item as the result of final adjustments to accrued, pre-
spin-off taxes attributable to the Company’s business and payable to Allergan pursuant to a pre-spin tax sharing
agreement,

(f)  Asaresult of the eye care recall in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, eye care sales included approximately $9.5 million

in returns. Gross profit was impacted by $19.0 million in returns and costs. In addition, the Company incurred the final
$1.2 million in charges associated with business repositioning initiatives in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. Includes
$42.3 million in charges associated with product rationalization and repositioning initiatives, debt recapitalization
related costs of $1.4 million, $4.0 million in charges associated with recent acquisitions and integrations and a tax
benefit of $5.7 million for repatriation of foreign earnings in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005.

Note 16: Pending Acquisition of Intral.ase

On January 5, 2007, AMO entered into an agreement with Intralase Corp. (Intral_ase) to acquire Intralase for

approximately $808 million in cash. IntralLase manufactures femtosecond laser sysiems utilized in LASIK surgery. Under
terms of the agreement, approved by the boards of directors of both companies, following the receipt of fairness opinions
from their respective financial advisors, AMO will pay $25 in cash per share of IntraLase stock and the individually
determined cash value per share of outstanding stock options. AMO has arranged committed financing from a consortium of
banks to complete the transaction. AMO expects the transaction to be completed early in the second quarter of 2007. The
transaction is subject to IntraLase stockholder approval as well as regulatory approvals and other customary closing
conditions.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc:

We have completed integrated audits of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.’s 2006, 2005, and 2004 consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Qversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a) (1) present fairly, in ail
material respects, the financial position of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and
December 31, 20035, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In
addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a} (2) presents fairly, in
all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial
statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” as of January 1, 2006 and changed the manner in which it accounts for share-
based compensation in fiscal 2006.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those
criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006; based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework
issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining 2n understanding
of internal controt over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Orange County, California
February 28, 2007

Item 9, Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None,
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation
of our disclosure controls and procedures. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial
officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management evaluated our internal control over financial reporting and there have been no changes during the
fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006 that have materiaily affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting,

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting .

Qur management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future period§‘are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. Our management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment, we have
concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, the Company’s internal contro! over financial reporting is effective based on those
critena,

AMO’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on our assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. This report begins on
page 87.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information required by this item, including that required pursuant to Item 401 of Regulation S-K, is included under
the headings “Election of Directors™ and “Executive Officers” in our proxy statement for the 2007 annual meeting of
stockholders (the “Proxy Statement™), which will be filed no later than 120 days after the close of our fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 and which is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by Item 405 of Regulation $-K is included in the Proxy Statement under the section
entitled “Section 16(a} Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” and is incorporated herein by reference. The
information required by pertinent provisions of Items 406 and 407 of Regulation S-K is included in the Proxy Statement
under the section entitled “Corporate Governance” and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 and by pertinent provisions of Item 407 of Regulation S-K is included in the
Proxy Statement under the sections entitled “Election of Directors,” “Executive Officers,” and “Corporate Governance,” and
is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item_12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by Items 201(d) and 403 of Regulation $-K is included in the Proxy Statement under the
sections entitled “Executive Officers” and “Ownership of Our Stock,” and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by Items 404 and 407(a) of Regulation $-K is included in the Proxy Statement under the
section entitled “Corporate Governance” and is incorporated herein by this reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The section entitled “Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein
by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Index 10 Financial Statements
Page No.
1. Financial Statements included in Part II of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 48
Consolidated Statements of Operations for Each of the Years in the Three-Year : 49
Period Ended December 31, 2006
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income 50
(L.oss) for Each of the Years in the Three-Year Period Ended December 31, 2006
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for Each of the Years in the Three-Year 51
Period Ended December 31, 2006
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 52-83
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 84

Page No.
2. Schedules Supporting the Consolidated Financial Statements: :

Schedule numbered in accordance with Rule 5-04 of Regulation S-X: II Valuation and
Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted for the reason that the required information is presented in financial
statements or notes thereto, the amounts involved are not significant or the schedules are not applicable.
()] Item 601 Exhibits

Reference is made to the Index of Exhibits beginning at page S-3 of this report,
(] Other Financial Statements

There are no financial statements required to be filed by Regulation S-X which are excluded from this report by
Rule 14 a-3(b)(1).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section i3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duiy
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: February 28, 2007 ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.

By /s/JAMES. V. MAZZ0

James V., Mazzo
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., hereby severally constitute James V.
Mazzo and Aimee 8. Weisner, and each of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them and each of
them to sign for us, in our names in the capacities indicated below, any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form
10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Date: February 28, 2007 By /s/ JAMES. V. MAZZ0

James V. Mazzo
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
{Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 28, 2007 By /s/ RICHARD A. MEIER

Richard A. Meier
Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: February 28, 2007 By /s/ ROBERTF. GALLAGHER

Robert F. Gallagher
Senior Vice President. Chief Accounting Officer and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

gt
Date; February 26, 2007 Y By /s/ CHRISTOPHER G. CHAVEZ
‘ Christopher G. Chavez, Director
Date: February 28, 2007 By /s/ ELIZABETH H. DAVILA
Elizabeth H. Davila, Director
Date: February 26, 2007 By /s/ WILLIAM J. LINK, PH.D.
William J. Link, Ph.D., Director
Date: February 27, 2007 By /s/ MICHAEL A. MUSSALLEM
Michael A. Mussallem, Director
Date: February 28, 2007 By /s/ DEBORAH J. NEFF
Deborah J. Neff, Director
Date: February 28, 2007 By /s/JAMES O. ROLLANS

James O. Rollans, Presiding Director
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Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Exhibits
Exhibit No, Description of Exhibit
3.1(a) Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Amendment

3.1(b)
32
4.1

4.2

4.3

44

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

4.9

10.1

10.2

10.3

104
10.5 (a)
10.5 (b)

10.5 (c)

No. 2 to Registration Statement on Form 10 (“Form 10”) filed on May 6, 2002).

Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2005},

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Amendment No. 2 to Form 10 filed
on May 6, 2002).

Specimen Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Amendment No. 2 to Form
10 filed on May 6, 2002),

Rights Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2002, by and between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Mellon
Investor Services, as Rights Agent, which includes the form of Certification of Designations of the Series A
Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. as Exhibit A, the form of Right
Certificate as Exhibit B and the Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred Shares as Exhibit C (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 25, 2002).

Indenture, dated as of June 22, 2004, between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Assoctation, as Trustee {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

June 23, 2004),

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 22, 2004, among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Lehman
Brothers Inc., Banc of America Securities LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, as Initial Purchasers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 23, 2004).

Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2005, between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Current Report on Form §-K filed on

July 19, 2005).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2005, between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Morgan
Stanley & Co. Incorporated, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and UBS Securities LLC, as the Initial Purchasers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 19, 2005),

Indenture, dated as of June 13, 2006, between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June
13, 2006).

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 13, 2006, among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., Goldman
Sachs & Co., Banc of America Securities, UBS Securities LLC, PNC Capital Markets LLC, and Citigroup
Global Markets Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Current Repoit on Form 8-K filed on June
13, 2006).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 15 2006, between Advanced medical Optics, Inc. and 7.8,
Bank national Association, as Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to Form S-3, Automatic Shelf
Registration, filed on August 18, 2006).

Contribution and Distribution Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2002, by and between Allergan, Inc. and
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form §-4 Registration Statement
filed on August 8, 2002).

Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of June 24, 2002, by and between Allergan, Inc. and Advanced Medical
Optics, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Form S-4 Registration Statement filed on August 8,
2002). -

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of iune 24, 2002, by and between Allergan, Inc. and Advanced Medical
Optics, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Form $-4 Registration Statement filed on August 8,
2002).

Employment Agreement, dated as of January 18, 2002, by and between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and
James Mazzo (incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Form 10).*

Form of Employment Agreement between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and those parties identified on
Exhibit 10.5(b) {(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9(a) of Form 10).*

Updated Schedule of parties to the Employment Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.5(2) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6(b) of Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2005).*

Employment Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2002, by and between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Holger
Heidrich (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Form S-4 Registration Statement filed on August 8,
2002).*
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10.6
10.7 (a)
10.7 (b)
10.8 (a)
10.8 (b)
10.8 (c)

10.8 (d)
10.9 (a)

10.9 (b)
10.9 (c)
16.9 (d)
10.9 (e)
16.10 (a)

10.10 (b)

10.11 (a)

10.11 (b)

10.11 (c)

10.11 (d)

10.11 (e)

10.11 ()
10.12 (a)
10.12 (b)
10.12 (c)
10.13 (a)
10.13 (b)
10.13 (c)
10.14 (a)

10.14 (b)

Form of Indemnity Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Form 5-4 Registration Statement
filed on August 8, 2002).*

Form of Change in Control Agreement between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and those parties identified on
Exhibit 10.7(b) {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18,
2005).*

Schedule of executive officers party to the Change in Control Agreement filed as Exhibit 10.7(a).*

Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of Form 5-4
Registration Statement filed on August 8, 2002).¥

First Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Bonus Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 8, 2002).*

2006 Performance Objective under the Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Bonus Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.8(e) of Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 14, 2006).*

2007 Performance Objective under the Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Bonus Plan.*

Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 401(k) Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form S-8 Registration
Statement filed on June 21, 2002).*

First Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 401(k} Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10{b)
of Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 14, 2003).*

Second Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 401(k) Pian (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 6, 2003)*

Third Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 401(k) Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9(d)
of Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 14, 2006).*

Fourth Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 401(k) Plan.*

Amended and Restated Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit A to Proxy Statement for the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on April 15,
2004).*

First Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Incentive Compensation Plan, as amended and
restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 23,
2004).*

Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2005 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.10
of Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Terms and Conditions under Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2005
Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.2 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 18, 2005).*

Form of Employee Restricted Unit Grant Terms and Conditions under Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2005
Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed

-on May 18, 2005).*

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Grant Terms and Conditions under Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2005
Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 18, 2005).* i,
Form of Nonemployee Director Restricted Stock Grant Agreement under Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2005
Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on May 18, 2005).*
Form of Performance Award Agreement under Advanced Medical Optics, Ine. 2005 Incentive Compensation
Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 18, 2005).*
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3
of Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on June 21, 2002).* |
First Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) filed on November 2, 2004).*
Amended and Restated Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.8 of Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. International Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of
Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on June 21, 2002).*
First Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 International Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) filed on November 2, 2004).*
Amended and Restated Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2002 International Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.9 of Form §-8 Registration Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.5 of Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on June 21, 2002).*
First Amendment to Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 6, 2003).*
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19 (a)

10.19 (b)

10.19 (c)

10.19 (d)

10.20

10.21

10.22 (a)

10.22 (b)

10.22 (c)

10.23
10.24
10.25

10.26

Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. 2005 Executive Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.15 of Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 2, 2005).%

Consent to Sublease and Second Amendment to Lease, dated as of May 24, 2002, by and among Andrew Place
Two LLC, as landlord, Ingram Micro, Inc., as tenant and Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., as subtenant
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on June 24, 2002).

Sublease Agreement, dated as of May 24, 2002, by and between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Ingram
Micro, Inc. for the premises located at 1700 East St. Andrew Place, Santa Ana, California 92705 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on June 24, 2002).

Information Technology Services Agreement, dated August 23, 2002, by and between Advanced Medical
Optics, Inc. and Siemens Business Services, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed on November 8, 2002).

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 25, 2004, among Advanced Medical Optics,
Inc., as the Borrower, certain of its subsidiaries, as the Guarantors, Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as
Syndication Agent, General Electric Capital Corporation and Bank One, NA, as Co-Documentation Agents,
Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender, Foreign Currency Fronting Lender and
L/C Issuer, and the other lenders party thereto, and Banc of America Securities LLC and Lehman Brothers Inc.,
as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2004).

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of Januvary 7, 2005, among
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., certain of its subsidiaries, as Guarantors, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc.,
as Syndication Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., US Bank and Union Bank of California, N.A., as Co-
Documentation Agents, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender, Foreign
Currency Fronting Lender and L/C Issuer, and the other lenders party thereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 13, 2005).

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2005, among
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., the Guarantors party thereto, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as
Syndication Agent, and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and the lenders party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 31, 2005).

Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of June 5, 2006, among
Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., the certain of its subsidiaries as the Guarantors, the Lenders (as defined-in the
Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 25, 2004 and filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 3, 2004), and Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent
on behalf of itself and the Lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q filed on August 9, 2006).

Manufacturing and Supply Agreement, dated November 10, 2003, by and between Advanced Medical Optics,
Inc. and Nicholas Piramal India Limited (confidential portions have been omitted and filed separately with the
Commission) {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 of Annual-Report on Form 10-K filed on March 12,
2004). g

Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 21, 2004, by and between Pfizer Inc. and Advanced
Medical Optics, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May
3, 2004).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 9, 2004, by and among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.,
Vault Merger Corporation, and VISX, Incorporated (“VISX Merger Agreement”) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Nevember 10, 2004),

Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 3, 2004, by and among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., Vault Merger -
Corporation, and VISX, Incorporated), to amend the VISX Merger Agreement {(incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 of Form S-4 Registration Statement filed on December 6, 2004). ‘
Amendment No. 2, dated as of March 17, 2005, by and among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., Vault Merger
Corporation, and VISX, Incorporated, to amend the VISX Merger Agreement, as amended (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 22, 2005).

VISX. Incorporated 2001 Nonstatutory Stock Option Pian (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 of

Form S-8 Registration Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*

VISX, Incorporated 2000 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 of Form S-8 Registration
Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*

VISX, Incorporated 1995 Director Option and Stock Deferral Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5 of
Form 5-8 Registration Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*

VISX, Incorporated 1995 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.6 of Form S-8 Registration
Statement filed on May 27, 2005).*
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10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

21.1
23.1
24.1
311
31.2
321

Lease dated July 16, 1992 between VISX, Incorporated and Sobrato Interests, a California limited partnership,
as amended on October 2, 1992, March 8, 1996 and March 29, 2002 (incorporated by reference te Exhibit 10.7
of VISX, Incorporated’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 18, 2004).

Lease Agreement dated February 9, 2007, between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and TriNet Milpitas
Associates, LLC for the premises located at 510 Cottonwood Drive, Milpitas, California.

Confidential Settlement Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2006, between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and
Alcon, Inc., Alcon Laboratories, Inc. and Alcon Manufacturing Lid. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2006).

Master Confirmation between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. dated as of June 7,
2006 (confidential portions have been omitted and filed separately with the Commission) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2006).

Supplemental Confirmation between Advanced Medical Optics, Inc. and Goldman, Sachs & Co. dated as of
June 7, 2006 (confidential portions have been omitted and filed separately with the Commission) (incorporated
by reference io Exhibit 10.4 of Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2006).

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 5, 2007, by and among Advanced Medical Optics, Inc.,
Ironman Merger Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of Advanced Medical Optics, Inc., and Intral.ase
Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 10, 2007).
Bank Facilities commitment Letter, dated January 5, 2007, from UBS Loan Finance LLC, UBS Securities LLC,
Bank of America, N.A., Banc of America Securities L1.C and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P. to Advanced
Medical Optic, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January
10, 2007).

Subsidiaries of the Registrani.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney (included as part of the signature page).

Certification of James V. Mazzo pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Richard A. Meier pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of James V. Mazzo and Richard A. Meier pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SCHEDULE I}
ADVANCED MEDICAL OPTICS, INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2006, 2005, AND 2004

(IN MILLIONS)
Allowance Balance Balance
For Doubtful Beginning at End
Accounts of Year Additions(a) Deductions(b}) of Year
2006 b 9.1 3 3.6 L {0.4) 3 12.3
2005 7.4 2.6 (0.9} 9.1
2004 8.6 2.3 (3.3) 74

(a) Includes $2.0 million additions from VISX Acquisition and $0.6 million charged to earnings in 2005.

(b) Accounts written off.
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